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CAPRI GLOBAL HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED
CIN No.: U65990MH2006PLC161153
Regd. Office: 502, Tower A, Peninsula Business Park,
Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai 400 013
Website: www.caprihomeloans.com
Tel. No.: +91 22 40888100 Fax No.: +91 22 40888160

NOTICE OF THE 17™ ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE is hereby given that Seventeenth Annual General Meeting (‘AGM’) of the Members of
Capri Global Housing Finance Limited (‘the Company’) will be held at shorter notice on Thursday, June 1,
2023 at 4:00 P.M, at 502, Tower A, Peninsula Business Park, Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel,
Mumbai 400013 to transact the following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider, approve and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the
financial year ended March 31, 2023 together with the Report of the Directors’ and Auditors’ thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Rajesh Sharma (DIN: 00020037), who retires by rotation, and
being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

By Order of the Board
For Capri Global Housing Finance Limited

Sd/-
(Yashesh Bhatt)
Company Secretary
ACS: 20491
Place: Mumbai
Dated: May 31, 2023

REGISTERED OFFICE

502, Tower A, Peninsula Business Park,
Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel,
Mumbai 400 013

NOTE:

1. A Member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is also entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and
vote instead of himself and the proxy need not be a member of the company. The instrument
appointing proxy in order to be effective, should be lodged at the registered office of the company
not less than forty-eight hours before the time of the meeting.

2. Information under Secretarial Standard 2, pursuant to Section 118 (10) of the Act, issued by the
Institute of Company Secretaries of India, relating to Directors proposed to be appointed/re-
appointed is provided in the Annexure | to this Notice.

3. The Statutory Registers and other document required to be kept open for inspection under the Act
read with rules made thereunder at the AGM, will be available for inspection by the members at the
AGM of the Company.



All documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and the Explanatory Statement shall be open
for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company during the business hours up to and including
the date and time of the AGM of the Company.

Members / Proxies should fill in the attendance slip for attending the Meeting. Proxies form as
prescribed under the Act and Attendance Slip are enclosed herewith.

Corporate members intending to send their authorized representative to attend the meeting are
requested to send a duly certified copy of the board resolution authorizing their representative to
attend and vote at the AGM.

The Members may note that the Notice of 17! AGM of the Company along with the Annual Report
will be available on the Company’s website https://caprihomeloans.com/.

The landmark of the venue of the meetings and the Route map is enclosed with the Notice and same
has also been posted on the website of the Company.



Annexure | to the Notice of 171" AGM

DETAILS OF DIRECTOR SEEKING RE-APPOINTMENT AS REQUIRED UNDER CLAUSE 1.2.5 OF THE
SECRETARIAL STANDARD- 2 ON GENERAL MEETING

Mr. Rajesh Sharma

Mr. Rajesh Sharma is a qualified Chartered Accountant. He is the Promoter Director of the Company with
over 27 years of experience in capital market and financial advisory services.

Mr. Sharma has expertise in various aspects of corporate finance, investment banking, merchant banking
and asset financing. He has successfully leveraged his expertise and experience to steer the Company’s
growth and played an instrumental role in making it one of the emerging housing finance providers in India.

He is not related to any of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company. The Board of
Directors recommend passing of the resolution set out in item No. 2 of the accompanying Notice.

Except Mr. Rajesh Sharma, none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their
relatives is concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in Item No.2.

Other Details:

Name of the Director Mr. Rajesh Sharma

Date of Birth February 28, 1970

Age 53

Nationality Indian

Date of appointment on the board April 17, 2006

Qualifications Chartered Accountant

Last Remuneration drawn 12,00,000

Remuneration to be paid 12,00,000

Terms and conditions of Retire by rotation:

Re-appointment Liable to retire by rotation
Code of Conduct:

Abide by the Code of Conduct devised by the Company

Number of shares held in the company 100

Relationship with other Directors, | None
Manager and other KMP

Number of Meetings of the Board | 5/6
attended / held

Directorships held in other companies
(excluding foreign companies and
Government Bodies)

Capri Global Capital Limited

Parshwanath Buildcon Private Limited

Dnyaneshwar Trading and Investment Private Limited
Capri Global Asset Reconstruction Private Limited
Capri Global Holdings Private Limited

Capri Global Finance Private Limited

SR

Membership / Chairmanship  of | Audit Committee
Committees of other companies Nil

Stakeholders' Relationship Committee
Capri Global Capital Limited — Member

Corporate Social Responsibility
Capri Global Capital Limited — Member




Capri Global Holdings Private Limited — Member

Risk Management Committee
Capri Global Capital Limited- Chairman
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CAPRI GLOBAL HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED
CIN No.: U65990MH2006PLC161153
Regd. Office: 502, Tower A, Peninsula Business Park,
Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai 400 013
Website: www.caprihomeloans.com
Tel. No.: +91 22 40888100 Fax No.: +91 22 40888160

ATTENDANCE SLIP
(To be presented at the entrance of the meeting hall)

Regd. Folio No./Client ID No.
DP ID No.

No. of shares held

I/We hereby record my/our presence at SEVENTEENTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of Capri Global
Housing Finance Limited, held at shorter notice on Thursday, June 1, 2023 at 4:00 P.M at the
Registered Office of the Company at 502, Tower A, Peninsula Business Park, Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower
Parel, Mumbai-400 013, Maharashtra (India).

Member’s/ Proxy’s name in BLOCK Letters Signature of Member/Proxy

NOTE: Please fill up this attendance slip and hand it over at the entrance of the venue for the meeting.
Members are requested to bring their copies of the Annual Report to the meeting.
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CAPRI GLOBAL HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED
CIN No.: U65990MH2006PLC161153

Regd. Office: 502, Tower A, Peninsula Business Park,
Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai 400 013
Website: www.caprihomeloans.com

Tel. No.: +91 22 40888100 Fax No.: +91 22 40888160

PROXY FORM

[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management

Name of the member(s):

and Administration) Rules, 2014]

Registered address:

E-mail Id:

Folio No/ Client Id:

DP ID:

I/We, being the member (s) of

having E-mail ID

having E-mail ID

shares of the above-named company, hereby appoint:

or failing him,

or failing him,

1. of
2. of
3. of

having E-mail ID

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Seventeenth Annual
General Meeting of the Company, to be held at shorter notice on Thursday, June 1, 2023 at 4:00 P.M at the
Registered Office of the Company at 502, Tower A, Peninsula Business Park, Senapati Bapat Marg,
Lower Parel, Mumbai-400 013. Maharashtra (India) and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such

resolutions as are indicated below:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider, approve and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the
financial year ended March 31, 2023 together with the Report of the Directors’ and Auditors’ thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Rajesh Sharma (DIN: 00020037), who retires by rotation, and
being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

Signed this day of 2023

Signature of shareholder(s):




Signature of Proxy holder(s):

(First proxy holder) (Second proxy holder) (Third proxy holder)

Notes:

1. This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly stamped, completed, signed and deposited

at the Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the
Meeting.

2. A proxy need not be a Member of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Dear Members,
Capri Global Housing Finance Limited

The Directors of the Company are pleased to present their Seventeenth Annual Report together with
the Annual Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2023.
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

The summary of the financial results for the financial year ended March 31, 2023, and the previous
financial year ended March 31, 2022, is given below:

(Amount in INR Millions)

Particulars 2022-23 2021-22
Total Revenue 3,236.72 2,204.36
Less: Operating Expenses & Provisions 934.17 667.93
Profit before Interest, Depreciation & Taxes (PBIDT) 2,302.55 1536.43
Less: Depreciation 49.46 25.63
Less: Interest & Finance Charges 1,479.80 953.62
Profit Before Tax 773.29 557.18
Less: Tax Expenses 152.82 125.41
Profit After Tax (PAT) 620.47 431.77
Transfer to Reserve (Under Section 29C of the National 164.98 86.40
Housing Bank Act, 1987)
Earnings per Share (EPS) (Rs.) 8.71 7.11
Net Worth 5188.83 4,580.12
Loan Book / Assets Under Management (AUM) 26656.91 17474

OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE & STATE OF AFFAIRS

Company continued to focus on providing housing loan to first time home buyers belonging to
middle and lower income earning families, much in line with focus of the Prime Ministers Awas
Yojana (PMAY). Loan book of the Company grew by 52.55% to INR 26,656.91 Million as compared to
INR 17,474 Million of the last year.

The Company’s total revenue from operations increased by 46.83% to INR 3,236.72 Million as
compared to INR 2,204.36 Million of the previous year. Profit After Tax increased by 43.70% to INR
620.47 Million for the year as compared to profit of INR 431.77 Million of the previous year.

The Gross NPA of the Company stood at 1.2% and the Net NPA was at 0.8% as of March 31, 2023.
Average ticket size of the loan was maintained at INR 1.1 Million with 24,335 live loan accounts at
the end of the year under review.

Company carried out business through presence at 161 locations spread over 10 states i.e.,
Maharashtra, Gujarat, Madhya Pradesh, Delhi, Rajasthan, Uttar Pradesh, Haryana, Chhattisgarh,
Uttarakhand and Punjab during the year. Company has disbursed loans amounting to INR 12,430
Million as compared to INR 7,845 Million in the previous year, recording a growth of 58.44%.

SHARE CAPITAL



During the year under review, the Authorised Share Capital of the Company was INR 9 Million.

As at March 31, 2023, the equity share capital of the Company stood at Rs. 71,20,37,900 divided into
7,12,03,790 equity shares of Rs. 10 each.

OBJECT OF THE COMPANY

During the year under review, the Memorandum of Association of the Company was altered to make
amendment to the objects which are incidental or ancillary for the attainment of the main object to
ensure that the Company do operate exclusively within territory of India and not outside India.

RESOURCE MOBILIZATION

The Company has strengthened its relationships with banks /financial institution and got sanctions
of INR 8,600 Million. As of March 31, 2023, total borrowings have increased to INR 21,228.90 Million
from INR 14,578.35 Million as of previous year. The Company has cash and bank balance of INR
520.66 Million and liquid mutual fund investment of INR 1063.74 Million as of March 31, 2023.

The Company has raised fresh resources of INR 21,228.90 Million during the year from multiple
sources as under:

a. Term loans and overdraft from banks

The Company has raised term loans and other facilities from banks for INR 15,874.80 Million during
the year.

b. Refinance from National Housing Bank

The Company has raised refinance from National Housing Bank for INR 5,354.10 Million during the
year.

During the period under review, the Company had no NCDs as of March 31, 2023.

CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIO

As on March 31, 2023, the Company’s Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR), stood at 33.1%, compared to
46.97% for the previous year, which is well above the regulatory minimum, providing much needed
headroom for fund raising for business operations of the Company.

DIVIDEND

To conserve resources for business growth of the Company and to build up reserves, your Directors
do not recommend payment of any dividend on equity shares for the year ended March 31, 2023.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

Pursuant to Section 29C (i) of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987, the Company is required to
transfer at least 20% of the net profits every year to a Reserves. The Company proposes to transfer
INR 164.98 Million (previous year INR 86.40 Million) to Reserves created for the purpose.



DEPOSITS

During the year under review, the Company has neither invited nor accepted any deposits from the
public, within the meaning of Section 73 of the Act read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits)
Rules, 2014.

STATUTORY AND REGULATORY GUIDELINES

During the year under review, the Company has complied with applicable statutory provisions,
including those of Companies Act, 2013 and Income Tax 1961.

The Company is registered with the National Housing Bank as a Housing Finance Company. RBI
compiled and released Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company — Housing Finance
Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 for the better functioning of the financial system and HFCs.
The Master Directions also consolidates and repeals the directions issued by NHB and indicates the
List of NBFC regulations applicable to HFCs.

The RBI has issued comprehensive guidelines on Fair Practice Code, reporting, and monitoring of
frauds, Know Your Customer (KYC), Anti Money Laundering (AML) standards and IT Framework.
During the year under review, the Company has been complying with all the guidelines and
directions issued by RBI.

POLICIES AND CODE

The Company has revised/ adopted various policies basis amendments to the respective applicable
laws including but not limited to following:

Collateral Evaluation Policy, ECL Provisioning, NPA Management, Write Off and Settlement Policy,
Risk Management Policy, Prevention of Money Laundering - PMLA Policy and KYC Policy, Treasury
Investment Management Policy, Fraud Risk Management Policy, Fraud Control Unit Policy, Outsourcing
Policy, Information Technology (IT) Policy, IT Systems & Operations Policy, Information Security (IS) &
Cyber Security Policy, IT Risk Management Policy, IT Compliance Management Policy, Resource Planning
Policy, Demand Call Loan Policy, Master Policy for Business, Whistle Blower Policy, Anti-Sexual
Harassment Policy, Interest Rate model and policies & procedures for determining interest rates and
other charges, Transfer Pricing Policy, Transfer of Loan Exposure Policy, Prepaid Expenses Policy, Write
Off and Write Back Policy, Appointment of Statutory Auditors Policy, Fit and Proper Criteria Policy,
Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process Policy, Cyber Crisis Management Plan, Model Code of
Conduct for Direct Selling Agents (DSAs)/ Direct Marketing Agents (DMAs) and Guidelines for engaging
Recovery Agents

CREDIT RATING

The Credit rating details of the credit facilities of the Company as on March 31, 2023, were as below:

CARE Ratings Limited has revised rating from CARE A-/ Stable to CARE A+/Stable with respect to the
long- term bank facilities availed by the Company; the rated limit has been enhanced from Rs.
15,000 Mn. to Rs. 25,000 Mn. as follows:

|

Nature of Borrowing | Amount | Rating |




| Long-term Bank Facilities | Rs. 25,000 Mn. | CARE A+ Stable |

Brickwork Ratings India Private Limited has reaffirmed rating with revision in outlook from ‘Negative’
to ‘Stable’ with respect to the long- term bank facilities availed by the Company, as follows:

Nature of Borrowing Amount Rating

Term Loan Facilities Rs. 25,000 Mn. BWR AA-Stable

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND ITS ADEQUACY

The Board has adopted accounting policies which are in compliance with Section 133 of the Act read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.

The internal financial control system of the Company is supplemented with internal audits, regular
reviews by the management and checks by external auditors. The Audit Committee monitors these
systems and ensures adequacy of the same. The Audit Committee undertakes an evaluation of the
adequacy and effectiveness of internal control systems. It also oversees the implementation of audit
recommendations especially involving the risk management measures. The Statutory Auditors of the
Company also provides their opinion on the internal financial control framework of the Company.

In addition to reviewing the internal control systems put in place by the Internal Audit Department,
the Audit Committee also imparts guidance and crucial directions for upgradation of systems and

controls on ongoing basis.

During the year under review, no material or serious observation has been highlighted for
inefficiency or inadequacy of such controls.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Management Discussion and Analysis report for the year under review as required under Non-
Banking Financial Company — Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 forms part
of the Directors’ Report as Annexure .

SUBSIDIARY ENTITIES

As on March 31, 2023, your Company does not have any subsidiaries.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Act read with Companies (Management &
Administration) Rules, 2014 and Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Rajesh Sharma (DIN:
00020037), Managing Director of the Company retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General
Meeting (‘AGM’) and being eligible, offer himself for re-appointment.

The resolution seeking re-appointment of Mr. Rajesh Sharma (DIN: 00020037), as Director of the
Company has been included in the Notice of the ensuing AGM. Your Directors recommend the
Resolutions for your approval for the aforesaid re-appointment.



The brief details of Mr. Rajesh Sharma proposed to be re-appointed as required under Secretarial
Standard-2 issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India is provided in the Notice
convening AGM of the Company.

Mr. Rajesh Sharma has confirmed that he is not disqualified to act as Director in terms of Section
164 of the Act.

As of March 31, 2023, the Company had three Independent Directors including one Woman Director.
Mr. Rajesh Sharma has been appointed as Chief Financial Officer of the Company with effect from
May 16, 2023 for a tenure of one year. Mr. Yashesh Pankaj Bhatt is Company Secretary of the
Company.

As on the date of this Report, Mr. Rajesh Sharma, Managing Director & Chief Financial Officer and
Mr. Yashesh Pankaj Bhatt, Company Secretary are the Key Managerial Personnel of your Company in
accordance with the provisions of Section 2(51) read with Section 203 of the Act.

Declaration of Independence by Independent Directors & adherence to the Company’s Code of
Conduct for Independent Directors

All the Independent Directors have confirmed to the Board that they meet the criteria of
independence as specified under Section 149(6) of the Act and that they qualify to be Independent
Directors pursuant to the Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors)
Rules, 2014.

Further, all the Independent Directors have affirmed that they have adhered and complied with the
Company’s Code of Conduct for Independent Directors which is framed in accordance with Schedule
IV of the Act.

Pursuant to the ‘Fit and Proper’ Policy adopted by the Company under the Master Direction Non-
Banking Financial Company — Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021, the
Company has received the ‘Fit and Proper’ declaration from Mr. Rajesh Sharma for his re-
appointment as Director of the Company, Mr. Beni Prasad Rauka, Mr. T.R Bajalia and Ms. Bhagyam
Ramani, which have been taken on record by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. All the
Directors meet the ‘Fit and Proper’ criteria as per the policy of the Company and as stipulated by RBI.

Board Meetings

The Board of the Directors of the Company met 6 (Six) times during the year 2022-23 to deliberate
on various matters. The meetings were held on April 23, 2022, May 17, 2022, July 30, 2022,
September 20, 2022, November 3, 2022, January 28, 2023.

The details of Composition and attendance of the members at the Board Meetings are given below:

Name of the Categories No. of Meetings
Members Held Attended
Mr. Rajesh Sharma Managing Director 6 5
Mr. Beni Prasad Rauka | Non-Executive Independent Director 6 6
Ms. Bhagyam Ramani | Non-Executive Independent Director 6 6




[ Mr. T.R. Bajalia | Non-Executive Independent Director 6 | 6 |

CONSTITUTION OF VARIOUS COMMITTEES

The Board of Directors of the Company has constituted following Committees:

Audit Committee

Nomination and Remuneration Committee
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
Risk Management Committee

Asset Liability Management Committee

IT Strategy Committee

N

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee, duly constituted by the Board of Directors has a well-defined composition of
members and terms of reference are in accordance with Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013
and applicable rules thereto and Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company — Housing
Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021. As on March 31, 2023, the Audit Committee of
the Board comprised of 3 (three) Non-Executive Independent Directors. The members of the Audit
Committee are financially literate and have accounting or related financial management expertise.
The Chairman of the Audit Committee is an Independent Director of the Company.

Meeting and Attendance

During the year under review, the Audit Committee met 5 (five) times viz. on April 23, 2022, May 17,
2022, July 30, 2022, November 3, 2022 and January 28, 2023. The required quorum was present for
all the Audit Committee Meetings. The details of Composition and attendance of the members at
the Audit Committee Meetings are given below:

Name of the Members Categories No. of Meetings
Held Attended
Mr. Beni Prasad Rauka | Chairman 5 5
Ms. Bhagyam Ramani Member 5 5
Mr. T. R. Bajalia Member 5 4

The Chief Financial Officer is a permanent invitee to the Audit Committee meetings. The Statutory
Auditors and the Internal Auditors of the Company are also invited to the Audit Committee meetings.

Nomination & Remuneration Committee

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee, duly constituted by the Board of Directors has a well-
defined composition of members and terms of reference are in accordance with Section 178 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and applicable rules thereto and Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial
Company — Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021. As on March 31, 2023, the
Nomination & Remuneration Committee of the Board comprised of 3 (three) Non-Executive
Independent Directors. The Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee is an
Independent Director of the Company.



Meeting and Attendance

During the year under review, Nomination and Remuneration Committee met 2 (Two) times viz. on
May 17, 2022 and April 23, 2022. The recommendations of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee have been accepted by the Board. The Nomination and Remuneration Policy is annexed
as Annexure Il. The details of Composition and attendance of the members at the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee Meetings are given below:

Name of the Members Categories No. of Meetings
Held Attended
Ms. Bhagyam Ramani Chairperson 2 2
Mr. Beni Prasad Rauka | Member 2 2
Mr. T. R. Bajalia Member 2 2

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee duly constituted by the Board of Directors has a well-
defined composition of members and terms of reference are in accordance with Section 135 of
Companies Act, 2013 and applicable Rules thereto. As on March 31, 2022, the Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee of the Board comprised of 2 (two) Non-Executive Independent Directors
and 1 (one) Executive Director. The Chairman of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee is an
Independent Director of the Company.

Meeting and Attendance

During the year under review, Corporate Social Responsibility Committee met 2 (Two) times viz. on
May 17, 2022 and November 3, 2022. The recommendations of the Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee have been accepted by the Board. The details of Composition and attendance of the
members at the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee Meetings are given below:

Name of the Members Categories No. of Meetings
Held Attended
Mr. Beni Prasad Rauka | Chairman 2 2
Ms. Bhagyam Ramani Member 2 2
Mr. Rajesh Sharma Member 2 2

Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Committee duly constituted by the Board of Directors has a well-defined
composition of members and terms of reference are in accordance with Master Direction — Non-
Banking Financial Company — Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021. As on
March 31, 2023, The Risk Management Committee of the Board comprised of 2 (two) Non-Executive
Independent Directors and 1(one) Executive Director. The Chairman of the Risk Management
Committee is Managing Director of the Company.

Meeting and Attendance




During the year under review, Risk Management Committee met 4 (Four) times viz. on May 13, 2022,
July 30, 2022, October 28, 2022, and January 28, 2023. The recommendations of the Risk
Management Committee have been accepted by the Board. The details of Composition and
attendance of the members at the Risk Management Committee are given below:

Name of the Members Categories No. of Meetings
Held Attended
Mr. Rajesh Sharma Chairman 4 4
Mr. Beni Prasad Rauka | Member 4 4
Ms. Bhagyam Ramani Member 4 4

Asset Liability Management Committee

The Asset Liability Management Committee duly constituted by the Board of Directors has a well-
defined composition of members and terms of reference and are in accordance with the guidelines
for introduction of ALM system by housing finance companies as issued by the National Housing
Bank vide circular NHB (ND)/HFC (DRSREG)/ ALM/1407 /2002 dated June 28, 2002. As on March 31,
2023 the Asset Liability Management Committee comprised of Managing Director, Chief Financial
Officer and 2 (two) Senior Management Personnel from Treasury-, Credit, Risk & Policy business
functions of the Company. The Chairman of the Asset Liability Management Committee is Managing
Director of the Company.

Meeting and Attendance

During the year under review, Asset Liability Management Committee met 4 (Four) times viz. on
April 30, 2022, July 26, 2022, October 28, 2022, December 28, 2022 and March 23, 2023. The details
of Composition and attendance of the members at the Asset Liability Management Committee
Meetings are given below:

Name of the Members Categories No. of Meetings

Held Attended
Mr. Rajesh Sharma Chairman 5 4
Mr. Bhavesh Prajapati Member 5 5
Mr. Sandeep Kudtarkar Member 5 4

IT Strateqgy Committee

The IT Strategy Committee duly constituted by the Board of Directors has a well-defined
composition of members and terms of reference are in accordance with the Information Technology
Framework for HFCs (“Guidelines”) vide its notification no. NHB/ND/DRS/ Policy Circular No.
90/2017-18 dated June 15, 2018. As on March 31, 2023, the IT Strategy Committee of the Board
comprised of an Independent Director and 3 (three) Senior Management Personnel. The Chairman
of the IT Strategy Committee is an Independent Director of the Company.

Meeting and Attendance




During the year under review, the IT Strategy Committee met 2 (Two) times viz. on April 30, 2022
and October 28, 2022. The details of Composition and attendance of the members at the IT Strategy
Committee Meetings are given below:

Name of the Members Categories No. of Meetings

Held Attended
Mr. Beni Prasad Rauka Chairman 2 2
Ms. Divya Sutar Member 2 2

ANNUAL EVALUATION OF BOARD, ITS COMMITTEES, INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS AND MANAGING
DIRECTOR

The Company has formulated a Policy on Board Evaluation. An annual performance evaluation of the
Board, its Committees, individual directors and managing director, in an independent and fair
manner was carried out in accordance with the Company’s Board Evaluation Policy for the financial
year ended March 31, 2023.

The performance of the Board, individual directors and managing director was evaluated by the
Board seeking inputs from all the Directors. The performance of the Committees was evaluated by
the Board seeking inputs from the Committee Members. The Nomination and Remuneration
Committee reviewed the responses received and forwarded its recommendations to the Board. This
was followed by a Board Meeting that discussed the performance of the Board, its Committees,
individual directors and managing director. A separate meeting of Independent Directors was also
held to review the performance of Non-Independent Directors, performance of the Board as a whole
and performance of the Managing Director of the Company.

The criteria for performance evaluation of the Board included aspects like Board composition and
structure, effectiveness of Board processes, information and functioning etc. The criteria for
performance evaluation of Committees of the Board included aspects like composition of
committees, effectiveness of Committee Meetings etc. The criteria for performance evaluation of
the individual directors included aspects on contribution to the Board and Committee Meetings like
preparedness on the issues to be discussed, meaningful and constructive contribution and inputs in
meetings etc. The criteria for performance evaluation of Managing Director included aspects on
fulfillment of his duties, skills and knowledge updation and his participation during board
deliberations on strategy, performance, risk management etc.

The performance evaluation of Independent Directors was based on the criteria viz. attendance at
Board and Committee Meetings, skill, experience, ability to challenge views of others in a
constructive manner, knowledge acquired with regard to the Company’s business, understanding of
industry and global trends etc.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to Section 134(3)(c) read with Section 134(5) of the Act with respect to Directors’
Responsibility Statement, the Directors hereby confirm that:

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been
followed and that no material departure has been made in following the same;



b) appropriate accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently and judgments and
estimates made are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the Company for that
period,;

c) proper and sufficient care for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of Act have been taken for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;

d) the annual accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis;

e) internal financial controls to be followed by the Company had been laid down and such internal
financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively; and

f)  proper systems have been devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

AUDITORS
A. STATUTORY AUDITORS

In terms of Section 139 of the Act and the rules made thereunder and RBI Circular
D0S.CO.ARG/SEC.01/08.91.001/2021-22 dated April 27, 2021, appointed M/s. G.M. Kapadia & Co.,
Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration Number: 104767W), as the Statutory Auditors of the
Company for a period of three years from the conclusion of the Fifteenth Annual General Meeting
till the conclusion of Eighteenth Annual General Meeting of the Company.

Auditors’ Report

There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks made by the Statutory Auditors, in their
Audit Report for the financial year 2022-23.

B. SECRETARIAL AUDIT

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 204 of the Act read with Rule 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company appointed
M/s. Sandeep P Parekh & Co., Company Secretaries (COP No.: 7693), for conducting Secretarial Audit.
The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended March 31, 2023, is appended to this Report
as Annexure lll. There are no qualifications, reservations, adverse remarks or disclaimers made by
Secretarial Auditors, in their Audit Report.

C. REPORTING OF FRAUDS BY AUDITORS
During the year under review, the Statutory Auditors and the Secretarial Auditor have not reported
any instances of frauds committed on the Company by its Officers or Employees, to the Audit

Committee under Section 143(12) of the Act, details of which need to be mentioned in this Report.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE PROVISIONS OF SECRETARIAL STANDARD

The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and that such systems
are adequate and operating effectively.



The applicable Secretarial Standards, i.e. SS-1 and SS-2, relating to ‘Meetings of the Board of
Directors’ and ‘General Meetings’, respectively, have been duly complied by your Company.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Board has constituted Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee in accordance with
Section 135 of the Act. The CSR Policy of the Company, inter alia, lists the activities that can be
undertaken or supported by the Company for CSR as envisaged in Schedule VII of the Act,
composition and meetings of CSR Committee, annual allocation for CSR activities, areas of CSR
projects, criteria for selection of CSR projects, modalities of execution/implementation of CSR
activities, the monitoring mechanism of CSR activities/projects.

The details of CSR Policy of the Company are available on the website of the Company at
https://caprihomeloans.com/assets/pdf/CGHFL_CSR_POLICY.pdf.

In terms of Section 135 of the Act, the details of the CSR spent during the year under review is
provided in the Annual Report on CSR activities as required under Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and attached to this report as Annexure 1V.

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

Your Company has a well-defined risk management framework in place and robust structure for
managing and mitigating risks. Your Company has a Board approved Risk Management Policy which
has laid down a framework for identifying, assessing, measuring various elements of risk involved in
the business and formulation of procedures and systems for mitigating such risks.

Risk Management Committee of the Board of Directors of your Company has overall responsibility
for overseeing the Risk Management activities of the Company, approving measurement
methodologies and appropriate risk management procedures across the organization.

Business team periodically places its report on risk management to the Risk Management
Committee and Audit Committee of the Board of Directors. During the year, your Company has
incorporated various practices and suggestion as directed by the Risk Management and Audit
Committee which helped the Company in attaining an improved vigilance and security system.
Details regarding the developments and implementation of risk management policy have been
covered in the Management Discussion and Analysis Report.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED INFORMATION

In accordance with the provisions of Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rule 5 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, a statement containing the
disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under the Act and the above
Rules, are appended to this Report as Annexure V.

As per the provisions of Section 136(1) of the Act, the reports and accounts are being sent to the
Members of the Company excluding the information regarding employee remuneration as required



pursuant to Rule 5(2) and Rule 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

The Board of Directors affirm that the remuneration paid to employees of the Company is as per the
Remuneration Policy of the Company and none of the employees listed in the said

Annexure/information is related to any Director of the Company.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The Board of Directors of the Company has formulated a policy on dealing with Related Party
Transactions, pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Act. The same is displayed on the website
of the Company at https://caprihomeloans.com/assets/pdf/CGHFL_RPT Policy.pdf.

During the year under review, all the related party transactions were entered in the ordinary course
of business and on arm’s length basis. All related party transactions as required under Indian
Accounting Standards - 24 (Ind AS-24) are reported in Note 44 of Notes to the Financial Statements
of the Company.

Pursuant to Section 134(3)(h) of the Act read with Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,
there are no related party transactions that are required to be reported under Section 188(1) of the

Act, as prescribed in Form AOC-2.

ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to sub-section 3(a) of Section 134 and subsection (3) of Section 92 of the Act, the Annual
Return of the company as of March 31, 2023 is displayed on the website of the company at
https://www.caprihomeloans.com/assets/pdf/MGT-07%20-%20Website.pdf

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION,
PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

Your Company is an equal opportunity employer and is committed to ensuring that the work
environment at all its locations is conducive to fair, safe and harmonious relations between
employees. It strongly believes in upholding the dignity of all its employees, irrespective of their
gender or seniority. Discrimination and harassment of any type are strictly prohibited.

The Company has in place an appropriate Policy in accordance with the provisions of the Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013, to prevent
sexual harassment of its employees. All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary and trainees)
are covered under this Policy. The Policy has been widely communicated internally and is placed on
the Company’s intranet portal. The Company ensures that no employee is disadvantaged by way of
gender discrimination.

The Company has complied with the provisions relating to the constitution of Internal Complaints
Committee (ICC) under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and

Redressal) Act, 2013 to redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment.

During the year under review, no complaints were received from any of the employees.



CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND
OuUTGO

The Company is engaged in the financial services activities, its operations are not energy intensive
nor does it require adoption of specific technology and hence information in terms of Section
134(3)(m) of the Act read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is not applicable to the
Company. Nevertheless, the Company is vigilant on the need for conservation of energy.

There was no inflow or outflow of foreign exchange during the year under review.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES

Company being a housing finance company is exempt under the provisions of section 186(11) of the
Companies Act, 2013 and is not required to disclose particulars of loans given, guarantees given and
security provided.

The details of investments made by the Company are provided under note forming part of Financial
Statement of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2023.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY

There have been no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the
Company which have occurred between the end of the financial year to which the financial
statements relate and the date of this Report.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS

During the financial year 2022-23, there were no significant and material orders passed by the
Regulators or Courts or Tribunals impacting the going concern status and the Company’s operations
in future.

MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS

The maintenance of cost records, for the services rendered by the Company, is not required
pursuant to Section 148 (1) of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Cost Records and Audit)
Rules, 2014.
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Annexure |
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT

Overview

Capri Global Housing Limited (“CGHFL") is a Housing finance Company registered with National Housing
Bank. It is a wholly owned subsidiary of Capri Global Capital Limited and is engaged in the business of
providing home finance to “unbanked, undeserved and unserved”. Housing Finance Industry is being
viewed as an engine of economic growth with a major role to play in the country’s development.

Global economic activity is experiencing a broad-based and sharper-than-expected slowdown, with
higher inflation. The tightening of financial conditions in most regions, financial market volatility,
Russia-Ukraine war, and the lingering COVID-19 pandemic weigh heavily on the global growth. The
Indian economy continues to be resilient, despite the unsettling global environment. The country has
withstood the shocks from COVID-19 and the conflict in Ukraine. Despite these headwinds, strong
growth was witnessed in the third quarter in numerous economies, including the United States, Euro
area and major emerging markets and developing economies. However, growth has declined across
many major economies.

Industry Structure and Developments

Housing sector bounced back from the impact of pandemic with the gradual unlock and resumption of
activities. The sector has demonstrated resilience in the form of quick revival with an increased demand
for home ownership. The pandemic brought about a change in the individual home buyers’ sentiment
in favour of owning a house. With easing of curbs, there was an increase of interest in the residential
housing sector and more so in the readily available and affordable segment.

Affordable Housing Finance

Affordable housing is a crucial sub-segment in the housing and real estate sector. Real estate prices are
gradually rising led by the pent-up ready inventory and keenness of potential homebuyers. Continuous
support of the Indian government in the affordable real estate sector is driving demand further. With
the Credit-linked Subsidy Scheme, homebuyers of the economically weaker sections are finding it easier
to acquire a home. The Reserve Bank of India (RBI) doubled the limit for individual housing loans
offered by urban cooperative banks (UCBs) and rural cooperative banks (RCBs) to improve credit flow
for the housing sector. Given the rise in housing prices, the revised limits will facilitate the growth of
the sector.

In the Union Budget 2023-24, the Finance Minister announced increased allocation for Pradhan Mantri
Awas Yojna by 66% to over 279,000 Crore. This step will significantly boost the growth of this sector.
Moreover, the Budget also announced a slew of measures to further extend support to the sector:

» Launch of the Urban Infrastructure Development Fund (UIDF) to improve urban infrastructure in
Tier 2 and Tier 3 cities

> Allocation of USD 9.85 Billion to the Ministry of Housing and Urban to construct housing for both
urban and rural residents

» Allocation of USD 130 Billion to develop the infrastructure sector, providing a considerable boost to
the infrastructure industry across India

According to Techsiresearch, the Indian affordable housing sector was valued at USD 1.8 Billion in 2022
and is expected to grow at ~19.8% CAGR during 2022-2028. The sector is reaping the benefits that the
government has placed on urban infrastructural development and planning. The unwavering focus on
infrastructure will indirectly drive real estate growth in the future.



Opportunities and Threats

India’s home loan (HL) market (INR26trn; 17% of overall credit) is poised to double by FY28E on the
back of secular trends around improving affordability, rising urbanisation and penetration beyond Tier-|
locations. Driven by the combination of a sustained funding cost advantage, structural shift in sourcing
models, renewed focus on retail HL, and transient rate cycle tailwinds, banks (~67% of HL market) are
likely to continue dominating the prime HL segment. Affordable-focused HFCs (~INR1trn; 4% of HL
market) have emerged as high-growth, high-RoA businesses; however, given the superior economics,
HL segment is witnessing rising competitive intensity. Going forward, the market micro-structure is
likely to reflect newer collaborative models which are still evolving.

Secular demand trends: It is expected that India’s housing demand (largely end-use) to witness ~15-
16% CAGR during FY23-28E on the back of improving affordability, increasing penetration beyond Tier-I
locations, and rising pace of urbanization. Although affordability gains reversed during FY23 on the back
of a 250bps rate hike, it is believed that the secular trends will help sustain the longer-term
expansionary stage of the cycle.

Affordable-focused HFCs (AHFCs) - sweet but crowded trade: Affordable focused HFCs (~INR1trn) have
emerged as a high-growth (FY18-FY22 CAGR at 18%+) profit pool (RoA of ~3%) within the sub-INR2.5mn
segment. While even 2-year lagged credit costs for AHFCs are healthy at ~140bps (vs. pricing premium
of ~300bps), the early growth-RoA dynamic has attracted intense competition, and is likely to exert
pressure on either the growth curve or the super-normal spreads (~5%#+).

Going forward, house prices are expected to increase. However, the price increase is likely to be
gradual and not as sharp as that being witnessed in many of the other countries. The housing sales
boom in India has so far been led by end-user demand. Hence, increase in prices and interest rates may
not destabilize the housing growth momentum. Also, budget allocation of "48,000 crore for the
Pradhan Mantri Awas Yojana (PMAY) for FY 2022-23 and Continuation of ‘Pradhan Mantri Awas Yojana
Gramin (PMAY-G) till March 2024 and Pradhan Mantri Awas Yojana-Urban (PMAY-U) - other three
verticals except CLSS up to 31st December 2024 to build low-cost houses in urban regions across the
country is expected to boost the affordable housing segment.

iv. Business and Operational Overview

(Amount in INR Millions)

Particulars 2022-23 2021-22
Total Revenue 3,236.72 2,204.36
Less: Operating Expenses & Provisions 934.17 667.93
Profit before Interest, Depreciation & Taxes (PBIDT) 2,302.55 1536.43
Less: Depreciation 49.46 25.63
Less: Interest & Finance Charges 1,479.80 953.62
Profit Before Tax 773.29 557.18
Less: Tax Expenses 152.82 12541
Profit After Tax (PAT) 620.47 431.77
Transfer to Reserve (Under Section 29C of the National 164.98 86.40
Housing Bank Act, 1987)
Earnings per Share (EPS) (Rs.) 8.71 7.11
Net Worth 5188.83 4,580.12
Loan Book / Assets Under Management (AUM) 26656.91 17474

The company continued its focus on providing housing loan to first time home buyers belonging to middle
and lower income earning families, much in line with focus of the Prime Ministers Awas Yojana (PMAY).
Loan book of the Company grew by 52.55% to INR 26,656.91 Million as compared to INR 17,474 Million of
the last year.



The Company'’s total revenue from operations increased by 46.83% to INR 3,236.72 Million as compared to
INR 2,204.36 Million of the previous year. Profit After Tax increased by 43.70% to INR 620.47 Million for
the year as compared to profit of INR 431.77 Million for the previous year.

The Gross NPA of the Company stood at 1.2% and the Net NPA was at 0.8% as of March 31, 2023. Average
ticket size of the loan was maintained at INR 1.1 Million with 24,335 live loan accounts at the end of the
year under review.

Company carried out business through presence at 161 locations spread over 10 states i.e., Maharashtra,
Gujarat, Madhya Pradesh, Delhi, Rajasthan, Uttar Pradesh, Haryana, Chhattisgarh, Uttarakhand and Punjab
during the year. Company has disbursed loans amounting to INR 12,430 Million as compared to INR 7,845
Million in the previous year, recording a growth of 58.44%.

Liguidity Position and Borrowings

The Company has comfortable liquidity cushion in terms of Cash & bank balances of INR 520.66 Million as
at end of FY 2023. The Company is well positioned in meeting its short term and medium-term obligations.

The Company has strengthened its relationships with banks /financial institution and got sanctions of
INR 8,600 Million during FY2023. As of March 31, 2023, outstanding borrowings from Public sector, private
sector banks, financial institutions in term loans and re-finance were INR 21,228.90 Million in FY 2022-23.
During FY 2023 the Company has raised fresh resources from term loans and other facilities from banks to
the tune of INR 15,874.80 Million, refinance from National Housing Bank of INR 5,354.10 Million.

Product Performance

The Company had continued with strategy of going granular and focused on sourcing small ticket size loans
in its vertical, spread over wider geographical area resulting into de-risking the loan portfolio, better
control over delinquencies and better risk spread in the medium to long term.

v. Risks and Concerns

Being in the lending business, Risk Management forms a vital element of our business. The Company has
a well-defined Risk Management framework, approved by the Board of Directors. It provides the
mechanism for identifying, assessing and mitigating risks.

The company has a Risk Management Committee (RMC) and an Asset Liability Management (ALM) Policy
approved by the Board. The Board has constituted the Asset Liability Committee (ALCO) to assess the risk
arising out of the liquidity gap and interest rate sensitivity.

During the year, the RMC reviewed the risk associated with the business, its root cause and the efficacy
of the measures taken to mitigate the same. ALCO also reviewed the risks arising from the liquidity gap
and interest rate sensitivity and took decisions to mitigate the risk by ensuring adequate liquidity through
the maturity profile of the Company’s assets and liabilities.

Major risks and their mitigation measures:

SI. | Risk Impact Mitigation measures

No.

1 Credit risk The delinquencies may result | Origination and appraisal
The most common risk in monetary losses, higher | CGHFL has stipulated prudent
faced by any lending NPAs and deterioration of | lending policies for each of the
institution is the inability asset quality and ultimately | business vertical, considering the
on the part of the capital adequacy. risk involved with different




borrower to repay the
loan.

This is followed by a thorough
assessment of the potential
customers’  soundness  of
business and  long-term
viability by analysing cash
flows.

products and customer profiles.
The Company has designed a
robust and dynamic credit
appraisal system to minimise the
probability of default. Its credit
appraisal system conducts
customer meetings (business and
residence) and field investigations,
credit information bureaus checks,
in-house technical and legal
verification, adequate loan to
value ratio and term cover for
insurance. There is thorough
reference  checks of  the
borrower’s overall goodwill and
integrity in the market. This is
followed by a thorough business
assessment and long-term viability
by analyzing cash flows of the
potential customers.

All loans are fully secured by way
of mortgages and CGHFL has first
and exclusive charge on collateral
properties.

Company has put in place an
inhouse Fraud Control Unit, having
expert  knowledge in fraud
detection and forensic analysis of
documents, this helps in detection
and elimination of potential frauds
on the Company.

Operational risk
Operational Risk is the risk
of possible losses, arising
due to lack of proper flow
and inadequate controls
over the internal
processes, people,
systems and operations of

Operational lapses could lead
to adverse impact on the
sustainability of the business
in the long-term and loss of
profitability.

CGHFL has a state-of-the-art
technology driven process flow
and operational control system
and a responsive customer portal
for enhanced efficiency and
deeper engagement with the
customers. The Company’s
internal control infrastructure is

the Company. well-aligned with its underwriting
and collection processes, which
are managed by a highly
competent and trained team.

Liquidity risk A skewed asset-liability profile | CGHFL has dedicated treasury

Liquidity risks emanate
from the gaps in financing
activity.

can potentially initiate a
liquidity shortfall and result in
significantly higher costs of
funds.

team to manage liquidity and
monitor fund availability and
deployment on daily basis. Reports
are submitted to ALCO members,
and are used to make relevant
liquidity forecasts on quarterly




basis for the succeeding 6 months.
Company’s has exposure to all
long-term funds with repayment
tenure of 5-8 years and are
sourced from banks and FI's.
There is nil exposure to
commercial papers. CGHFL'’s is in
strong position to mobilise funds
for its growth having decent
capital adequacy ratio.

Strategic and business risk
It is the risk to earnings
and capital arising from
volatile macro-economic
conditions, sudden
changes in the business
environment or adverse
business decisions.

Lack of timely response to
such unforeseen conditions
can lead to major tremors in
the business. Entry of new
competitors leading to loss of
market share, higher costs of
funding resulting in
contraction  of  available
spreads, slow-down in certain
customer segments,
employee attrition are some
of the potential business risks
faced by the Company.

The CGHFL's strategy, business
and risk teams keep a track of key
economic trends, sector
developments and market
competition, which allows us to

take well-informed and in-time
strategic ~ decisions.  CGHFL’s
customised and  tailor-made

lending solutions are designed
keeping in mind the needs of
individuals for a faster market
penetration. Business issues which
are of strategic importance are
referred to the Board members,
who are experts with rich
experience in their respective
fields. Intense  brainstorming
sessions are conducted to
evaluate and design the relevant
strategies, which help us in
tackling the business uncertainties
and  circumventing  business
disruptions.

During COVID pandemic, the
company took a cautious
approach & refrained from doing
fresh business. However, company
resumed its business in a
staggered and selective manner
once the lockdown was over after
considering impact of COVID and
collections performance of some
of the geographies.

Interest rate risks

Volatility in interest rates can
have a negative impact on the

borrowing costs of the
Company, decline in interest
income and net interest

margins. This can cause a
mismatch on the Company’s
asset-liability position and

Interest rate movements are
tracked and reviewed by ALCO on
a quarterly basis. The base lending
rate i.e. Long Term Reference Rate
(LTRR) is fixed. Most of Company’s
portfolio is built on floating
interest rates. Interest rates are
primarily market driven and




could lead to lower
profitability and lower returns.

CGHFL’s interest risk strategy is
well adept at managing the
changing market dynamics.

Regulatory

and Compliance risk
CGHFL is registered with
the National Housing Bank
as a Housing Finance
Company

Non-compliance of the rules,
regulations and statutes leads
to stringent actions and
penalties from the Regulator
or Statutory Authorities.

CGHFL has a separate compliance
department, headed by a Senior
Personnel. The Company keeps
itself abreast with all recent
developments and changes in the
regulatory framework/ guidelines
to ensure a timely, effective and
proper  implementation  and
compliance.  CGHFL  diligently
complies with Capital Adequacy
Norms, Fair Practice Code, Asset
Classification, KYC/PMLA
Guidelines, Provisioning Norms,
Corporate Governance framework,
Timely Reporting with
NHB/RBI/SEBI /Ministry of
Corporate Affairs, etc. among
others to ensure a comprehensive
Compliance framework. This is
continuously reviewed and
monitored by a robust Internal
Audit and control framework.

Information  Technology
risk  (including  Cyber
Security)
Company
Information
systems
loan

deploys
Technology
including ERP,

management
applications, Data
Historian and  Mobile
Solutions to support its
business processes,
communications and
customer details and loan
records.

Data integrity and physical
safeguarding of assets.

Risks could primarily arise
from the unavailability of
systems and / or loss or
manipulation of information,
Information data security,
freeware  or  unlicensed
software installed on end
points.

To mitigate risks, the Company
deployed Application Whitelisting
solution to specify index of
approved software applications or
executable files that are permitted
to be present on the systems,
deployed MDM solutions, blocked
USB Ports of all IT assets, deployed
EMS security, policy based DLP
solution.

To curb cyber security risk the
company also proposed to
implement WAF (Web Application
Firewall) to mitigate threats
against all web facing applications

Systems are upgraded regularly
with the latest security standards.
For critical applications, security
policies and procedures are
updated on a periodic basis and
users are educated on adherence
to the policies so as to eliminate
data leakages.

Vi.

Internal control systems and their adequacy




Vii.

Company has in place adequate internal control systems commensurate with the size and nature of its
operations. Internal control systems comprising of policies and procedures and well-defined risk and
control matrix are designed to ensure orderly and efficient conduct of business operations, safeguard
company’s assets, prevention and detection of errors and frauds, ensure strict compliance with
applicable laws and assure reliability of financial statements and financial reporting.

An extensive program of internal audits, and regular reviews by the Audit Committee is carried out to
ensure compliance with the best practices. The efficacy of internal control systems is tested periodically
by Internal Auditors and internal control over financial reporting is tested and certified by Statutory
Auditors.

Human Resource Development

Company values its relationship with all employees and ensures that each of team members feel
connected and share the broader vision of making a positive social impact by bridging the credit gap.

Company’s people’s team, guided by the top management, relentlessly undertakes various people-
centric activities to keep employees engaged and provides them with suitable opportunities.

The Company has ensured that the employees’ skills are continuously uplifted so that employees can
handle challenges while staying abreast with the functional domain knowledge of the Non-Banking
Financial Services Industry. Employee recognition has always been an essential element for the Company
in motivating, retaining and fully engaging the employees which leads to achieving the organizational
goals and in turns helps to create a positive environment at workplace. The Company has quarterly as
well as yearly rewards for exceptional performers and the performance appraisal systems have been
designed to recognize and reward exceptional performers. There are contests for employees to boost
their performance and reward them. Employees who have completed 5 year & 10 years have been
recognized for their loyalty in their services.

Company focuses on providing opportunities to each employee to grow and utilise their full potential.
Employee Engagement Initiatives:

CGHFL believes that Engagement relates to the level of an employee’s commitment and connection with
the organization. Employee engagement has emerged as a critical drive of business success in today’s
competitive marketplace. High level of engagement promotes retention of talent, foster customer loyalty
and improves organizational performance. Company’s focus lies in nurturing talent and recognizing their
efforts contributing towards meeting the organizational goal. Employees are given opportunities to take
up challenging role, this helps to keep employees engaged.

Fine balance between People & Technology:

While the advancement in HR technology is accelerating, the ongoing pace of progress of these
technologies is transforming how people carry out their work, and how HR supports their employees.
Technology makes it easier to gather and break down data on employees to get an overall picture. A
collaboration between people and technology has becomes an essence in today’s world and it becomes
important at building a collaborative workforce by bringing people and technology in one frame.
Collaboration has always been known to make things work more effectively. CGHFL with the help of
inhouse technology team have evolved HR process which, has reduced manual intervention and has
automated routine administrative tasks and has helped focus on strategic aspects of HR functions. In
order to facilitate the process, tools like self-service employee portals, onboarding, exits, performance
reviews and an interface is created for prospective candidates to complete their process during the offer
stage. With the help of technology data management is simplified, and the data is available with a click of



a button. The technology has enabled, collection and delivery of information, as well as communicate
with employees more easily and efficiently.

Gender equality among organization:

In today’s dynamic business environment, achieving gender equality is the factor for competitiveness and
growth of any organization. To create an inclusive and dynamic economy, CGHFL ensures that everyone
receives an equal opportunity to succeed. Gender equality in the workplace refer to a variety of culture,
practices and attitude that promotes or subvert attempts to create a gender equal workplace. CGHFL
ensures that equal opportunity is given to all employees without gender discrimination. It also includes
providing equal chances of promotion, pay-rises, and inclusion in decision making process. CGHFL has
prioritized work life balance, strict and effective policies are created against harassment at workplace. An
open-minded culture is created which gives the employees an opportunity to exchange ideas & nurture
their career in the organization which leads to long term success for the organization as well as the
employee’s.
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Capri Global Housing Finance Limited
Nomination and Remuneration Policy

This Policy has been laid down on the recommendations of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the
Board, and is in compliance with the requirements of the Section 178 Companies Act, 2013.

1.1  Objectives

The Policy lays down the:

() Criteria for determining inter-alia qualification, positive attributes and independence of Directors for
their appointment on the Board of the Company;
(i) Criteria for payment of remuneration to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other Employees.

1.2  Definitions
i.  “Board” means Board of Directors of the Company.

i.  “Company” means “Capri Global Housing Finance Limited.”

ii.  “Employees’ Stock Option” means the option given to the Directors, Officers or Employees of a company
or of its holding company or subsidiary company or companies, if any, which gives such Directors, Officers
or Employees, the benefit or right to purchase, or to subscribe for, the shares of the Company at a future
date at a pre-determined price.

iv.  A.‘fitand proper ‘shall mean an individual who is :
a. more than thirty years in age;
b. agraduate;
c. has minimum five years experience;
d. aperson of integrity, reputation and character in the opinion of the Committee;

v.  “Independent Director” means a director referred to in Section 149 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

vi.  “Key Managerial Personnel” (KMP) means
a) Chief Executive Officer or the Managing / Executive Director or the Manager,
b) Company Secretary,
C) Whole-time Director,
d) Chief Financial Officer and
e) Such other officer as may be prescribed.

vii.  “Committee” shall mean the Nomination & Remuneration Committee of Board of Directors of the

Company, constituted in accordance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013.

viii. ~ “Policy or This Policy” means, “Nomination and Remuneration Policy.”
ix.  “Managerial Person” means the Managing Director, Whole-time Director and/or Manager.
X.  “Remuneration” means any money or its equivalent given or passed to any person for services rendered

by him and includes perquisites as defined under the Income-tax Act, 1961.
xi.  “Senior Management” means, personnel of the Company who are members of its core management team
excluding Board of Directors and who may be qualified to become directors.
1.3  Interpretation

Terms that have not been defined in this Policy shall have the same meaning assigned to them in the Companies
Act, 2013, SEBI Act, 1992, as notified by the Securities and Exchange Board of India from time to time.
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Appointment and Removal of Managerial Person, Director, Key Management Personnel and Senior
Management Personnel

Appointment criteria and qualifications:

a) The Committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity, qualification, expertise and experience of the
person for appointment as Managerial Person, Director, KMP or Senior Management Personnel who
may be qualified to become directors and recommend to the Board his / her appointment.

b) The Committee has discretion to decide whether qualification, expertise and experience possessed by
a person are sufficient / satisfactory for the designated position.

c) With respect to appointment of a Senior Management Personnel other than the one mentioned
above, the Human Resource Department with the consultation/advice/recommendations of the
respective Functional Heads/Promoter Director of the Company, as the case may be, can decide on
their appointments and the same need not be recommended to the Committee/Board as the case
may be.

Term / Tenure:

a) The Company shall appoint or re-appoint a person as its Managerial Person by passing of a
resolution and disclosure of such appointment in the Directors Report forming part of the Annual
Report.

b) No Independent Director shall hold office for more than two consecutive Terms, but such
Independent Director shall be eligible for appointment after expiry of three years of ceasing to
become an Independent Director.

c) Provided that an Independent Director shall not, during the said period of three years, be
appointed in or be associated with the Company in any other capacity, either directly or indirectly.
Term can be for a maximum period of five years.

d) the time of appointment of Independent Director it should be ensured that number of Boards on
which such Independent Director serves, is restricted to seven listed companies as an
Independent Director and three listed companies as an Independent Director in case such person
is serving as a Whole-time Director of the Company.

Removal:

Due to reasons for any disqualification mentioned in the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’), rules made there
under or under any other applicable Act, rules and regulations, the Committee may recommend, to the
Board with reasons recorded in writing, removal of a Managerial Person, Director, subject to the
provisions and compliance of the Act, rules and regulations.

Retirement:
The Managerial Person, Director, KMP and Senior Management shall retire as per the applicable provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the prevailing policy of the Company. The Board will have the discretion to
retain the Managerial Person, Director, and KMP, Senior Management in the same position / remuneration
or otherwise even after attaining the retirement age, for the benefit of the Company.
Disqualifications for Appointment of Directors

A person shall not be eligible for appointment as director of the company if:

a) heis of unsound mind and stands so declared by a competent court;

b) he is undischarged insolvent;
c) he has applied to be adjudicated as an insolvent and his application is pending;



d) He has been convicted by a court of any offence, weather involving moral turpitude or otherwise, and
sentenced in respect thereof to imprisonment for not less than six months and a period of five years
has not elapsed from the date of expiry of the sentence:

Provided that if a person has been convicted of any offence and sentenced in respect thereof to
imprisonment for a period of seven years or more, he shall not be eligible to be appointed as a
director in any company:

1) An order disqualifying him for appointment as a director has been passed by a court or
Tribunal and the order in force;

2) He has not paid any calls in respect of any shares of the company held by him whether alone
or jointly with others and six months have elapsed from the last day fixed for the payment of
the call;

3) He has been convicted of the offence dealing with related party transactions under section
188 at any time during the last preceding five years; or

4) He has not complied with sub-section (3) of section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013.

ii.  Apersonwho has been a Director of the company which:

a) has not filed financial statements or annual returns for any continuous period of three financial years;
or

b) has failed to repay the deposits accepted by it or pay interest thereon or to redeem any debentures
on the due date or pay interest due thereon or pay dividend declared and such failure to pay or
redeem continues for one year of more,

shall be ineligible to be appointed as a director of the Company for a period of five years from the date
on which the other company fails to do so.

ii. A person shall not be eligible for appointment and continuance as a Director, if he / she is not found ‘fit
and proper’ by the Committee.

1.6  Remuneration Policy

Remuneration Policy of Company is designed to attract, motivate, and retain manpower in a competitive
environment considering qualification, positive attribute, integrity and independence, and is guided by the
common reward framework and set of principles and objectives. The Remuneration Policy applies to the
Company’s Senior Management Personnel, including its Key Managerial Person and the Board of Directors.

The policy captures remuneration strategies, policies and practices of Company, including compensation, variable-
compensation, equity-based plans and the process for the measurement and assessment of employee and
executive performance. The remuneration / compensation / commission etc. to the Managerial Person, Director,
KMP and Senior Management Personnel (who may be qualified to become directors) will be determined by the
Committee and recommended to the Board for approval.

1.6.1 Remuneration Strategy for Employees at Company

The Company adopts a total compensation philosophy in rewarding employees. The Total compensation package
for the employees comprises of Fixed and Variable Component. Fixed pay consists of the base salary and any
recurring, regular allowances payable in the specific location. Variable pay includes performance bonuses and
ESOP’s for eligible employees.

The level of Total compensation is designed to be appropriate to attract, retain and motivate employees to
contribute their best. In determining the Total compensation of employees, the Company takes into account the
role and its responsibilities, the individuals’ and teams’ performance, and the Company’s performance, as well as
market factors. The Company’s remuneration strategy is market-driven and aims at attracting and retaining high
caliber talent.

Factors such as profitability and achievement of key performance indicators are taken into consideration, in
determining the bonus pool for the Company and its business units. Individual bonus allocation is based on



performance against various set of pre-defined objectives.

The strategy is in consonance with the existing industry practice and is directed towards rewarding performance,
based on review of achievements, on a periodical basis.

1.6.2

Remuneration of Key Management Personnel

The Company shall review, at least annually, the Key Management personnel’s remuneration arrangements in light
of current market benchmarks and expert advice on remuneration levels and, with due consideration to law and
corporate governance principles.

Remuneration of the Key Management Personnel consists of a fixed component and a variable performance
incentive. The annual appraisal of the Key Management personnel is based on a detailed performance evaluation
of their Key Performance Indicators (KPI's)

Vi.

Vil.

viii.

a)

1.6.3

Fixed Component: Consists of Basic Pay (Usually 40%-60% of the gross Fixed Salary).

Perquisites: In the form of house rent allowance/ accommodation, reimbursement of medical expenses,
conveyance, children education, telephone, communication equipments like Ipad’s etc.

Retirement Benefits: Pension contributions, Gratuity payments are made in accordance with applicable
laws and employment agreements.

Severance payments: In accordance with termination clauses in employment agreements, the severance
payment is in accordance with applicable local legal framework.

Personal benefits: Based on employment agreements and Company policy, Company Car and Driver is
provided to specific grade.

Medical Insurance — Coverage of Rs. 5 Lacs every year to the personnel, his/her spouse, two children and
parents (In case of female employees they can choose the option for including their in-laws in lieu of her
parents).

Term Insurance — Coverage between Rs. 50 Lacs to Rs. 1 Cr. based on the grade.

Variable pay is linked to the below three factors:

a) the financial results of the company;

b) targets achieved;

c) theindividual performance and that of the department/team

Annual Performance Linked Bonus: Individual bonus allocation takes performance ratings and
performance against various set of objectives mentioned below into consideration:

In the beginning of the year the Board sets the organization performance objectives based on qualitative
and quantitative measures.

These objectives are reviewed periodically to ensure they remain consistent with the Company’s priorities
and the changing nature of the Company’s business.

These objectives form part of the performance targets for the Managerial Personnel.

Performance against these objectives is reviewed annually by the Board and is reflected in the Managerial
Personnel’s remuneration review.

Remuneration of Non-executive Directors including Independent Directors

The Non-Executive Directors of the Company (who are not in the employment of the Company and/or its
subsidiaries/associates) shall be paid sitting fees as per the limits prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.



Commission, if any, payable to NEDs shall be approved by the Board of the Company based on the
recommendation of the Committee.

An independent Director shall not be entitled to any Stock Options of the Company.
1.7  Deviations from the Policy

Deviations on elements of this policy in extraordinary circumstances, when deemed necessary in the interests of
the Company, will be made if there are specific reasons to do so in an individual case.

1.8 Amendments

The Remuneration policy may be reviewed by the Board of the Company on the recommendation of the
Nomination & Remuneration Committee of the Board.



Annexure Il
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Company Secretaries

FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

CAPRI GLOBAL HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED
CIN: U65990MH2006PLC161153

502, Tower A, Peninsula Business Park,
Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel,

Mumbai 400013

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable, statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by CAPRI GLOBAL HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED (hereinafter
called the “Company”). The Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a
reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my
Opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the data provided to us, w.r.t Minutes, forms and its attachment and returns
filed by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of
secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period
covering the financial year ended 315t March, 2023, complied with the statutory provisions listed
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in
place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the data provided by Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2023
according to the provisions of:

(1) The Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the rules made thereunder;

(2) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;

(3) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(4) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the
extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial

Borrowings; (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)

(5) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of
India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-

(&) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011; (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;
(Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018; - (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations,
2014; - (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations,
2008; (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)

B-410, BSEL Tech Park, Sector — 30A, Opp. Vashi Railway Station, Vashi, Navi Mumbai — 400705.
Tel (022) 27811500/27812500/41234248| email: sandeep@sppc.co.in, Www.Sppc.co.in




s Sandeep P Parekh & Co

Company Secretaries

() The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; - (Not
applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; -
(Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998 ;-(Not
applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)

(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015;

(6) The following laws, regulations, directions, orders are applicable specifically to the Company and
as confirmed by Mr. Rajesh Sharma, Managing Director, same have been Complied by the
Company :

a) The National Housing Bank Act, 1987 and the circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder;

b) The Housing Finance Companies (NHB) Directions, 2010;

c) Master Circular on Fair Practice Code for Housing Finance Companies;

d) Master Circular-Housing Finance Companies- Corporate Governance (NHB) Directions, 2016;

e) Master Directions — Non-banking financial companies — Housing Finance Companies (Reserve
Bank of India ) Directions, 2021; and

f) The Prevention of Money Laundering Act, 2002 read with the rules made thereunder

We have also examined compliances with the applicable clauses of the following:

1. Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
2. The Listing Regulation entered into by the Company with BSE Limited. (Not applicable to the
Company during the Audit Period)

We further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted. The changes in the composition of the Board
of Directors and the Key Managerial Personnel that took place during the period under review were
carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board / Committee Meetings, agenda and
detailed notes on agenda were also sent adequately, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining
further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful
participation at the meeting.

Majority decision at the Board meeting is taken unanimously.

As informed to us, we further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with
applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

During the period under review, the Company has complied with provisions of Acts and Rules made
thereunder.
For Sandeep P Parekh & €o.

FCS No™7118, CP No: 7693

Sandeep P. Parekh

Place: Navi Mumbai

Date: 18/05/2023

UDIN: FO07118E000332894

This report is to be read with my letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure and forms an integral part of
this report.
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ANNEXURE TO THE SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter:

1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company.
My responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit.

2. | have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. | believe that the
process and practices | followed, provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.

3. | have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of
accounts of the Company.

4. Wherever required, | have obtained Management Representation about the compliance of
laws, rules and regulations and happening of events, etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of management.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to future viability of the Company nor of

the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the
Company.

For Sandeep P Parekh & Co.

FCS No: 7118, CP No: 7693
Sandeep P. Parekh

Place: Navi Mumbai

Date: 18/05/2023

UDIN: FO07118E000332894

B-410, BSEL Tech Park, Sector — 30A, Opp. Vashi Railway Station, Vashi, Navi Mumbai — 400705.
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Annexure -V

Details pertaining to employees pursuant to Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

Sr.No Particulars Relevant details

i. The ratio of the remuneration of each director | - | Mr. Rajesh Sharma (Managing Director) — 3.53x.
to the median remuneration of the employees
of the Company for the financial year 2022-23

ii. The percentage increase in remuneration of | - | Directors:

each Director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief 1) Mr. Rajesh Sharma (Managing Director) - NIL
Executive Officer, Company Secretary or
Manager, if any, in the financial year Key Managerial Personnel:

1) Mr. Rajesh Sharma, Chief Financial Officer - NA
2) Mr. Yashesh Bhatt, Company Secretary - NA

iii. The percentage increase in the median | - | 16.39%
remuneration of employees in the financial year

iv. The number of permanent employees on the | - | 1483 employees as on 31.03.2023 (368 employees
rolls of Company ason 31.03.2022)

V. Average percentile increase already made in the | - | Average increase in salary of eligible employees
salaries of employees other than the other than managerial personnel is NA.
managerial personnel in the last financial year
and its comparison with the percentile increase in Remuneration of Managing Director was not
the managerial remuneration and justification increased during FY 2022-23.

thereof and point out if there are any exceptional
circumstances for increase in the managerial
remuneration

Vi. It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration is paid as per the Remuneration Policy for the Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel and employees

* Remuneration does not include variable pay.

Note:

Employee performance is appraised based on the performance of the Company during the previous year and the change
in remuneration is made effective from the beginning of the financial year. The employees are paid revised
remuneration on June 30 every year.
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G. M. KAPADIA & CO.

{REGISTERED)

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
1007, RAHEJA CHAMBERS, 2113, NARTMAN POINT, MUMBAIL 400 021. INDIA

PHONE : (91-22) 6611 6611 FAX : (91-22) 6611 6600

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Capri Global Housing Finance Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Capri Global Housing
Finance Limited (“the Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023,
and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow
Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended, and a summary of

significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (“the standalone financial
statements™),

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“the Ind AS™)
and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at March 31, 2023, and its profit, total comprehensive income, its cash flows and
the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (“the SAs”). Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor 's Responsibility for
the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (“ICAI") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained
by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone
financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the Director’s Report and Management Discussion and Analysis
allectively referred to as “the other information™) but does not include the standalone

MUMBAI NEW DELHI CHENNAI 1BEJ'JI]M.!.I.IRI..I HYDERABAD JAIPUR



G. M. KAPADIA & CO.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the standalone financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone
Financial Statements

The Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated
in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance
including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in
accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to
the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do
50.

The Board of Directors of the Company is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s
financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error., and
to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial
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As part of an audit in accordance with the SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™) issued by the
Central Government in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure A™ a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit on the standalone financial
fements, we report that:
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a)

b)

c)

d)

e)

g)
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We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS
specified under section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on
March 31, 2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of
section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to the
standalone financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of
such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”. Our report expresses an
unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s
internal financial controls with reference to the standalone financial statement.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Company to its Managing Director during the year is in
accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with schedule V to the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its standalone financial statement;

ii.  The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or
accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term
contracts including derivative contracts;

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company;

iv. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, as stated in note no. 55(xv)(a), no funds have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any
other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s)
or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
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(b)

(c)

Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The Management has also represented, that, to the best of its knowledge
and belief, as stated in note no. 55(xv)(b), no funds have been received by
the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(*Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Based on the audit procedures that has been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has
caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of
rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material
misstatement,

v.  The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

For G. M. Kapadia & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.104767W

el

Atul Shah

Partner

Place: Mumbai Membership No. 039569
PARE IR 107 Sk M 203 UDIN:23039569BGURIC1080
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date to the members of Capri Global Housing
Finance Limited)

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company
and the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state
that:

(i) (a) (A) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment;

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of
intangible assets;

(b) The Property, Plant and Equipment were physically verified during the year by the
Management, which in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the
Company and nature of its business and no material discrepancies were noticed on
such verification;

(¢) The Company does not own any immovable properties. The lease agreements, where
the Company is the lessee, are duly executed in favour of the Company. Accordingly,
reporting under paragraph 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable;

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right
of Use assets) or Intangible Assets during the year. Accordingly, reporting under
paragraph 3(i)(d) of the Order is not applicable; and

(¢) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding
any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and
rules made thereunder. Accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3(i)(e) of the Order
is not applicable.

(i) (a) The Company does not hold any inventory as it is primarily engaged in lending
activities. Accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not
applicable; and

(b) During the year, the Company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits.
Accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(iii) The Company is a non-deposit taking non-banking financial company (“NBFC™)
registered with National Housing Bank (“NHB™).

During the year, in the ordinary course of its business, the Company has made
investments in, provided guarantee / security to and granted loans and advances in the
nature of loans, secured and unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships
and other parties. With respect to such investments, guarantees / security and loans and
advances:
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(iv)

)

(vi)

(b)

(c)

(d)

The investments made, guarantees provided, security given and the terms and
conditions of the grant of all loans and advances in the nature of loans and guarantees
provided in the normal course of business are not prejudicial to the interest of the
Company;

In respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans granted during the year in the
ordinary course of business, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of
interest have been stipulated and the repayment of loan and receipts of interest are
generally regular except there were cases which were not repaid / paid when they
were due or were repaid / paid with a delay. Such loans have been accounted for in
accordance with the Company’s policy on asset classification and provisioning as
described in note 2.4(viii) to the Standalone Financial Statements.

Having regard to the voluminous nature of loan transactions, it is not practicable to
furnish party-wise details of irregularities in this report. However, such details are
available with the Company. For details of total loans and advances which were
overdue as of March 31, 2023, refer note no. 33 to the Standalone Financial
Statements;

The following amounts are overdue for more than ninety days from companies or
any other parties to whom loan has been granted. The Company has taken reasonable
steps for recovery of the overdue amount of principal and interest;

(Rs. in millions)

Number of Principal Amount | Interest Overdue Total Overdue
Cases Overdue

293 342 - 3.42

(e)

(D

The provisions of paragraph 3(iii)(e) of the Order are not applicable to the Company
as its principal business is to give loans; and

The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans that were
either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

The Company has not advanced loans or made investments in or provided guarantees or
security to parties covered by section 185 and 186 of the Act. Hence reporting under
paragraph 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is a non-banking finance company and consequently is exempt from
provisions of section 73 or any other relevant provisions of the Act. Accordingly,
reporting under paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under
section 148(1) of the Act, for the business activities carried out by the Company. Hence
reporting under paragraph 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

(vii) In respect of statutory dues:
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statutory dues, as applicable, to the appropriate authorities. According to the
information and explanations given to us and based on verification carried out by us
on test basis, there are no arrears of statutory dues outstanding as on the last day of
the financial year concerned for a period of more than six months from the date, they
became payable; and

The details of statutory dues referred to in sub paragraph (a) above which have not
been deposited with the concerned authorities as on March 31, 2023, on account of
dispute are given below:

(Rs. in millions)

Name of the | Nature of | Amoun | Amount | Period to | Forum  where
statute dues t unpaid which the | dispute is
involve amount pending
d relates
Income Tax Regular 0.729 0.729 | AY 2018- | Assessing
Act, 1961 Assessment 2019 Officer
u's 143(3) of
the Act
Income Tax | Intimation 0.008 0.008 | A.Y 2019- | Assessing
Act, 1961 w's 143(1) of 2020 Officer
the Act
Income Tax Regular 1.471 1.471 | AY 2020- | Commissioner
Act, 1961 Assessment 2021 of Income Tax
w's 143(3) of (Appeal)
the Act
Income Tax | Intimation 0.004 0,004 | AY 2021- | Assessing
Act, 1961 w's 143(1) of 2022 Officer
the Act

(viii) There are no transactions which are not recorded in the books of account and have been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961.

(ix) (a)

(b)

(©)

The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the
payment of interest thereon to any lender;

The Company has not been declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or other lender;

The term loans availed by the Company during the year, were applied by the
Company for the purposes for which the loans were obtained other than temporary
deployment pending application of proceeds:

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on verification
carried out by us, the Company has not raised funds on short term basis.
Accordingly, reporting on paragraph 3(ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable;

The Company does not have subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly,
reporting on paragraph 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable; and
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reporting on paragraph 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable.

(x) (a) The Company has not raised monies by way of Initial Public Offer or Further Public
Offer (including debt instruments) during the year; and

(b) The Company has not made preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) during the year under audit and
hence reporting under paragraph 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(xi) (a) No instance of fraud by the Company or any material instance of fraud on the
Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year:

(b) Mo report under section 143(12) of the Act has been filed during the year by the
auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government; and

(c) No whistle-blower complaints were received during the year by the Company.

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under paragraph 3(xii) of the
Order is not applicable.

(xiii) Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the
Act and the details have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) (a) The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature
of its business: and

(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the
Company during the year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent
of our audit procedures.

(xv) In our opinion, during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash
transactions with its directors or persons connected with them and hence provisions of
section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) (a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934 (“the RBI Act™);

(b) The Company is a Housing Finance Company registered with the National Housing
Bank and is not required to obtain a Certificate of Registration from RBI as per the
RBI Act;

(¢) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (*CIC”) as defined in the
regulations made by RBI. Accordingly, reporting on paragraph 3(xvi)(c) of the Order
is not applicable; and

(d) The Group does not have any CIC as part of the Group as per definition of Group
contained in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 and
hence the reporting under paragraph 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

'I_l he Company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately

Preceding financial year.
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(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly

(xix)

(xx)

reporting under paragraph 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the
financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans
and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has
come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as
on the date of the audit report, that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities
existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one
year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to
the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the
facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(a) There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR™) on
other than ongoing projects requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in schedule VII
to the Act in compliance with second proviso to section 135(5) of the said Act.

Accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3(xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable for
the year.

(b) There are no unspent amounts towards CSR in respect of ongoing projects
requiring a transfer to a special account specified under section 135(6) of the Act.

Accordingly. reporting under paragraph 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable for
the year.

For GG. M. Kapadia & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.104767W

P

—

Atul Shah
Partner
Place: Mumbai Membership No. 039569

Dated this 16" day of May, 2023 UDIN:23039569BGURJCI080
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report to the members of Capri Global Housing Finance
Limited of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under section 143(3)(i) of the Act

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to the standalone financial
statements of Capri Global Housing Finance Limited (**the Company’") as of March 31,

2023 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for
the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system with reference to the standalone financial statements and such internal financial controls
with reference to the standalone financial statements were operating effectively as at March
31, 2023, based on the internal control with reference to the standalone financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
(“the Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI"™).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control with reference to the standalone financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s policies,
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to the standalone financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, issued by the ICAI and
deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and,
both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to the standalone financial
statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system with reference to the standalone financial statements and their
operating effectiveness.

@PAD Jug audit of internal financial controls with reference to the standalone financial statements
. -- obtalmng an um]ersmndmg of mtf:rnal financial cuntmls with referf:nce to thc
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and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk, both applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and, both issued by the ICAL

The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or
CrTor.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference
to the standalone financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to
financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance
of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company
are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material
effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the Standalone
Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to the
standalone financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to
the standalone financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

For G. M. Kapadia & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.104767W

e

Atul Shah
Partner
Membership No. 039569

0DIN:23039569BGURICI080

Place: Mumbai
Dated this 16" day of May, 2023
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CAPRI GLOBAL HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31. 2023

[¥ i Milliong)
Particulars Note No.| As at March 31, 2023 | As at March 11, 2022
ASSETS
{1} |Financisl assete
[ Cash and cash equivalents 3 31984 2314.20 |
[ Bank Balances other than included in (a) above 4 200.82 200,03
{d) Trade Recahvabies 5 0.1 1162
{(e) | Loans 3 2545050 15937.15
in Imvestments. 7 1. BO0.56 583.14
(g} Other financial sssets [ 51.79 [T
Total Financial Assets 1752492 20,148.35
(2} _|Non-Financial assets
[a) Current Tax Assels (M) ] 525 .44
[L:1] Fisets [Met] 10 110.9% TIE4
(] Iwestment properties 1 2 z
(d) Progerty, Plant snd Equipment 182 ] EA60
(e} Intangible Assats under development = 7433 1082 |
in Other intangitie assets 15.79 533 |
Other non-financial assets 13 9,27 35,69
[5] Asgets held for sale . 446
Total Non-Financial Assets 437.92 107.98
Total Assets 28,262.84 20,354.33
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
LIABILITIES
(1) |Financial Liabilities
(8} Derivative Financial Instruments 16A 17.67 3.79
- Payabies 14
() Trade Payables
(i} totad outstanding dues of macro enterprises and 036 0.75
Small entermrises
(i} total outstanding dues of crecktors other than 12163 6188
[i:]
(1} total cutstanding dues of micro entemises and
small enferorises
{if} totad outstanding dues of creditors other than .07 16.22
MeTo enienprises s small enterorses
(c] | Debt Securites 15 . N
{d] | Borrowings [Diher than Debe Securites) 168 21,238.21 14,578.35
&) Cither financial liabsites 17 1,600.21 1,065.13
Tatal Financial Liabilities 23,007.85 15,726.12 |
() |Non-Financial Liabilities
(a3 Cyrrent Tax Liabiiftes [Net) 13 712 3.05
by | Provisions 13 368.10 3056 |
(4] Other non-firencial Kabibties 0 204 1438 |
Total Non-Financial Liabilitiss 5616 48.08
Total liahilities 23,074.01 15,774.71
(3] | EQUITY
(a3 Equity i1 71104 TIL4
b} Cher aquity fJ] 4 476,79 1,868.08 |
Total equity 518883 4,580.11 |
Total equity and liabilities 28,262.84 20,354.33 |

The accomparrying notes are an intecral part of the Financial Statements,

In termes of our report attached fo{mmmmormmumm
For G. M. Kapadia & Co., 191 -

Chartensd Accountants —

[Firm Rexistration No; 1&!4?6?\\']

Rajesh Sharma Beni Raulka
Hanaging Director & Direch
Chief Financial Officer

DIN 00020037 DN 00295213
Priace: M York Piace! Mumiai

Bt

ACS-20431
Place: Mumbai

Date. My 16, 2023 Duabe: Moy 15, 2023




CAPRI GLOBAL HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

(% in Millions)
Year ended March 31, | Year ended March 31,
Particulars Mote 2023 2022
Revenue from Operations
(i) | Interest Income 23 2,769.19 1,924.71
(i} Fees [ncome 24 46.10 17.42
{iii) Met Gain on Derecognition of Financial Instrusmant 33.56 -
(v} | Met Gain on fair value changes 25 110.01 42.05
(v] | Sale of service 119.97 113.60
fvi) | Other operating Income 26 92.31 70.62
{I) |Total Revenue from Operations 3,171.14 2,168.40
(I} |Other Income 27 65.58 35.96
(III) |Total Income (I+II) 3,2356.72 2,204.36
Expenses
{n Finance costs 28 1,479.80 953.62
{i}__| Impairment on financial instruments 29 154.02 250,45
(i) | Employee benefit expense 30 510.52 231.56
{iv) | Depreciation and amortisation expense 12 49.45 25.63
{v) | Other expenses 31 260.53 176.92
) |Total expenses 2,463.43 1,647.18
(V) |Profit/(Loss) before Tax ( III - IV) 773.29 557.18
Tax expense
- Current tax 35 178.09 154.84
- Deferred tax 6 {10.81) {29.43)
- Income Tax Pertaining to earlier year {14.48) N
(VI) |Total tax expense 152.82 125.41
(VII) |Net Profit / (Loss) After Tax [ V - VI) 620.47 431.77
(VIII) |Other comprehensive income 32
(A} Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(i) Remeasurement of defined benefit plans (6.00) (0.48)
{il) [ncome tax relating to [tems that will not be reclassified to profit
or loss 1.51 0.12
(B) Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss
(i) Fair Valug Gain on time value of forward element of forward
contract in hedaing relationship (3.73) (1.80)
(i} Income tax refating to items that may be reclassified to profit or
loss 245 0.45
Other Comprehensive Income (11.77) {1.71)
(IX) |Total comprehensive incoma { VII + VIII) 608.70 430.06
(X) [Earmings per equity share
Basic (1) B.71 7.11
Diluted (%) 8.71 7.11

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements.

In terms of our report attached
For G. M. Kapadia & Co.
Chartered Accountants

(Firm Registration No: 104767W)

Atul Shah

Partnar

Membership No: 039569
Place: Mumbai

Date; May 16, 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

P

Rajesh Sharma i Prasad Rauka
Managing Directar & Chiaf )

Financial Officer At arscior
DIN 00020037 DIN 00295213
Place: New York Place: Mumbai

e

Company Secretary
ACS-20491
Place: Mumbai

Date: May 16, 2023



% m Millions)

Particulars Year ended March Year ended March
31, 2023 31, 2022
Cash Flows from Operating activities
Profit befone tax from continuing operations — J73.30 557.19
Adjustments to reconclie profit before tax to net cash flows -
Depreciation & amartisation 49.46 15.63
Impawment on financial instruments 154.02 25045
Met Gain on financial asset designated at FVPL {110.01) (42.05)]
Net Gain on Derecognition of Financial Inrtruermant {33.56) -
Share Based Payments to employees 19,84 4.68
Interest on Leased Assets 13.26 6,24
Prafity Loss On Sale Of Fxed Assets 0.26 0.63 |
Write OIY (Fixed L9 -
Profit On Sale Of Irvestment Property (6.300] {2.79)
Interest income [2,769.19)] (1,924.71)
Finance cost 1 65 54 953.62
Interast receved 2,673.03 1873.33 |
Interest Paid {1,468.32) [967.15)
Cashfiow from Dperating activity before working capital 771.52 744.07
Working capital changes -
Loans = (5,554.85) {5,926.56)
Trande recenables & Other Financal Assets 4.11 3.86
Other Non-financial Assets [9.57) [2i.04)
Trade payables 6237 29.00
Other financial & Non-financial liability 434.92 B02.79
|Prosisions 11.99 1.24 |
[Cash flows used in operating activities (7, 319.51) {4,569.64)
Income tax (177.58) [192.14)
Met cash ﬁﬂ; used in operating activities (7.497.49) (4,761.78)
Investing activities
Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment and intangible assats [107.35) (32.52)
Proceeds from sake of Property, Plant & Equipment and intangible assets 0.26 0.07
|Proceeds fram sale of [nvestment Properties 10.76 5.01 |
(Increase}/Decresse in Fied oeposit not considered as cash and cash equivaient 54.78 151.02
Purchase of imvestment In Mutual Funds {16,893.61) [7.414.33)
Procgeds from Sale of mvestment in Mutual funds 15,935.42 10,256.50
Sale/{Purchase) of mvestment in shares - net 447 5.26
Proceeds from Sale of investment (FTC) 20777 17841
Purchase of Investmant (PTC) _ [361.86) {761.55)
Met cash flows used in investing activities {1,109.37) 21,387.87
[Financing activithes
i princi ion of the lease labdity [28.55) {10.32)
Increase)/Decrasss i interest portion of tha leasa lability [13.26) [6.24)
Debt securies Redesmed - (250.00)]
Proceeds from Borrowings other than debt securities 10,100.00 5,440.00
Repayment of Bunmnq; other nan debk securitie: securities {3,445.29) [2,153.10)
| Eﬁue of EgI E - 1,500.00
financing activities 6,612.50 4,520.34
Met increasa) (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (1,994.36) 214643 |
Cash and cash at the beginning of year 2,314.20 167.77
and cash aquivalents at the end of the year 315.84 1,314.20
Components of cash and cash equivalents
[Cash on hand 43 3.49
Balances with banks
In current accounts 205.45 108.15
mgg%!munummlmmdinmwus 100.06 2,100.00
|Chegues, drafts on hand 8,69 2.56 |
Total cash and cash equivalents 319.84 231420 |

1. Cash flows arising on account of taxes on Income are not specifically bifurcated with respect to investing & financing activities
2. Previous Years figures have bean regrouped, wherever necessary to confirm to current, year's classification

In terms of our report attached
For G. M. Kapadia & Co.
Chartered Accountants

({Firm Registration No: 104767W)

Atul Shah

Partner

Membership No: 039569
Place: Mumbai

Date: May 16, 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

“'}T_.

Rajesh Sharma
Mamaging Drector &
Chief Financial Cfficer
DIN DOO20037

Piace: Mew York

L)
Yashesh Bhatt
Company Sacretary
ACS-20491
Place: Mumbai

Date: May 16, 2023

Ben Rauka
Independent Director

DIN DOZ95213
Place: Mumbai




CAPRI GLOBAL HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES [N EQUITY AS AT MARCH 31, 2023

&, Equity Share Capital
1] Cu r {® in Madligng )
Changes in equity Changes in equity
Balance as at April 01, 2022 | share capital due o m ::":::2“ share capital during the m':;;]m b
E current year
71204 F12.04 J12.04
{2} Previous year m % in Millorrs)
Changes in aguity Changes in egquity
Balarce as at April 01, 2021 | share copital due to m ::"x;’ shars capltal during the] N2 t;;::m .
peior pericd errors : clrrent vesr
BOT 14 = 607,14 10490 J12.04
{® in Milipns)
Dther Comprahensivae Income
Statutory Reserve P
inder Saction 29C of Hedging Reterve Employes R Total
the National Mousing | {Farward Contract - 0CT) !lvﬂtt;afﬂﬂm
Bank Act, 1987 !
244,70 {1,35) IM_SH 385808 |
244,70 (1.35) (0.a0)| 3,868.08
- = 52047
z [7.28) [CEL] (1L77)
- - - {164.99))
16499 - * 1499 |
40069 [B.63) {450 4,476.79 |
[T im Milons)
Other Compreh Income
Statutory Reserve
under Section 29Cof | Hedging Reserve mmm-:m Yotu)
tha National Housing | (Forward Contract - OCT) oct)
Bank Act, 1§87
|Batance as at April 01, 2021 | 158.30 s {0.04) 104292
Changes in accounting policy/fpror . - .
Restated balance as at April 01, 114286 T4L80 158.30 - (0.04) 204292
|2021
[Pepfit for the vege A31.77 - : it
(Other Compeehensve income | . (1.35) {0.36) (L
| logers)
| Divaderus * =
[ Transher from refnined samings 2 {8640 = [B6.40)
| Ackibion chyring the year 1,395.10 » B5.40 : : 146150 |
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CAPRI GLOBAL HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Corporate Information

Capri Global Housing Finance Limited (the Company) having principal place of business at Registered office, 502, Tower A, Peninsul
Business Park, Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai - 400013 is engaged in the business of providing loans primarily to customer
for purchase / construction / repair and renovation of residential property. The Company holds registration certificate No. 07.0139,16 wit
National Housing Bank under section 294 of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987 dated 18th July 2016

The standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of th
board of directors on May 22, 2023,

2. Significant accounting policies

2.1 Statement of compliance and basis of preparation and presentation

The Standalone financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companle
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time and notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (th
Act) along with other relevant provisions of the Act, Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company — Housing Finance Compan
{Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021, RBI/2020-21/73 DOR.FIN.HFC.CC,No.120/03.10.136/2020-21, dated 27 December, 2022 as amende
('the RBI Master Directions’) and notification for Implementation of Indian Accounting Standard vide circular RBI/2019-20/17
DOR(NBFC).CC.PD.No.109/22,10.106/2019-20 dated 13 March 2020 ("RBI Motification for Implementation of Ind AS) issued by RBI Th
Company uses accrual basis of accounting except in case of significant uncertainties [Refer note 2.3 (i), (i1}, (iv),(v)]. Accounting policie
have been consistently applied to all periods presented unless otherwise stated.

Any application of guidance / darification / directions issued by National Housing Bank (NHB) or other regulations are implemente
prospectively when they become applicable.

The standalone financial Statement has been prepared in accordance with and comply in all material aspects with Indian Accountin
Standards ('Ind AS') notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act’) read with the Companies (Indian Accountin
Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time and other accounting principles generally accepted in India on the historical cot
basis except for certaln financial instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period as explained in th
accounting policies below and the relevant provisions of the Act.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly-issued accounting standard s initially adopted or a revision to a
existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

The preparation of Standalone financial statements requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates and assumptions that affec
the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and the disclosed amount of contingent liabilities. Areas involving
higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions are significant to the Company are discussed in Note 2.1
Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions.

The Standalone financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (%) and all values are rounded to two decimal Millions, except whe
otherwise indicated,

2.2, Presentation of financial statement
The Company presents its balance sheet in the order of liquidity.

The Company prepares and present its Standalone Financial Statements in the format prescribed by Division III of Schedule IT1 to the At
as amended from time to time.

Financlal assets and financial liabilities are generally reported on a gross basis except when, there is an unconditional legally enforceabl
right to offset the recognised amounts without being contingent on a future event and the parties intend to settle on a net basis in th
following circumstances:

i. The normal course of business

li. The event of default

iii. The event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company and/or its counterparties

s

-_—



2.3 Revenue from operations

(i) Interest Income

Interest income is recognised by applying EIR to the gross carrying amount of financial assets other than credit-impaired assets and
financial assets classified as measured at FVTPL, taking into account the amount outstanding and the applicable interest rate. In case of
credit-impaired financial assets (as set out in note no. 2.6(vii) regarded as ‘Stage 37, the Company recognises interest income on the
amortised cost net of impairment loss of the financial asset, If the financial asset is no longer creditimpaired, the Group reverts to
calculating interest income on a gross basis.

The EIR is computed

a. As the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the finandal asset to the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset

b. By considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) in
estimating the cash flows

c. Including all fees paid or received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs, and all other premiums or discounts.

Loan processing fees on loans is collected towards processing of loan, this is amortised on EIR basis over the average life (after
considering the pre payment adjustment) of the loan for Home Loan and Indirect Lending.

(ii) Dividend Income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive the payment is established.

(iii) Fees & Commission Income

The Company recognises the fee and commission income not integral to EIR under Ind AS 109 in accordance with the terms of the
relevant customer contracts [ agreement and when it is probable that the Company will collect the consideration for items.

Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured at the amount of transaction price (net of variable consideration)
allocated to that performance obligation. The transaction price of goods sold and services rendered is net of variable consideration on
account of various discounts and schemes offered by the Company as part of the contract.

The Company recognises revenue from contracts with customers based on a five-step model as set out in Ind AS 115
Step 1: Identify contract(s) with a customer: A contract is defined as an agreement between two or more parties that creates enforceable
rights and obligations and sets out the criteria for every contract that must be met.

Step 2: Identify performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a promise in a contract with a customer to transfer a
good or service to the customer,

Step 3: Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Company expects to be entitied
in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a custorner, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For a contract that has more than one performance
obligation, the Company allocates the transaction price to each performance obligation in an amount that depicts the amount of
consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for satisfying each performance obligation.

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the Company satisfies a performance obligation. Fees for sale of services are accounted as and
when the service is rendered, provided there is reasonable certainty of its ultimate realisation.

Bounce/ penal charges levied on customers for non payment/delay payment of instalment on the contractual date & Foreclosyre charges
"are collected from loan customers for early payment / closure of loan, are recognised on a point In time basis and are recorded when
realised.

Distribution income is eamed by selling of services and products of other entities under distribution arrangements. The income so earmed
is recognised on successful distribution on behalf of other entities subject to there being no significant uncertainty of its recovery

(iv) Sale of service
Sale of services Includes advertising income, representing income earned from the activities incidental to the business and is recognised
when the service is performed. Revenue is net of applicable indirect taxes as per the terms of the contract.
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(v) Net gain on Fair value changes

Any differences between the fair values of financial assets classified as FVTPL held by the Company on the balance sheet date s
recognised as an unrealised gain / loss. In cases there is a net gain in the aggregate, the same is recognised in "Net gains on fair value
changes” under Revenue from operations and if there is a net loss the same is disclosed as "Net loss on fair value changes” under
Expenses in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Similarly, any realised gain or loss on sale of financial instruments measured at FWTPL and debt instruments measured at FVOCT is
recagnised in net gain / loss on fair value changes.
However, Net gain / loss on derecognition of financial instruments classified as amortised cost is presented separately under the
respective head in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(vi) Assignment transactions

In accordance with Ind AS 109, in case of assignment transactions with significant transfer of risks and rewards without any retention of
residual interest, gain arising on such assignment transactions is recorded upfront in the Statement of Profit and Loss and the
corresponding asset is derecognized from the Balance Sheet immediately upon execution of such transaction. Further, the transfer of
financial assets qualifies for derecognition to the extent of portion trasnsferred, the whole of the interest spread at its present value
(discounted over the life of the asset) is recognized on the date of derecognition itself as interest only strip receivable (interest strip on
assignment) and correspondingly recognized as profit on derecognition of financial asset.

(vii) Securitization transactions
In accordance with Ind AS 109, in case of securitization transactions, the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues to recognize the financial asset and also recognizes a collateralized
borrowing for the proceeds received.

2.4 Expenses

(i) Finance costs

Finance costs on borrowings is paid towards availing of loan, s amortised on EIR basis over the contractual life of loan.

The EIR in case of a financial liability is computed

a. As the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the financial liability to the gross
carrying amount of the amortised cost of a finandial liability,

b. By considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument in estimating the cash flows
c. Including all fees paid between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs, and all
other premiums or discounts

Any subsaquent changes in the estimation of the future cash flows is recognised in interest expense with the corresponding adjustment to
the carrying amount of the liability.

Interest expense includes issue costs that are initially recognized as part of the carrying value of the financial liability and amortized over
the expected life using the effective interest method. These include fees and commissions payable to advisers and other expenses such as
external legal costs, Rating Fee etc, provided these are incremental costs that are directly related to the issue of a financial liability.

(ii) Retirement and other employee benefits

Short term employee benefit

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term employee benefits. These
benefits include short term compensated absences such as paid annual leave. The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits
expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered by employees is recognised as an expense during the period. Benefits such as
salaries and wages, etc. and the expected cost of the bonus/ex-gratia are recognised in the period in which the employee renders the
related service.

Past-employment employee benefits
a) Defined contribution schemes

All the eligible employees of the Company who have opted to receive benefits under the Provident Fund and Employees State Insurance
scheme, defined contribution plans in which both the employee and the Company contribute monthly at a stipulated rate. The Company
has no liability for future benefits other than its annual contribution and recognises such contributions as an expense in the period in
which employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the Balance Sheet date
exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme Is recognised as a liability after deducting the contribution
already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the Balance Sheet date, then
excess |s recognised as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in
refund.




b) Defined Benefit schemes

The Company provides for the gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering all employees. The plan provides for lump sum
payments to employees upon death while in employment or on separation from employment after serving for the stipulated years
mentioned under "The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972". The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plan is determined
based on actuarial valuation, carried out by an independent actuary at each Balance Sheet date, using the Projected Unit Credit Method,
which recognizes each period of service as giving rise to an additional unit of employee benefit entitement and measures each unit
separately to build up the final obligation.

The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rates used for determining the present
value of the obligation under defined benefit plan are based on the market yields on Government Securities as at the Balance Sheet date.

Net interest recognized in profit or loss is calculated by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation to the
net defined benefit liability or asset. The actual retumn on the plan assets above or below the discount rate is recognized as part of re-
measurement of net defined liability or asset through other comprehensive income. An actuanal valuation involves making various
assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, attrition rate,
future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, these liabilities are
highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The Company fully contributes all ascertained liabilities to The Trustees — CGHFL Employees Group Gratuity Assurance Scheme ( Formerly
known as Money Matfers Secunities Private Limited Employee Group Gratuity Assurance Scheme)”. Trustees administer contributions
made to the trust and contributions are invested in a scheme of insurance with the IRDA approved Insurance Companies.

Re-measurement, comprising of actuarial gains and losses and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest an
the net defined benefit liability), are recognized immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings
through OCI in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit and loss in subsequent periods.

(iii) Leases Rent
The Company leases most of its office facilities under operating lease agreements that are renewable on a periodic basis at the option of
the lessor and the lessee. The lease agreements contain rent free periods and rent escalation clauses.

The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease at the inception of the contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an
identified asset, (i) the company has substantially all of the economic benefits from the use of the asset through the period of the lease,
and (iil) the company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a ROU asset and a corresponding lease liability for all lease
arrangements under which it is a lessee, except for short-term leases and low value leases. ROU assets represent the Company's right to
use an underlying asset for the lease term and |ease liabilities represent the Company's obligation to make lease payments arising from
the lease, For short-term leases and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the term of the lease.

The lease arrangements include options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities
include these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

The ROU assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments
made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives, They are subsequently
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,

ROU assets are depreciated from the date of commencement of the lease on a straight-line basis over the lease term,

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. For leases under which the
rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate based on the information available
at the date of commencement of the lease in determining the present value of lease payments. Lease liabilities a
corresponding adjustment to the related ROU asset if the Company changes its assessment as to whether it will
a termination option.




(iv) Other income and expenses
All Other income and expense are recognized in the period they occur.

(v) Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amount of assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is any indication of impairment based on internal/external
factors. An impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the greater of the assets, net selling price and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
risks specific to the asset.

In determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified,
an appropriate valuation model is used. After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its
remaining useful life.

(vi) Taxes

Income Tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred taxes. Income tax expense is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss, ather
comprehensive income or directly in equity when they relate to items that are recognized in the respective line items.

Current Tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax
payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be
paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax law) enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Deferred fax

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates {and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
reporting date and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.

Deferred tax assets are only recognised for temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits if it is probable that future
taxable amounts will arise to utilise those temporary differences and losses. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and
are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and they
relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity.

Goods and services fax /service tax/valve added taxes paid on acquisition of assets or on cuming expenses

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the goods and services tax/service tax/value added taxes paid, except:

i. When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case, the tax paid is
recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable

il, When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or payables in the balance
sheet.

2.5 Foreign currency translation

(i) Functional and presentational currency

The standalone financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees which is also functional currency of the Company and the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the Company operates.

(ii) Transactions and balances
Initial recognition:

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions.




Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency, which are outstanding as at the year- end, are transiated at the year-end
at the closing exchange rate and the resultant exchange differences are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Non—-monetary items that are measured at historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the spot exchange rates as at the date
of recognition.

2.6 Financial instruments
Financial assets and finandial liabilities are recognised in the company’s balance sheet on trade date, i.e. when the company becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs and revenues that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of financial assets and finandial liabilities {other than financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs and revenues of financial assets or financial liabilities carried at fair value through the profit or loss account
are recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit or Loss. Trade Receivables are measured at transaction price.

(i) Classification of financial instruments

The Company classifies its financial assets into the following measurement categories:

1. Financial assets to be measured at amortised cost

2. Financial assets to be measured at fair value through profit or loss account

The classification depends on the contractual terms of the financial assets’ cash flows and the Company’s business model for managing
financial assets which are explained below:

Buysiness model assessment

The Company determines its business model at the level that best reflects how it manages groups of financial assets to achieve its
business objective.

The Company's business madel is not assessed on an instrument-by-instrurment basis, but at a higher level of aggregated portfolios and is
based on observable factors such as:

> How the performance of the business model and the financial assets held within that business model are evaluated and reported to t
entity’s key management personnel

»The risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business model) and the way

those risks are managed
» How managers of the business are compensated (for example, whether the compensation is based on the fair value of the assets

managed or on the contractual cash flows collected)

» The expected frequency, value and timing of sales are also important aspects of the Company's assessment. The business model
assessment is based on reasonably expected scenarios without taking ‘worst case’ or 'stress case’ scenarios into account. If cash flows
after initial recognition are realised in a way that is different from the Company's original expectations, the Company does not change the
classification of the remaining financial assets held in that business model, but incorporates such information when assessing newly
originated or newly purchased financial assets going forward.

Asa secnnd step of |I:5 damlﬁca‘hm pmc the Eorrnpam.r assesses the contractual terms of financial assets to identify whether they meet
the SPPI test.

*Principal’ for the purpose of this test is defined as the fair value of the financial asset at initial recognition and may change over the life of
the financial asset (for example, if there are repayments of principal or amortisation of the premium/discount).

In making this assessment, the Company considers whether the contractual cash flows are consistent with a basic lending arrangement
i.e. interest includes only consideration for the time value of money, credit risk, other basic lending risks and a profit margin that is
consistent with a basic lending arrangement. Where the contractual terms introduce exposure to risk or volatility that are inconsistent with
a basic lending arrangement, the related financial asset is dassified and measured at fair value through profit or loss,

The Company classifies its financial liabilities at amortised costs unless it has designated liabilities at fair value through the profit and loss
account or is required to measure liabilities at fair value through profit or loss such as derivative liabilities.




(ii) Financial assets measured at amortised cost

Debit instruments

These financial assets comprises of bank balances, receivables, investments and other financial assets,

Debt instruments are measured at amortised cost where they have:

a) contractual terms that give rise to cash flows on specified dates, that represent solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding; and

b) are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by holding to collect contractual cash flows.

These debt instruments are initially recognised at fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs and subsequently measured at
amortised cost.

(iii) Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Debt instruments

Investments in debt instruments are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income where they have:

a) contractual terms that give rise to cash flows on specified dates, that represent solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding; and

b) are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets.

These debt instruments are initially recognised at fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs and subsequently measured at fair
value. Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are included in other comprehensive income within a separate component of

Equity instruments

Investment in equity instruments that are neither held for trading nor contingent consideration recognised by the Company in a business
combination to which Ind AS 103 "Business Combination’ applies, are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, where
Amounts presented in other comprehensive income are not subsequently transferred to profit or loss.

Dividends on such investments are recognised in Profit or Loss.

(iv) Items at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Items at fair value through profit or loss comprise:

= [nvestments (including equity shares) held for trading;

= debt instruments with contractual terms that do not represent solely payments of principal and interest,

Financial instruments held at FVTPL are initially recognised at fair value, with transaction costs recognised in the statement of profit and
loss as incurred. Subsequently, they are measured at fair value and any gains or losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss
as they arise.

Financial instruments designated as measured at FYTPL

Upon initial recognition, financial instruments may be designated FVTPL. A financial asset may only be designated at FVTPL if doing so
eliminates or significantly reduces measurement or recognition inconsistencies (i.e. eliminates an accounting mismatch) that would
otherwise arise from measuring financial assets or liabilities on a different basis.

A financial liability may be designated at FVTPL if it eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch or:

= if a host contract contains one or more embedded derivatives; or

= if financial assets and liabilities are both managed, and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis in accordance with a
documented risk management or investment strategy,

Where a financial liability is designated at FVTPL, the movement in fair value attributable to changes in the Company's own credit quality
Is calculated by determining the changes in credit spreads above observable market interest rates and is presented separately in other
comprehensive income. As at the reporting date, the Company has not designated any financial instruments as measured at fair value

(v) Debt securities and other borrowed funds

After initial measurement, debt issued, and other borrowed funds are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on issue funds, and costs that are an integral part of the Effective Interest
Rate (EIR).

(vi) Reclassification
If the business model under which the Company holds financial assets undergoes changes, the financial assets affected are reclassified,
The classification and measurement requirements related to the new category apply prospectively from the first day of the first reporting
period following the change in business model that result in reclassifying the Company’s financial assets. Changes in contractual cash
flows are considered under the accounting policy on Modification and derecognition of financial assets described in su




(vii) Recognition and Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities

Em[m- Er

a) Loans and Advances are initially recognised when the Financial Instruments are transferred to the customers,

b) Investments are initially recognised on the settliement date.

c) Debt securities and borrowings are initially recognised when funds are received by the Company.

d) Other Financial assets and liabilities are initially recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. This includes regular way trades: purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the time frame generally established by regulation or convention in the market place.

The Company dErecngnlses a ﬁnanﬂal asset, such asa Inan toa custumer when T.he terms and conditions have been renegotiated to the
extent that, substantially, it becomes a new loan, with the difference recognised as a derecognition gain or loss, to the extent that an
impairment loss has not already been recorded. The newly recognised loans are classified as Stage 1 for ECL measurement purposes,
unless the new loan is deemed to be Purchased or Originated as Credit Impaired (POCI). In case of an existing exposure to the borrower
in the company the newly recoanised loans are dassified as per the staging of the existing expasure.

If the modification does not result in cash flows that are substantially different, the modification does not result in derecognition. Based
on the change in cash flows discounted at the original EIR, the Company records a modification gain or loss, to the extent that an
impairment loss has not already been recorded.

a) Fmanclat assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised when the
rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset have expired. The Company also derecognises the financial asset if it has both
transferred the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition.

The Company has transferred the financial asset if, the Company has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the
financial asset.

A transfer only qualifies for derecognition if either:

i. The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

i, The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset

The Company considers control to be transferred if and only if, the transferee has the practical ability to sell the asset in its entirety to an
unrefated third party and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally and without imposing additional restrictions on the transfer,

When the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards and has retained contral of the asset, the
asset continues to be recognised only to the extent of the Company's continuing involvement, in which case, the Company also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations
that the Company has retained.

b) Financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires. Where an existing finandial
liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
madified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The
difference between the carrying value of the original financial liability and the consideration paid is recognised in the Statement of Profit
or Loss.

(vii) Impairment of financial assets

Sy f the ECL princiot

The Company records allowance for expected credit losses for all loans, other debt financial assets not held at FYTPL, in this section all
referred to as financial instruments. Equity instruments are not subject to impairment under Ind AS 109,

The ECL allowance is based on the credit losses expected to arise over the life of the asset (the lifetime expected credit loss), unless there
has been no significant increase in credit risk since origination, in which case, the allowance is based on the 12 months' expected credit
loss.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a finandial instrument. The
12-month ECL is the portion of Lifetime ECL that represent the ECLs that result from default events on a financial instrument that are
possible within the 12 months after the reporting date.

Both Lifetime ECLs and 12-month ECLs are calculated on either an individual basis or a collective basis, depending on the nature of the
underlying portfolio of financial instruments.

The Company has established a policy to perform an assessment, at the end of each reporting period, of whether a financial instrument’s
credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, by considering the change in the risk of default occurring wer the rernalnlng
life of rhe ﬂnanckal |n5trument. The Company does the aﬁaeSSrnent of significant increase in :redlt risk at a borrower f S

facilities of that borrower.
Based on the above, the Company categorises its loans into Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3 as described below:
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Stage 1

All exposures where there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition or that has low credit risk at the
reporting date and that are not credit impaired upon origination are classified under this stage. The Company classifies all standard
advances and advances up to 0-30 days default under this category. Stage 1 loans also include facilities where the credit risk has reduced
and the loan has been reclassified from Stage 2.

Stage 2

All exposures where there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition but are not credit impaired are dassified
under this stage. Financial assets past due for 31 to 90 days are classified under this stage. Stage 2 loans also include facilites where the
credit risk has reduced, and the loan has been reclassified from Stage 3.

Stage 3

All exposures assessed as credit impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of
that asset have occurred are classified in this stage. For exposures that have become credit impaired, a lifetime ECL is recognised and
interest revenue is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost (net of provision) rather than the gross carrying
amount, more than 90 days Past Due is considered as default for classifying a financial instrurment as credit impaired.

=M
At each reporting date, the company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost and debt financial assets carried at
FVTOCI are credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:
a) Significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
b) A breach of contract such as a default or past due event;
c) The restructuring of a loan or advance by the company on terms that the company would not consider otherwise;
d) It is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or
e) The disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

Ihe mechanics of ECL:

The assessment of credit risk and estimation of ECL are unbiased and probability weighted. It incorporates all information that is relevant
including information about past events, current conditions and reasonable forecasts of future events and economic conditions at the
reporting date. In addition, the estimation of ECL takes into account the time value of money. Forward looking economic scenarios
determined with reference to external forecasts of economic parameters that have demonstrated a linkage to the performance of our
portfolios over a period of ime have been applied to determine impact of macro economic factors.,

The mechanics of the ECL calculations are outlined below and the key elements are, as follows:
Probability of Default (PD) - Probability of default ("PD") is defined as the likelihood of default over a particular time horizon, The PD
of an obligor is a fundamental risk parameter in credit risk analysis and depends on obligor specific as well as macroeconomic risk factors.

Loss Given Default (LGD) - Loss Given Default ("LGD") is defined as the loss rate on the exposure, given the borrower has defaulted.
LGD is being calculated for all financial instruments under risk parameter approach by way of evaluation of historical data on defaults,
recovery amounts, collateral liquidation, direct expenses, and opportunity cost for each default,

Exposure at Default (EAD) - The Exposure at Default is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date including the undrawn
commitments. EAD is taken as the gross exposure under a facility upon default of an obligor. The principal outstanding, overdue principal,
accrued interest, overdue interest less excess received from the customers is considered as EAD for the purpose of ECL computation.

Forward looking information
While estimating the expected credit losses, the Company reviews macro-economic developments occurring In the economy and market it
operates in. On a periodic basis, the Company analyses if there is any relationship between key economic trends like GDP, unemployment
rates, benchmark rates set by the Reserve Bank of India, inflation etc. with the estimate of PD determined by the Company based on its
internal datafexternal data. While the internal estimates of PD rates by the Company may not be always reflective of such relationships,
tempaorary overlays, If any, are embedded in the methodology to reflect such macro-economic trends reasonably,

y




Collateral repossessed

In its normal course of business, company repossess assets under SARFAESI/ arbitration Act, but do not transfer these assets in its book
of accounts. The company continues to show these loans account as Non-Performing Assets (NPA) in the books, till the liquidation of the
secured assets through public auction and realise actual payment against these loans.

(viii) Write-offs
The Company reduces the gross carrying amount of a financial asset when the Company has no reasonable expectations of recovering a
financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. This is generally the case when the Company determines that the borrower does not
have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subjected to write-offs. Any subsequent
recoveries against such loans are credited to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

{ix) Determination of fair value

On initial recognition, all the financial instruments are measured at fair value. For subsequent measurement, the Company measures
certain categories of financial instruments (as explained in note.) at fair value on each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either;

i. In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

ii. In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or
liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to ancther market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the crcumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

In order to show how fair values have been derived, finandal instruments are classified based on a hierarchy of valuation technigues, as
summarised below:

Level 1 financial instruments - Those where the inputs used in the valuation are unadjusted quoted prices from active markets for
identical assets or liabilities that the Company has access to at the measurement date. The Company considers markets as active only if
there are sufficient trading activities with regards to the volume and liquidity of the identical assets or liabilities and when there are
binding and exercisable price quotes available on the balance sheet date.

Level 2 financial instruments - Those where the inputs that are used for valuation are significant and are derived from directly or indirectly
observable market data available over the entire period of the instrument’s life. Such inputs include quoted prices for similar assets or
liabilities in active markets, guoted prices for identical instruments in inactive markets and observable inputs other than quoted prices
such as interest rates and yield curves, implied volatilities, and credit spreads. In addition, adjustments may be required for the condition
or location of the asset or the extent to which it relates to items that are comparable to the valued instrument. However, if such
adjustments are based on unobservable inputs which are significant to the entire measurement, the Company will classify the instruments
as Level 3.

Level 3 financial instruments - Those that include one or more unobservable input that is significant to the measurement as whole,

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change
has occurred.

The hESt evidence uf I:he fair vaiue nf a ﬁnaru:lal |n5humen1: at Inl‘tlal recognition is the transaction price (i.e. the fair value of the
consideration given or received) unless the fair value of that instrument is evidenced by comparison with other observable current market
transactions in the same instrument (i.e. without modification or repackaging) or based on a valuation technigue whose variables include
only data from observable markets. When such evidence exists, the Company recognises the difference between the transaction price and
the fair value in profit or loss on initial recognition (i.e. on day one).

When the transaction price of the instrument differs from the fair value at origination and the fair value is based on a valuation technigue
usmg onl*.r lnputs observable in market transactions, the Cnmpan-,r remgms&s the difference between the hansa:chun prlce and fair \ra]ue




(x) Derivative Financial Instruments
The Company holds derivative financial instruments to hedge its foreign currency and interest rate risk exposures. Embedded derivatives
are separated from the host contract and accounted for separately if certain criteria are met.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their
fair value at each balance sheet date. The resulting gain/loss is recognised in the statement of profit and loss immediately unless the
derivative is designated and is effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the recognition in the statement of profit
and loss depends on the nature of the hedge relationship.

The Company designates certain derivatives as hedging instruments to hedge the variability in cash flows associated with its floating rate
borrowings arising from changes in interest rates and exchange rates. At inception of designated hedging relationships.

The Company documents the risk management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge. The Company also documents the
economic relationship between the hedged item and the hedging instrument, including whether the changes in cash flows of the hedged
itern and hedging instrument are expected to offset each other,

Cash flow hedges

When a derivative is designated as a cash flow hedging instrument, the effective portion of changes in the fair value of the derivative is
recognised in OCI and accumulated in the other equity under "effective portion of cash flows hedges'. The effective portion of changes in
the fair value of the derivative that is recognised in OCT is limited to the cumulative change in fair value of the hedged item, determined
on a present value basis, from inception of the hedge. Any ineffective portion of changes in fair value of the derivative is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

The Company designates only the change in fair value of the spot element of forward exchange contracts as the hedging instrument in
cash flow hedge relationships change in fair value of the forward element of the forward exchange contracts (forward points’) is
separately accounted for as cost of hedging and recognised separately within equity.

If a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting or the hedging instrument is sold, expires, is terminated or is exercised, then
hedge accounting is discontinued prospectively. If the hedged future cash flows are no longer expected to occur, then the amounts that
have been accumulated in other equity are immediately reclassified to profit or loss.

2.7 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise the net amount of short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash (short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less) and are subject to an insignificant risk of change
in value. They are held for the purposes of meeting short-term cash commitments (rather than for investment or other purposes).

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short- term deposits, as defined above.

2.8 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment (PPE) are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment, (if any). The total
cost of assets comprises its purchase price, freight, duties, taxes and any other incidental expenses directly attributable to bringing the
asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the management. Changes in
the expected useful life are accounted for by changing the amortisation period or methodology, as appropriate, and treated as changes in
accounting estimates.

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of tangible asset are added to its gross value only if it increases the future benefits of the
existing asset, beyond its previously assessed standards of performance and cost can be measured reliably. Other repairs and
maintenance costs are expensed off as and when incurred.

Property, plant and equipment not ready for the intended use on the date of Balance Sheet are disclosed as “"Capital work-in-progress.
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Depreciation

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of tangible asset are added to its gross value only if it increases the future benefits of the
existing asset, beyond its previpusly assessed standards of performance and cost can be measured reliably. Other repairs and
maintenance costs are expensed off as and when incurred.

Property plant and equipment is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use, Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is recognised in other income [ expense in the statement of profit and loss in the year the asset is derecognised. The date of
disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is the date the recipient obtains control of that item in accordance with the
requirements for determining when a performance obligation is satisfied in Ind AS 115.

ROU assets are depreciated from the date of commencement of the lease on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and
the useful life of the underlying asset.

2.9 Intangible assets

An intangible asset is recognised only when its cost can be measured reliably, and it is probable that the expected future economic
benefits that are attributable to it will flow to the Company.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of an intangible asset comprises its purchase
price and any directly attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for its intended use and net of any trade discounts and rebates.
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or infinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the
useful economic life. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at
least at each financial year-end.

Changes in the expected useful life, or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset, are
accounted for by changing the amortisation period or methodology, as appropriate, which are then treated as changes in accounting
estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is presented as a separate line item in the statement of profit
and loss. Amortisation on assets acquired/sold during the year is recognised on a pro-rata basis to the Statement of Profit and Loss from |
upto the date of acquisition/sale.

Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method to write down the cost of intangible assets to their residual values over their
estimated useful lives. Intangible assets comprising of software are amortised on a straight-line basis over a peried of 3 years, unless it
has a shorter useful life.

Gains or losses from derecognition of intangible assets are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised,

Intangible assets not ready for the intended use on the date of Balance Sheet are disclosed as “Intangible under development”

2.10 Provisions

Pravisions are recognised when the enterprise has a present obligation (legal or constructive} as a result of past events, and it is probable
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of
the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of the time value of money is material, the enterprise determines the level of provision by discounting the expected cash
flows at a pre-tax rate reflecting the current rates specific to the liability. The expense relating to any provision is presented in the
Statement of Profit and Loss net of any reimbursement,

2.11 Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized
because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in
extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably, The Company does not
recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.




2.12 Earning Per Share

The Company reports basic and diluted earnings per share in accordance with Ind AS 33 on Earnings per share. Basic EPS is calculated by
dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders (after deducting preference dividend and attributable taxes)
by the weighted average numbser of equity shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders and the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. Dilutive
potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later date. In
computing the dilutive earnings per share, only potential equity shares that are dilutive and that either reduces the earnings per share or
increases loss per share are included.

2.13 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the Ind AS requires the management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the accompanying disclosure and the
disclosure of contingent llabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and future periods are affected.
Although these estimates are based on the management's best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amaunts of assets or liabilities in
future periods.

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgrents in applying accounting policies that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements is included in the following notes:

(i) Defined employee benefit assets and liabilities - Refer 2.4(ii)

(ii) Impairment of loans portfolio - Refer 2.6{vii)

(iii) Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method - Refer 2.3(i) and 2.4{i)

(iv) Lease accounting - Refer 2.4(jii)

{v) Impairment test of non-financial assets - Refer 2.4(v)

(vi) Useful life of property, plant, equipment and intangibles - Refer 2.8 & 2.9

{vii) Provision for income taxes, including amount expected to be paid/recovered for uncertain tax positions - Refer 2.4(vi)

{viii) Recognition and Measurement of Provision and Contingencies - Refer 2.11 and 2.12
(ix) Determination of the fair value of financial instruments - Refer 2.6(ix)

(x) Business Model Assessment - Refer 2.6(])

2.14 Recent accounting pronouncements

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) on 31st March 2023 through Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023
has notified the following amendments to IND AS which are applicable for the annual periods beginning on or after 1st April, 2023,

Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 1 — Presentation of financial statements — This amendment requires the Company to disclose its
material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies.

The Company will carry out a detailed review of accounting policies to determine material accounting policy information to be disclosed
qgoing forward.

The Company does not expect this amendment to have any material impact in its financial statements.

Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 8 — Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors — This amendment has
changed the definition of a “change in accounting estimates” to a definition of "accounting estimates”. The amendment darifies how
companies should distinguish changes in accounting policies from changes in accounting estimates.

The Company does not expect this amendment to have any material impact in its financial statements.

Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 12 — Income taxes — This amendment has done away with the recognition exemption on initial
recognition of assets and liabilities that give rise to equal and offsetting temporary differences.

The Company does not expect this amendment to have any material impact in its financial statements,
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Mote 3 - Cash And Cash Equivalents

(2 in Millons)
[ Particulars As at March 31, 2023 | As at March 31, 2022
Cash on hand 434 349
Balances with banks: a -
= In Current Accounts _205.45 208.15
- In Deposit accounts with origingl maturity of 3 manths or less 100.06 2,100.00
|Chegques on hand 9.99 2.56
[Total 319.84 2,314.20 |

{®in

Particulars As at March 31, 2023] As at March 31, 2022

In ather ACCOUNTS
- original Maturity more than 3 manths (Refer note below) 200,82 250,03
Total 200.82 290.03

Out of the above % 186.40 Miflions (March 31, 2022 - ® 184,60 Millions) balance in deposit accounts with banks are baing earmarked towards Borrowings from Mational
Housing Bank. Deposits are made for varying period from 7 days to 10 years and eam interest at the respective fixed rate.

Hote 3 - Trade Receivables

(% in Millions)
| Particulars As at March 31, 2023| As at March 31, 2022
Frma recevables 0.91 1162 |
Less: Impairment on trade receivables - -
Total 0.91 11.62

Mo trade or other recefvable are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally ar jointhy with any other person. Nor any trade or other recenvable ane

due from firms o private companies respactively in which any director is a partner, a director or @ member,

Ageing schedule
(1) Current year

(% in Millions)

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Pariculars Less than 6 months

Total

6 months - 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years
(i) Undisputed Trade 0.91 - - -
recenables - consaderad
qood

More than 3 years

0.91

(i) Undisputed Trade - - m
receivables - which have
significant increasa in

\credit risk
(i) Undisputed Trade -

receivables - credit
i(nr} Dispute:d Trade
receivables - considerad

oood

(v) Disputed Trade -
receivables - which have
significant increase in

(vi) Disputed Trade 2 3
receivables - credit

(2) Previous year

Outstanding for fellowing perieds from due date of payment

Particulars Lost than 6 munths

Total

6 months - 1year |  1-2 years 2-3 years
1162 & : .

(i) Undisputed Trade
recevables - considensd
good

More than 3 years

(i) Undisputed Trade -
recevables - which have
significant increase in
|eridif rigk




[¥ in Millens)
u_nnmn,mxs As at March 31, 2022
Particulars Purchased credit- Purchased credit-
T
Arnortised cost \mpaaired (POCT) otal Amortised cost impaired (POCT) Total

A, Secured

Loan to Customens 75,751,028 1240 35,815 42 17,236.34 17,236.34
B. Unsecured - =

Loan to Cusiomens - - : -

Loan to Empioyess 0.39 .39 019 [N
Total - Gross (A) 25,793.41 Zz.80 :_5,%“,-1 17,236.53 - 17,236.53

Less: Expocted Cradit Loss [365.48) 0.27 5.21) (255,380 = (25938}
Total - Net (A] 15,427.93 7267 25,450.60 16,937.15 - 16,937.15

[2) Secured by Eangibls assets 25,7930z 22.40 25,815.42 17,236.34 17.235.34

b) Unsecured 0.39 - 0.3 019 0.18
Total - [CH 35,793.41 72.40 15.81 17,236.53 = 17,336.53

Lisss: Credit Loss. {365.48) 0.27 (365,21} 259, = {259.28)
(Total — Net (B) 35,427 7267 25,450.60 16,837.15 - 16,937.15
LX) Loans in India
| {1} Puble Sectoc e - = :

i} C=hers 45 793 41 22.40 25,B15.81 17,236.53 = 17,236.53
|Total (C)- Gross 25,793.41 22.40 25,815.81 17,236.53 - 17,236.53

Less: Expected Creot Loss (365,48} 0.27 [3565.21) [299.38) = (399.38
Total (€) - Net__ A 72467 25,450.60 16,837.15 : 16,937.15 |

Meote 1 - The Company's business moded is hold contractual crsh fows, being the payment of Principal and [ntensst, till maturity and accordingly the koans ame measuned at amortised oo
Rate 2 - Underying for this term koans secured by Angibee agsets ane properties

(Read above note with Mote no. 56.18a)




Mote 7 - Investments

[ in Millions)
As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Investments At fair value through At fair value through
SR o o At Amortized Cost el los At Amortized Cost
Quoted
Investments in Mutual funds 1,063.74 - - -
| Investments in Commercial Papers = = -
Investments in Debt Securities * = -
- Debt Instrurments = - -
- Pass through Certificates - 73722 & 583.14
Total (A) 1,063.74 737.22 - 583.14
i} Investrments outside India = - =
i) Investments in India 1,063.74 737.22 - 583.14
Total (B) to tally with (A) 1,063.74 737.22 - 583.14
As at March 31, 2023| As at March 31, 2022
Particul e g e iy e |
gl Numbers/Units Numbers/Units
\Investment in Mutual Funds
Aditya Birla Suniife Liquid Fund 6,92,366
Axis Mutual Fund 80,395
Hippon India Money Market Fund 100,752 -
ICICT Prudential Uira Short Fund 100,34 017 -
Investment in Pass Through Certificates
[INDIAN RECEIVABLE TRLIST 2019 SERIES 5 - SERIES A2 PTC 01MR19 2,175 1,150
HNote 8 - Other Financial Assets
(% in Millicns)
Particulars As at March 31, 2023 | As at March 31, 2022
Security Deposits 13.99 7.19
Interest Receivable 4.45 3.02
Spread receivable on assigned portfolio 32,26 -
Other Recefvabie 1.09 *
Total 51.79 10.21 |
y




Note 9 - Current Tax Assets (Net)

(% in Millians)
Particulars As at March 31, 2023] As at March 31, 2022
Advance Tax (net of provision for tax) 5.29 5.44
Total 5.29 9.44
Note 10 - Deferred Tax Assets (Net)
The major components of deferred tax assets and Habilities are : {® In Milligns}
As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Partioutant Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
) Deprediation 4.53 - 3.98 =
b} Provisions for Loans 93.70 - 61.40
c} Provision for Emplovee Benefits 6.19 = 2.93
d}) Carry Forward of Loss - = = z
5 : I5E i - 0.39 - 0.74
Mo 0.53 . LAl .
4.01 - 2.10
B BG] COMme an NPA 11143 = —=
Financial Instruments at FVTPL - 0.90 257
k) Gain on nition of financial mstruments = 8.12 - -
Total 120.39 9.41 74.39 0.74
MNet Deferred Tax Asset 110.99 73.64
Note 11 - Investment Properties
{¥ in Millions)
Particulars As at March 31, 2023 | As at March 31, 2022
Investment Properties -
Total - .
.2 ol
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(% in Milligns}
Particulars As at March 31, Az at March 31,
I - S
\Prepaid Expences 397 9.08
Advance bo Vendor 10.22 0.52
Accrued Income 28,16 29,17
Dther Assets 0.92 0.52
Total 49.27 39.69
Hote 14 - Payables
Trade Payable
{®in
As at March 31, As at March 31,
Particula
" 2023 022 |
Total dues of matro enterprises and small enterprises® 0.36 0,75
[Total sutstanding dues of creditors cther than micra enterprises and small enterprises 121.63 61.88
I?uhl 121.99 62.63
* The Information a5 required to be disdosed under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 has bean determined 1o the exdent such parties have
been identified on the basis of Information available with the Company. The amount of principle and interest outstanding during the year is givan below
{% in Millions)
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2023 2022
1) Principal amount duwe and n| 0.36 0.75
2] Interest due on (1) above and the unpsid interest = :
31 [nteress paid on all delayed payment under the MSMED Act - ]
4 et made the appointed day du - -
5 Interest due and bl than (3] above * =
ining unpasd - &
I Nt of further nterest remaining due and in &) - -
Ageing schedule
(1) Current year (¥ in Millions)
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Purticaton: Hvee Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Mare than 3 years sl
1} MSME - 0.36 - = e 0.36
i 115.94 5.44 0.12 0.14 - 121.63
(it} Disputed dues - - - . - - -
MSME
(i) Disputed dues - ' . - - - -
+3
{2) Previous year (% in Millions)
Particulars Not due Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
(i} MSHE - 0.75 - 0.00 - 0.75
[ii} Crthers 57.78 352 0,16 0.42 - 61.88
(i) Disputed dues - - - - - - -
MEME
(i) Desputed dues - - . - . -
[Othirs
Other Payable
% In Milligns)
rthcutars As at March 31, As at March 31,
g 2023 2022
Accrued Employes Benafit Expense 39.07 16.22
Total 39.07 16.22
Ageing schedule
(1) Current year {% = Milions)
R Mot due Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Tabad
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
(i) MSME - - - - - -
(i) Others - 39.07 P - . 39.07
(iif) Disputed dues - z - - = 2 -
(i) Disputed dues - - -
[QEhers
{2) Previous year (¥ in Milliones)
Outstanding for following perieds from due date of payment
FTIRSaS Reok e Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years T
(i} MSME - = . - - -
ii} Others = 16.22 = = - 16.22
(i} Desputed dues - - - - - - -
E
(i) Disputed dues - = - - - -

o




Note 15 - Debt Securities

(% in Millions)
As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Particulars At At
Amortised Cost Tt Amortised Cost Tara)
Non Convertible Debentures = = -
Total (A) - - -
Debt securities in India - - =
Debt securities outside India = - =
Total (B) to tally with (A} - - -
(% in Millions)
As at March 31, 2023 | As at March 31, 2022
e r
Pactiows At Amortised Cost At Amortised Cost
| Secured
Term Loans from Banks* 15,874.80 13,031.59
Term Loans from National Housing Bank*® 5,354.11 1,546.76
Total (A) 21,228.91 14,578.35
Borrowings in India 21,228.91 14,578.35
Borrowings outside India 2 -
Total (B) to tally with (A) 21,228.91 14,578.35

* Exclusive charge by way of hypothecation of Company’s loan receivables, bank balances with asset cover of 1,20 times in favour of
borrowing from SBI of ¥ 1,353.36 Millions.
Borrowings other than above: First pari-passu charge by way of hypothecation of the company’s loan receivables [ book debts, bank

balances and Investments with asset cover of 1.10 to 1.25 times and weighted average cost for FY 22-23 is 8.23% p.a. and for FY 21-22

is 8.12% p.a.

**Exclusive charge by way of hypothecation of the company’s loan receivables / book debts with asset cover of 1.25 to 1.35 times and

weighted average cost for FY 22-23 is 5.36% p.a. and for FY 21-22 is 4.67% p.a.

Terms of repayment, nature of security & rate of interest in case of Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities)

(¥ in Millions)
MNature of Facility Maturity Range Interest Range As at March 31, 2023 | As at March 31, 2022
Term Loans 0-3 years 7.90% - 10.65% 3,447.09 354.05
Term Loans 3-5 years 7.90% - 10.65% 5,169.45 4.438.91
Term Loans 5-7 years 7.90% - 10.65% 7,348.57 6,561.57
Term Loans Beyond 7 years 7.90% - 10.65% - 1,749.99
Less: EIR (90.31) (72.92)
Total 15,874.80 13,031.60
Nature of Facility Maturity Range Interest Range As at March 31, 2023 | As at March 31, 2022
Refinance from NHB 0-3 years 2.8% - 8.10% 222.69 347.20
Refinance from NHB 3-5 years 2.8% - 8.10% 582.78 4.85
Refinance from NHB 5-7 years 2.8% - 8.10% 2,431.50 795,91
Refinance from NHB Beyond 7 years 2.8% - 8.10% 2,117.14 398.80
Less: EIR - -
Total 5,354.11 1,546.76

I
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Note 17 - Other Fi ial Liabiliti

(% in Millions)
Particulars As at March 31, 2023| As at March 31, 2022
Interest Accrued but not due on borrowings 0.22 0.00
Book Overdraft 1,396.72 923.82
Margin money 38.61 44.59
Payable to Holding Company 1.61 16.75
Lease Liability 158.49 51.99
Others Financial Liability 4.56 27.98
Total 1,600.21 1,065.13
N - Tax Liabiliti
(% in Millions)
Particulars As at March 31, 2023 | As at March 31, 2022
Provision for Income Tax (Net of Advance tax) 7.12 3.05
Total 7.12 3.05
N 19 - Provisi
(¥ in Millions)
Particulars As at March 31, 2023| As at March 31, 2022
Provision on non-fund exposure 6.83 17.38
Provision on Interest on Interest Waiver e =
Provision for Employee Benefits - -
- Gratuity 8.70 2.79
- Compensated Absences 22.57 10.49
Total 38.10 30.66
MNon-Fi
(% in Millions)
Particulars As at March 31, 2023| As at March 31, 2022
Statutory Remittances 20.94 14.38
Total 20.94 14.38




Hote 21 - Equity

(¥ in Millions)
Particulars As at March 31, 2023| As at March 31, 2022
AUTHORISED
9,00,00,000 Equity Shares of T 10 each 900.00 900.00
[Previous Year 9,00,00,000 Equity Shares of T 10 each)
i - 900.00 900.00
ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND FULLY PAID UP
7,12,03,790 Equity Shares of ¥ 10 each 712.04 712.04
{Previous Year 7,12,03,790 Equity Shares of % 10 each)
712.04 712.04
Reconciliation of number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period:
(% in Millions)
H As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
o e Number Amount Number Amount
Equity shares outstanding as at the beginning of the year 7,12,03,790 71204 6,07,14,280 607,14
Issued during the year - Rights issue - B 1,04,89,510 104.90
Equity shares outstanding as at the end of the year 7,12,03,790 71204 7,12,03,790 712.04
Details of shareholders holdina more than 5 %% shares in the Company are given below:
" As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
" ury Number %% Number %%
Capn Giobal Capital Limited [Holding Company) 7,12,03,790 100.00 7,12.03,790 100.00
Details of Promoters holdina shares in the Company are oiven below:
Shares held by promoters at the end of the year - """‘;::‘""“ the
Promoter Name Number of shares %o of total shares
Capri Giobal Capital Limited (Holding Company) 7,12,03,790 100.00 -

Terms/Rights attached to equity shares:

1. The Company has onlv one class of eguity share having a face vaiue of T 10/- per share, Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share

2, Dunna the vear ended 31 March 2023, the amount of dividend recoanized as distributions to eguity shareholders was € NIL (March 31, 2022 % NILY

3, In the event of iqusdabon of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all
preferential amounts. The distribution will be proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders,

Objective for managing capital:

The Campany maintains an actively managed capital base to cover risks inherent in the business and is meeting the capital adequacy requirements of the local
regulator, Reserve Bank of India (RBL). The adequacy of the Company's capital is monitored using, among other measures, the regulations issued by REL




MNote 23 - Other Equity

{% in Millions)
Particulars As at March 31, 2023 | As at March 31, 2022
Special Reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of the Income Tax Act (Taken into account for Statutory
Reserve under Section 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987)
Opening Balance 244.70 158.30
|Add: Amount transferred from surplus balance in the Statement of Profit and Loss 164.99 86.40
Closing balance 409.69 244.70
Securities Premium
Balance as per the last financial statements 2,537.96 1,142.86
Additions/{ Deletions) during the year - 1,395.10
Closing balance 537.96 2,537.96
OCI Reserve
DOpening Balance {1.75 {0.04)
Additions/{ Deletions) during the year (11.77 {1.71)
Closing balance (13.52) {1.75})
Surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Opening Balance 1,087.18 741.80
Prafit for the year 620.47 431.77
|Less: Transfer to Statutory Reserve {164.99] (85.40)
1,542.66 1,087.17
TOTAL 4,476.79 3,868.08

Securities Premium

Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares, The reserve can be utilised only for limited purposes such as ssuance of

bonus shares in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act. 2013.
Statutory Reserve pursuant to Section 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987

Every housing finance institution which is a company shall create a reserve fund and transfer therein a sum not less than twenty per cent of its profit
every year as disclosed in the profit and loss account and before any dividend is dedlared. Explanation - A housing finance institution creating and
maintaining any special reserve in terms of dause (vill) of sub-section (1) of section 35 of the Income-tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961} may take into account
any sum transferred by it for the year to such special reserve for the purposes of this sub-section. For the previous comparative periods, company has

maintained transfer to statutory reserve on profit calculated under erstwhile GAAP,




(% in Millions)
Year ended March Year ended March
31, 2023 31, 2022
Particulars On Financial Assets | On Financial Assets
measured at measured at
Amortised Cost Amortised Cost
Interest on Loans 2,672.87 1,830.82
Interest on Investment 69.38 B1.44
Interest on deposits 26.00 12.05
Interest on Others 0.95 0.39
Total 2,769.19 1,924.71
Note 24 - Fee Income
(% in Millions)
Year ended March Year ended March
Patioway 31, 2023 31, 2022
Application Fees 46.10 17.42
Total 46.10 17.42
Mote 25 - Net Gain/{Loss) On Fair Value Changes
{% in Millions)
= Year ended March Year ended March
Particulars 31, 2023 31, 2022
(A} Net gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss
(i} On trading portfolio
- Mutual Fund 105.55 36.79
- Shares 4.46 5.26
(i) On financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss : -
(B) Others - -
[C) Total Met gain on fair value changes 110.01 42.05
WD) Fair Value change: = =
-Realised 91.76 42.05
-Unrealised 18.25 .
Total Net gain on fair value changes 110.01 42.05
Note 26 - Other Operating Income
(% in Millions)
Year ended March Year ended March
bimslasug 31, 2023 31, 2022
Legal charges Received 20.19 13.93
Other charges from customers 72.12 56.69
Tatal 92.31 70.62
Note 27 - Other Income
(% in Millions)
Year ended March Year ended March
Particulies 31, 2023 31, 2022
Service Fees 56.05 30.22
Profit on sale of investment Property 6.30 2.79
Write back 0.38 1.59
Others 2.84 1.36
Total 65.58 35.96

s
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Note 28 - Finance Cost

(% in Millions)
Year ended March Year ended March
31, 2023 31, 2022
Particulars On Financial On Financial
Liabilities measured | Liabilities measured
at Amortised Cost at Amortised Cost
Interest on borrowings 1,466.54 945.86
Interest on Bank Overdraft - -
Interest on debt securities - 1.51
Interest on Lease Liability 13.26 6.24
Total 1,479.80 053.62
- i i cial I men
(% in Millions)
. Year ended March Year ended March
Particulss 31, 2023 31, 2022
Loans and advances to customers 65.80 154.40
Loan commitments (10.56) 6.41
Bad Debts Written Off 98.77 88.64
Total impairment loss 154.02 259.45




Note 30 - Employee Benefit Expenses

(% In Millions)
Year ended March Year ended March
Particulars 31, 2023 31, 2022
Salaries and Bonus 441.88 205.03
Contribution to Pravident Fund and Other Funds 35.65 13.03
Staff Training and Welfare Expenses 13.15 8.82
|Share Based Payments to employees 15.84 4.68
Total 510.52 231.56
Note 31 - Other Expenses
{% In Milligns)
Year ended March Year ended March
rurticury 31, 2023 31, 2022
Advertising 3.85 1.63
Auditors’ Remuneration (Refer note no. 31.1) 1.05 1.56
Banking Charges 9.21 744
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Expenses (Refer note no,
131.2) 845 6.25
Directors’ Fees and Commission 2.45 1.52
Electricity Charges 8.22 7.50
Legal & Professional Expenses 100.91 66,92
Postage, Telephone and Fax 11.46 14.54
Printing and Stationery 6.16 7.65
Lease Rent { refer note no. 2 (B)(iil} and nobte no.45 ) £.19 8.27
Loss On Sale Of Fixed Assets 0.26 0.63
Software Expenses 12.30 15.57
Filing & Other Fees to ROC 0.05 0.06
Service Fee to Holding Company 44,44 13.08
Travelling and Conveyance 2B.9%6 14.85
Write Off (Fixed Assels) 119 -
General Expenses 24.38 9.46
Total 269.63 176.92
31.1 Auditors’ Remuneration
(% in Millions)
Year ended March Year ended March
PRItICUR. 31, 2023 31, 2022
a) For Audit 0.25 0.15
b) For Tax Audit 0.08 0.08 |
c) For Limited Review 0.16 0.17
d) Far other services [Certilication Fees) D48 1.02
g) For reimbursement of expenses - 0.02
f) GST Expense 0.09 013
Total 1.05 1.56
31.2 Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses
{2 in Millians)
Year ended March Year ended March
Paiticuirs 31, 2023 31, 2022
Gross Amount Required to be spent during the year 8.45 6.25
Amount spent during the year on CSR . -
(i) Construction/acquisition of any assat - -
{if) On purposes other than (1) above 8.45 6.25
Shortfall at the end of the year . P
Total of previous years shortfall . F
Reason for shortfall NA NA
Mature of expenditure Women Women
Empowerment, Village Empowerment;
Development and Livelihood Initiative
Sustainable and Education
Envirgnment mﬂmJ

3. Disclosure in relation to undisclosed income - Naot applicable

4. Details of Crypto currency or Virtual currency - Not applicable

oo
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(% in Millions)
Year ended March Year ended March
Particulars 31, 2023 31, 2022

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Remeasurement loss (gain) on defined benefit plan {6.00) (0.48)

Income tax relating to these items 1.51 0.12

Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss - -

Fair Value Gain on time value of forward element of forward (9.73) (1.80)

contract in hedging relationship

Income tax relating to these items 2.45 0.45
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (11.77) (1.71)
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Mote 34 - The extent to which any new wave of COVID-19 pandemse will impact the Company's results will depend
on ongoing as well as future developments, including, among other things, any new information conceming the
severity of the COVID-19 pandemic, and any action to contain ks spread or mitigate its impact whether government-
mandated or elected by us.

The Company has assessed the potential impact of COVID-19 on the camying value of its assats based on relevant
internal and external factors [/ information available, upto the date of approval of these financial results. In order to
cover the impact of COVID-19 on the future expected credt losses, the Company carries a management and macro
economic vanable outlay of

¥ 56,03 Millions &s on March 31, 2023 (a5 on March 31, 2022 ¥ 103,05 Milkons), The Company will continue to cosely
mendor the matenal changes in the macro-econamic factors impacting the operations of the Company.




35.1 Income Tax recognised in Statement of profit and loss: (% in Millions)
Year ended March | Year ended March 31,
PRELOIN 31, 2023 2022
Current Tax
In respect of the current year 178.09 154.84
In respect of prior years {14.46) -
On _other comprebensive income (3.96) 0.57 |
159.67 155.41
|Deferred Tax
In respect of the current year {10.81) {29.43)
On other comprehensive income - -
(10.81) (29.43)|
Total Income tax expense recognised in the current year relating to continuing operations 148.86 125.98
35.2 Reconciliation of Income Tax Expense for the year: (% in Miflions)

Year ended March

Year ended March 31,

Particulars 31 2023
Standalone Profit before tax 77314 557.18
Adjustments of allowable and non-allowable Income and expenses:
Effect of non-deductible expenses 103.22 170.11 |
Effiect of income from tax . -
Effect of Income considered separately and other alowable deductions {147.053 {127.82)|
Effect of Capital Gain on sale of shares, mutual funds, interest etc (18.52) 17.58
Effect of Deduction under Chapter V1 A {1.B1) -
Earlier loss set off - %
Taxable Profits / (loss) 709.13 617.05
Income tax expense recognised in statement of profit and loss 178.09 154.84 |
35.3 Reconciliation of income tax rate is as follows: {In %)
Year ended March | Year ended March 31,
Particulars 31, 2023 2022
Marmal Tax Rate 22.00 22.00
Surcharge (@ 10% of Normal Tax Rate) 2.20 2.20
Health and Education Cess 0.97 0.97
Total Tax Rate 25.17 25.17
Adjustments of Tax effect due to allowable and non-allowable income and expenses:
Tax Effect of non-deductible expenses 3.36 7.68
Tax Effect of income exempt from tax . -
Effect of Income considered separately and other aliowable deductions (4.84) {5.77)
Tax Effect of Capital Gain on sake of shares, mutual funds, interest etc (0,60} 0.79
Tax Effect of Income Taxable at different rate {0.05) (0.083
Tax Effect of Earlier loss set off / Current year loss carried Forward - = |
Tax Effect on account of Deferred Tax Assets {1.40% (5.28)
Tax Effect on account of prior period adjustments {1.87) .
Effective Tax Rate 19.77 22.51

"
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The following table shows deferred tax recorded in the balance sheet and changes recorded in the Income t2ax expense.

{% in Millions);
Deferred Tax Income oct Deferred Tax
Particulars Assets Statement Assets
March 31, 2022 2022-23 2022-23 March 31, 2023
Provision for Employee Benefits 2.53 3.26 - 6.19
Depreciation 3.98 0.55 = 4.53
Impairment allowance for financial assets 61.40 32.31 - 93.71
Unamortised Fees on |loans 1.41 {0.88) - 0.53
Other Temporary Differences 2.09 1.92 - 4.01
Interest Income on NPA - 11.43 11.43
MAT Credit Entitlement - = - -
Unamortised Borrowing Cost (0.74) 0.35_ - (0.39)
Financial Instruments at FVTPL 2.57 (3.47) - (0.90)
Gain on derecognition of financial instruments* - (B.12) (B.12)
Deferred Tax Assets (net) 73.64 37.35 - 110.99

*As per Ind AS 109 ‘Financial Instruments’, on derecognition of loans, the Company recognise difference between the carrying
amount (measured at the date of derecognition) and consideration received (including new asset obtained less any new liability
assumed) as gain in Statement of profit and loss account. Such gain recognised on derecognition of loans is not a real income as per
Income tax Act, 1961, hence is offered to tax over the tenure of loans. Accordingly, deferred tax llability has been created on the
Spread receivable on assigned portfolio (Co-lending portfolio).
Deferred Tax assets created on account of past years tax adjustments has been shown and adjusted against tax expenses provided

for earlier years.

(% in Millions)
Deferred Tax Income oct Deferred Tax
Particulars Assets Statement Assets
March 31, 2021 2021-22 2021-22 March 31, 2022
Deferred Tax Assets-
Provision for Employee Benefits 2.59 0.34 = 2.93
Depreciation 357 0.40 - 3.97
Impairment allowance for financial assets 29.10 32.30 = 61.40
Unamortised Fees and Commission 4.32 {2.91) - 1.41
Other Temporary Differences 0.35 1.75 - 2.10
MAT Credit Entitiement 8.08 (8.08) = =
Unamortised Borrowing Cost (1.82) 1.08 - (0.74)
Financial Instruments at FVTPL (1.98) 4.55 = 2.57
Deferred Tax Assets (net) 44.21 29.43 - 73.64
ot




Mote 37 - Maturity anakesis of assets and labilities
The [able Delow Shows &0 analyss of Soety and liabiltes analyted accordng 1o when ey are expected to be recowened or sottied. They have been classified o matune sndior be
repaid within 12 montfs or afber 12 months. With regard 16 loans and advances bo custome s, the Company uses thie same basis of expected repayment as wsed for estimating the EIRL

(2 in Miskons)
As at March 31, 2023 As st March 31, 2022

ﬂ&l}%ﬂﬂmﬂm_‘fﬂdﬁﬁ TR T
319, . i = 14, . 234,20
L] [JERT] JO0E2 FEEES] 107,50 29003 |
0.1 . 0.91 1162 1062
THAL 27 23,450 60 1,476, 80 | 035] 1653705 |
114548 655,48 1,800.96 53,50 539 64 ]
TN ELI 51,79 1.54 r [1:E]]
25520047 17,824.92 3,990.19 16,156.16 | 30,146.35

5.29 s 5.0 044 : [T

. 110, 110,99 - TiE 7364

- 162.25 1RZ.15 - 4,60 B4 0 |
M3 = 74,33 C 1082 L

. 15.79 15.79 s 5. 511
45,58 159 49,27 35.50 4.1 3960 |
s : i 446 LA __ A
12561 31232 437.91 49.40 158.58 207.98
2,430.07 2583279 24,262.83 4,039.59 16,314.74 ] 20,35433
1767 - 17.67 3.9 . 370 |
12109 - 121.99 .63 - BLA3
3807 . 3507 16,22 : [LEH
ERTT] EAFET] FIREED) 35179 11,876.55 1457835
LAXT18 17303 160021 L 9389 1,065.13
5,714.51 17,293.34 | 2300785 | = 3BOS6F | 00 1102045 | 1573512 |
FAE] . FAF] % : s
303 15.07 38.10 1-3;3 743 30.66
0.4 x 20.34 14.38 = 14.38
5108 | 1507 56.16 40.66 7.43 48.09 |
5, 765.60 _Fiﬁ 23,074.01 3, Ba6.33 11,927.88 | 1577321
[3,335.53]] 5,188.82 193.26 4,386,856 4,581,172

The primary objectives of ihe Company's capitsl management policy are 1o ensure that the Company comples with externally mposed capital requinements and msintoins strong credil
ratings and healtfy capital mdios in onder b Suppon 25 business and to maximise sharsholdens value. The Company mansges &5 copital structure and makes sdstments to o
according o changes in sconomic conditionrs and the rsk ctharacienstics of (ks activfies, Capital Management Policy, ohiectives and processes re urder consEant reviem by the Doard,
For detads of Capital ho Risk Assets Ratio [CRAR) refer Note na, 56.1




(T in Millions)

As at April 01, As at March 31,
Particulars 2022 Cash Flow Other 2023
Debt securities - - a -
Borrowings other than debt securibies 14, 578.35 6,671.39 (20.83) 21,228.91
Total liabilities from financing activities 14,578.35 6,671.39 (20.83) 21,228.91
(% in Milligns)
As at April 01, As at March 31,
Particulars 2021 Cash Flow Other 2022
|Debt securities 248.49 (250.00) 1.51 -
{Borrowings other than debt securities 11,308 .48 3,250.07 19.79 14,578.35
ETu'I;aI liabilities from financing activities 11,556.97 3,000.07 21.30 14,578.35




Mote 39 - Fair value measuremants

Fair value s the price that would be recefved to sell an asset or paid to ransfer & Hability n an orderly transaction in the principal (or mosl advantageous) marked at the medsurement date

under current market conditions, regardiess of whether that price (s directly shservable of estimated w=5ing & valuation technigue,

Ind A5 107, Financial [nstrument - Dischesure” requines. classilication of the valuation method of financial Instruments measured at faw value in the balance Sheet, wsing a thiee leved fair-
value-higracchy (which reflects the significance of inputs used in the measurements), The hierarchy gives the highest prioty to un-adpusted quoted prices in active markets for identical
wisets or Kabdities (Leved 1 madsurernents) and lowest prionty to unobsenvable inputs (Leved 3 measurements). The three levels of the fair-value- hieranchy under Ind AS 107 ane described

Bl
39.1 Instrumants ilfiors)
Particul As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 Lot
A/TOCI FTPL Amartised cost FVTOCT FVTPL Amortised cost |
[Financial assets
| Investments
|- Mutual funds 1,063.74 -
- . 58314
Trade recahables 0.91 -
| Loans {Including POCT loans) ¥ 25,450,560 16,937.15 |
Cash and cagh pqubaients 319,84 2,314.20
Bank Balances other than abowe 200,82 o003
| Other financial Assets S SLT9 z ____2LB3
Total financial assets = 1,063.74 26,761.18 * = 20,146.35
Financial llabilities
| Dervative Finanial Instnaments 17.67 = 4.79 = 2
Bosrowings - 21,228,591 - 14.578.35
Ti 161.06 = TH.BS
fi liaki . 1,600.21 - - 1,065.13
Total financial liabkilithes 17.67 - 22.990.18 .79 = 15,722.33

39,2 Fair value hierarchy

This section sxplains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are (a) recognised and mezsured ot fair value and (b) measured at
amortised cost and for which faer values are dsclosed in the financial siatements. To provide an indication about the reliabiity of the inpuls used n determimng fair value, the Company has
classified s financial instruments. into the three levels presoribed under the accounting standard. An explanation of each level follows undemeath the table.

{0 in Milkons)
Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value - Fair Value
|recurring fair value measurements e iehcioinic I ) Level 2 Level 3 L
Financial assets
[ Mutusal furds 7 106374 L0617 - 3 LDE3.74 |
LL L,06374, 106374 - = 1,063.74
Financial Liabilities
T f 164 17.67 17.67 - 17.67
financial [ 17.67 = 17.67 - 17.67
Financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost. Notes Carrving A " Fair Value
Level 1 Lewel 2 Level 3
As at March 31, 2023
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 3 319,84 319.84 L 31584
|_Eank Balances other than above 4 20052 200,82 i 200,87 |
|_Trage Recewabies 5 091 : 091 091
| Loans {Induding POC] loans) ] 25.450.60 < 15,501 87 EE0382
- 7 3732 - * 737,23 73722
Other financial assets -] 51.79 - - 51.79 51.7%
Total financial assets 6, 761.18 520.66 26,393.74 265,914.40
Financial Liabilities
Trade & Other Payable 14 161.06 - 161.06 161,06 |
| Debt Securities 15 - : z
Borrowings (other than debt sarurities) 168 21,228.91 = 21.278.91 21,228.91
Other financial 17 1,600.21 . » 1,600.21 |
Total financial fiabilities 22.990.18 - 21,990.17 22,990.17
[® in Milligns)
Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value - Fair Value
Motes Amount Total
recurring fair value measurements Carrying Level 1 Lavel 2 Lovel 3
As At
Financial assets
T - -
Total - - - -
Financial Liablities
o




w I ) [ 379 ] - 1 ir ] - 1 3.79 |
1 i | liabilities | [ 3.79 | = | 379 | - |

(% in Milicns)

Financial assets and labilities measured at amortised cost N N Fair Val
for which fair values are disclosed o[ Lavel 1 m_-l:. Level 3 o
|As at March 31, 2022
|Financial assets
| Cash and cash equivalents E] L3140) 2 23400 2.314.20 |
| Barik Balancess ather than above : 290.03 79003 - 290,03
| Trade Receivables ] - . = : :
| Loans & 16,937.15 - : 1693715 16,937.15 |
|- Pass throuch Cenificates 7 563.14 - - SE314

Other financial assets ] 2183 21 21.83
au.ufnﬂm 20,146.35 #,604.23 e 17,542.12 20,146.35 |
|Financial Liabilities
| Trade & Dther Payable ] 78.85 ] = 7885 7885 |
| Debt Securties 15 = 3 - . :
| Borrowings (other than debe securties) 168 18,578.35 £ - 14,578,35 M5BT
__ Other nancial kabdities 17 1,065.13 - ] 1065131 106513 ]
Total financial liabilities 15,722.33 £ - 1572233 | 1572233 |

Lewvel 1: Leved | hierarchy includes financial nstruments mexsured using quoted peices. This includes listed equity instruments, traded bonds and mutual funds that have quoted price, The
fair value of afl equity instruments (including bonds) which ame traded in the stock exchanges s valued using the casing price a5 at the reporting period. The mutisl funds ane valued using
the closing Net Asset Value

Level 2: The fair valie of financial instruments that ame not traded in an sctive manet (for exsmple, raded bonds, over-the-courter desivatives) is determined wsing valuation techiiguss

which maximise the wse of observable market data and rely as littie as possible on entity-specific estimates. IF all significant inputs required 1o fair valoe an instrument are observable, the
instrument & inchaded in level 2

Lewed 3: [f one o mare of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument i included in level 3. This i the case for unisted equity securites, contingert
considaration and indemndfication assey included in leved 3

The carrying amoints of rade recedvables, trade payables, capdal creditors and cash and cash equivalents are considered (o be the same as thewr fair values, due o their shom-term naturs,

The comparny Gives loan at foating rate with terms Incuding the foed interest rate for inibal period. The fair value of these loans approxamates the carmying ameunt,
Fof financial pasets and liabiltics that are measured at fair value, the carmying amounts ate sgual 1o the far values,

The: Compary's barrowings ame at floating rates therefore fair value of these bomowings aooroaamates the carmying values.




Note 40.1, Risk Disclosures

Company’s risk i5s managed through an integrated risk management framework, including ongoing dentification,
measurement and monitoring, subject to nsk imits and othar controls. This process of risk management is critical to the
Company’s continuing profitability and each individual within the Company is accountable for the risk exposures relating
to his or her responsibilities. The Company is exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk.

It is the Company’s palicy to ensure that a robust risk awareness is embedded in its organisational risk culture.

40.2. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that the Compary will incur a loss because its customers or counterparties fail to discharge their
contractual obligations. The Company manages and controls credit risk by setting limits on the amount of risk it is willing
to accept for individual counterparties.

40.2.1 Impairment assessment

40.2.1.1 Exposure at Default

The Exposure at Default is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date including the undrawn commitments. EAD
is taken as the gross exposure under a facility upon default of an obligor. The principal cutstanding, overdue principal,
accrued interest, overdue interest less excess received from the customers is considered as EAD for the purpose of ECL
computation,

The advances have been bifurcated into following three stages:

Stage 1 = All exposures where there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition or that has
low credit risk at the reporting date and that are not credit impaired upon orgination are classified under this stage. The
Company classifies all standard advances and advances up to 0-30 days default under this category. Stage 1 loans also
include facilities where the credit risk has reduced and the loan has been reclassified from Stage 2.

Stage 2 - All exposures where there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition but are not
credit impaired are classified under this stage. Finandial assets past due for 31 to 90 days are dassified under this stage,
Stage 2 loans also include facilities where the credit risk has reduced, and the loan has been reclassified from Stage 3.

Stage 3 - All exposures assessed as credit impaired when one or more events that have a detnmental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that asset have occurred are dlassified in this stage. For exposures that have become
credit impaired, a lifetime ECL is recognised and interest revenue is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to
the amortised cost (net of provision) rather than the gross carmying amount. more than 90 days Past Due is considered as
default for dassifying a financial instrument as credit impaired.

40.2.1.2 Significant increase in credit risk

The Company continuosusly monitors all assets subject to ECLs. In order to determine whether an instrument or a
portfolio of instruments is subject to 12 months ECL or lifetime ECL, the Company assesses whether there has been a
significant increase in credit rsk since initial recognition. The Company considers an exposure to have significantly
increased in credit risk if contractual payments are more than 30 days past due.

40.2.1.3 Definition of default and cure

The Company considers a financial instrument defaulted and therefore Stage 3 (credit impaired) for ECL calculations in all
cases when the borrower becomes 90 days past due on its contractual payments.

As a part of a qualitative assessment of whether a customer Is in default, the Company also considers a variety of
instances that may indicate inability to pay. When such events occur, the Company carefully considers whether the event
should result in treating the customer as defaulted and therefore assessed as Stage 3 for ECL calculations or whether
Stage 2 is appropriate. Such events include:

a) Significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

b} A breach of contract such as a default or past due event;

) The restructuring of a loan or advance by the company on terms that the company would not consider otherwise; or
d} It is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial recrganisation




It is the Company’s policy to consider a financial instrument as “cured’ and therefore re-classified out of Stage 3 when the
borrower makes necessary payments & the borrower is not 90 days past due after such payments. The decision whether
to classify an asset as Stage 2 or Stage | once cured depends on the updated credit grade, at the time of the cure, and
whether this indicates there has been a significant increase in credit risk compared to initial recognition,

40.2.1.4 Probability of Default ("PD") estimation process
Probability of default (“PD") is defined as the likelihood of default over a particular time hosizon. The PD of an obligor is a
fundamental risk parameter in credit risk analysis and depends on obligor specific as well as macroeconomic risk factors,

a) The Company has applied 12 months PD to stage 1 advances

bjThe Lifetime PD ks computed using basic exponentiation technique after considering the residual maturity of the
respective loan.

c) PD of 100% Is considered for Stage 3 assets.

Days past due are a primary input for the determination of the PD for exposures. The Company collects performance and
default information about its credit rick exposures analysed by portfolio. For some portfodios, rating based published
information is used.

The Company employs statistical models to analyse the data collected and generate estimates of the remaining lifetime
PD of exposures and how these are expected to change as a result of the passage of time. Such statistical models are
selected considering the availability of information related to the probability of default for each product. This analysis
includes the identification and calibration of relationships between changes in default rates and changes in key macro-
economic factors.

For the purpose of determination of impact of forward locking information, the Company applies various macrg economic
(ME) variables as stated above to each portfolio and assess the trend of the historical probability of defaults as compared
to the forecasted probability of default. Based on the directional trend of output, management applies an overlay if
required. Owvertime, new ME variable may emerge to have a better correlation and may replace ME being usad now.

The lpans are segmented into homogenous product categories to determine the historical POYLGD as per similar risk
profiles, this segmentation is subject to regular review For portfolios in respect of which the Company has limited
historical data, external benchmark information is used to supplement the intermally available data.

40.2.1.5 Loss Given Default ("LGD")

Loss Given Default ("LGD") is defined as the loss rate on the exposure, given the bormrower has defaulted. LGD is being
calculated for all financal instruments under risk parameter approach by way of evaluation of historical data on defaults,
recovery amounts, collateral liquidaton, direct expenses, and opportunity cost for each default.

40.2.1.6 Forward looking information

in its EGL modets, the Company relies on a broad range of forward looking information as economic inputs, such as. GDP
growth, Consumer Price Index, Unemployment rate, Lending Interest Rate etc The inputs and models used for calculating
ECLs may not always capture all characteristics of the market at the date of the financial statements. To reflect this,
qualitative adjustments or overlays are occasionally made as temporary adjustments when such differences are
significantly material

40.2.2 Analysis of risk concentration - Refer Note 56.8.3

40.2.3 Collateral and other credit enhancements

The amount and type of collateral required depends on an assessment of the credit risk of the counterparty. Comparny
has Guidedines in place covering the acceptability and valuation of each type of collateral. The Company also adheres (o
thie NHE guidelines in respect of maintenance of adequate Loan to Value Ratios.

The main types of collateral for home loans are mortgages over residential properties.

Management monitors the market value of collateral and requests additicnal collateral in accordance with the underlying
agreement.

In case of defaults by customers, where the Company 5 unable o recover the dues, the Company throwgh a legal
process enforces the security and recovers the dues.




40.3 Liguidity risk and fuating mansgement

Licuacity reuk is defined as the risk that the Company will encounter fficully i mesting oblgations sssockated with financal Rabites that gre settiad by deliverng cash or another financial asset.
Lipuichy risk arises because of the podstaley that the Company might be unable i meet IS payment obbgaticns when they ol due 5 & result of mematches in the tming of the cash Aows
under both noemual and stress Grcumstances. Such scesanios could occu when funding noeded for ilquid asset PoSEIoNS 15 N0t avadabis (o the Company on acceptable termes. To ket this risk,
mANAETEnt has armieged for diversified fundmg sowrtes and acopted a policy of managng sssets by montaring Future cash fiows and iguidity on a daily Basis.

Licgeslity stsk is managed m aocordance with company's Atsst Liabslity Management Polcy. This poiicy &5 framad as per the Corrent regulatony gukdelines and is spproved by the Boand of Directons.
The Asset Lishisty Managerment Policy is reviewed perodically (o incorporirte Charges 34 requined by reguistony stipulstion or to realion the policy with changes in the sconormc Bndscane. The
Asset Lisbdity Commitbes (ALCD) of the Compary formutates and reviews. strategaes and provides gundance for management of kaquidity risk within the framewock lad oot in the Asset Liatslity

Hasagerment Policy.
The table below furmmarises the matunty mofie of the undrcounted cash Bow of the Compam's financlal Babdtes:
[# in Milions)
Ower 2 Ower 3 Over §
Ower 1 manth moniis months Ower 1 year | Ower 3 year
PRrtscite Upta 30/31 08| L 2 months | upto 3 o m tolyears | toSyears | OV IYeMs|  Total
mpnth | moaths
BT SBR[ Gde|  asg0|  2SN7|  006Lsi|  EUIL|  JALOI|  JRuen0r]
16106 - A L - . 2 - 15106 |
155 A5l 131 10:41 - TN I T 3412 758 II6A2 |
140311 = 6L - - . A . TR

40,4 Interest rate risk
Inbevest rate risk aeises from the podsislity that changes i ntenest rates will affect foture Cash Nows of the fawr values of Raanclal instruments.

The: core tursiness of the company 5 provading housing loans, The company borrows through varices financial instruments (o finance B5 ore kendieg activity, Thess activities expose the mmpany
10 interest rate gk,

Enterest ratn risk i measand (RPOOGh EarTENgs At sk fom &N eamings perspective and thicugh duration of egquEY Trom an economic value perpectrve. Further, exposune to fuctustions in
witerest rabed i plso messored by way of gap analyss, providing a static visw of the maturity and re-priong chanctenstic of balance sheet poSEIONs. AN RREMEST rAE Sevmitivity (4D report is
pregaeed by Classfying all rte sensitive susets and rate senptive latslities Into vances bme percd categones. scconting to contractedbehavioursl maturities or anticipated ne-prcing date, The
difference in the amount of mbe snatve a55ets a0 rabe serive labiites matwing or being re-proed in any bme period cabegOry, ghes BN indication of the extet of expotune b the risk of
polential changes in the MArgns on new o re-griced assets and labdities. The interes! e risk i monitored through albowe messures on 3 quartery bass.

The: folicving tabie demonstrates the sensitivty 10 2 reasonably possible change. in intenest rabes (all other variabies being considersd s constant) of the Company's statement of profit and iis
a0l aquity.

% i Miflorn)
Tncreass | [decrease) n Sonsitivity of profit Sensitiviny of squity
Currency of barrawing bagis points of loss.

2022-23 203273 FITE I
| 50 Barirs pont Lip It an [HETET] [?9.77)
Barrowangs (T} —EEHEM—LM Profit befiore _;_“um bpacton | i)

50 Bass pant i ety [ 077 |
i L0 Bursls, prant Down 11319 15954
50 By poant Lip [ impactcn 0.1 G740
100 Bk point Lip | &3 et o 194,38
Lowns (¥) 50 s pownt Down s o i equty {97.44]
100 Birsrs poant Dowe [360.4 T194.88)]
TR x
[ I 2021-32 [ 021-32 I 031-37
5 B poent U Vit n (36,641 [FILFY]
50 Basis poet Up Impact gn (A AY
R % Gaua poogwn | 0o 64| ey 74
30 G355 poiet Cown 2% ] HAL
1 35 Baws poet U Mgt o [FET] 2155
. 51 B ponnt Up B6:90 | Impact on 10
Lok g2 izt e Taash)|  euly X
50 s powst Down 85.99) i
Ooerational Risk

Operabonad ik ik the nik of Kas rdng om systerms fafare, human emon, fraed or edemed svents. Wien controls il to operate effectvely, operational risks can cause damage t reputagion,
P legal or neguiatory mplications, of kead to inancial foss. The Company clewet expect t eliminate ol cperational risks, DUt it endeavours i manags these risks (hrough 8 control Famework
and by mondneing and responding to potential rreks, Controls include malker Chacker controls, effective segregation of dutes, Soess, suthorisation and reconcitabon procedures, stall sducation
and misetument processes, Such a5 the use of intemal audit,

Druring iha yaar, the Compary fas not come scnoss any instances of fraud.

Capital Managament :

Company's coprbal management objecte & prmaily 1o akeguaed b o y. The Company's captal rameng policy S algred [0 Macrn sopnomic ubustion and incidental risk Eaciors. The
Company’s cashdiows are regularly monitored in sync with annual operating plaes: and long-term and other strategic investment plang. Ther operatonal funding requesments are met Bhrough debt
and operating cash fows generated. The company believes thes approach would ot carsholder valus i long run, Alo, the company has dopted a Conervative approach for Asset Liabiey
management with primacy b0 adequate kquidity, A present 2 Lirge porton of (he company's Esource base i equity. Thevefore the company enjovs a kow geanng.

The: Company maintaes its caoial structure in e with sconoms: conditions and the sk chancienstics of €5 ctivibies and the board reviews the caokal postion an & regular basis.

As at March 31, | As at March 31,
20X

FTETEE] I3
1984 L3420

| ILDG6T.56 |  ALIL6.14
_%,188.83 4,580.12
269 |

4,06
* Dbt includies, deit securities, Bomowings and leate Rabates.




Hote 414 - Dafined Contribution Plan

The Company's state governed provident fund schems ane defined contrisdion plaa Tor its emplnyess. The Contrib By Ehe employer and

wath interest accumulsted thers: on ane payable 10 the enployes at the bme of separation fiom compary' of retrement whichiver is aarier. The banefit wsts
immagliately on rerdering of serices by he emoicves.

¥ i Millacns

1672 LX)

[ 0.28
1718

Mote 418 - Defined Benefit Plan

The Company fud @ defired benefit gratuty plan in indi (funded). The Company's defined benefit gratuity plan 5 a final salary plan for i3 employees, which
egEEs: CONtributions (o be made (0 4 separalely admeeiened fand, The gratuily plan i povemed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, Under the act, empioyes
wii hird completed five yean of service & entited (o specific benefit. The kel of benefits provided depends on the member's length of senice and salary at
separation/retrement. The fund has the form of & trust and & is governed by the Board of Trstees, whech conists of an equal number of smployes and employoe
regresentatives. The Boand of Trusines &5 msponsible Ior i admisistration of the plan 35583 aad for the definition of e Fwestment shistedgy.

The folligwing table sets out the status of the Defined Benedt Gratuity Pan a5 per the actuanal vaksaton by the mdependent Actiary appoanbed by the Comgany:

Particulirs —mlh,m—,_
As at March 31, 2023 | A§ pf Mprch 31, 2032
Present Vahse of Benafi Obiagalon at the Begnning
10.58 T8l
| St Service Cost 245 .34
| lnterest Cogt 060 043
| Pst Serece Cogt [Vesind Bonefie) S
__Lighslty transfarre] Ind Acpestions = -
| Remeaswrament [gh il = 2
,Benefit Paad From e Fund (139 [0.28) |
Actuarial (Gain VLeases on Dbigaters - Dus 1o [La) (038}
| Change in Demooianie ASSMOtons
Anaral [ Gaina )Losses on Obigatons - Due (o L (.03
Achmwial [Gasw ) Losses an Dbsgatons - Dus to 555 Loz
Presant Value of Benefit Obligation st the End
‘ 1B.55 10.57
Movements in the fair value of the plan assets are as foilows:
- i {® in Mifioms)
Particulan EEE
|_As at March 31, 2032 |
| Fasr Walue of Pian Asgets o the Begrmng of the vear 7.9 359 |
|__Ietmress incoma (L. [ H
| Leniribulons iy Smikyer FL ] 131
| Aszets traneferid [nfAoutSions = £
| Expected Contribntions by the employess - -
| Bongl P From the Fang TE:T [T
| Enmaeasurermieng gn (ings) = =
| Betuen on Pan Assets, Exchadog Inere [nopme 0.13 [NE]
| Fair Value of Plan Assets at the End of the vear 9.87 7.78
Amount recognized in the balance sheet from the Company's abligation in respect of its defined
banefit plans is as follows:
(% ins Mo
Particulars
- As st March 31, 2023
{Present aiue of Benefit Dobgaton at the end of e [18.56) [10.58)
| o) —
| Fair wilug OF 0 aEaets 2.87 L1
| Funsted atus {Surplus) (Dofcit] (8.9} (275)
Net (Liability}/ Asset Recognized in the Balance (8.59) (2.79)
L__Sheet
Mzt Interest Cost for current period:
(% in Milligns}
Particulars For tha year snded For th year anded
March 31, 2033 |
Present Vaks of Benefit Otlgaton at the Beginning 10.58 761
[Faer Value of Plan Assets 31 the Bagsneng of the .19 [5.69)
79 19 |
[T g4z
8.6 010 |

Lvear)
| Mot Listsiity({ Asset] at the Becmning
| intmrest Cost 5
| [leerest Income) (0.44) 321
L Mt Interest Cost for the yiar
o

a—



Amounts recognised in the statement of profit and loss s respect of thess defined banefit plans

wri i Pl o
{8 in M)
For tha yaar endad Far the year ended
March 31,2023 | March3y 2022 |
165 FET
lil.l.iln D.l.l.
81 232

Fans
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
Rt on plan assets [exchuding amaums eciuded in {0.13) [T"RET)
| Actusnial {gaing) | lopses on defined benafit .12 [Tl
nnw:urm;mmi-mw 599 [

The fair value of the plan assets at the end of the year for sach category an as follows:

(¥ in Milions]
Category of Assets | GratultyFund
| A5 #t March J1, 2022 |
| Contral Gowt. Secunts * ]
Dietst Scurtion, Moy Marked Secunes and Bank : :
| Doposis
| Mtual Funds 2 :
|__Fnsures Hannged Funds .78 1.79
| Cosi s Carsh Eruivalents 011 f
| Oihers 2 3
| Tokad a.ar 7.79
Maturity Analysis of bonefit payments
{t in Moy
mnm!uw-!!mm As at March 31, 2023 | As at March 31, 2022
|1t olloweing s .67 31 |
[ 2nd fofiowng year 85 %]
| Juct loliowing year 57 91
|__dah fplowing ver 2,39 57
| Eh Srelipeing i A5 [ET]
Sum of Years & to 10 1,66 154 |
e of Yehrs |1 and above 6.50 154 ]
Code of security

T Inclian Parkament has approved the Code on Sockal Security, 2020 which sulrimes the Provident Fund and the Gratufy Act and rules theen under. Tha Minisiry
of Labour snd Empioyment hai ko released draft rules thomsander on 13 November 2000, and has inibed sugpetions rom sakehokders whach are under ative
consideration by the Minitry, The Cormpany will vsheale the el asweis the impact, i sy, and acoount for the same onos the rules am notified snd become
Thit estimates of future Salary Growth, facioned in achuaeisl vahuabon, take sccount of inflation, seniciity, promotion and ot nEkevant. Tactons such a6 supply s
dermand in (P employment market. Sech et nates ane wery long tenm and ane not based on bmited past experience | rmrreiate future. Empirical evidence sho
Suggests (Rt i wery lang beten, consistent high salany growth rates ane nof possble. The waid estimates and assumptions have been reliad upon by the auditons.

Sensitivity analysis
— (% in Malion}
Particulars As at March 31, 2023 | Asat March 31, 3022 | As at March 31, 2023 | As 8t March 31, 3037
|Serptvny Level 1% incronse I3 sy 1% gocrease 1% pecradse |
| Enpact on defined eyl cbigaton (n T)
1 Drpcoued Rate (. [TECT] 083 039 |
1 Future: Selary [ncrisases Q.83 [ ;] (1R (B3m
|3} Emploves Tumgver 102011 fos] [¥70 0,09 |
Note

~The seniftivity analyss have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective Bssumitions oocurting at the and of tha reporting period,
while holding il D ASSLATOUONS CONSIENL.

“The sentitwily anslyss piesentd abows may not be repreietabve of the actual change o Ehe projected benefit obligation 3s & I unkinly that the change in
sumpeon woold oooue in solation of one another 35 Some of the BSSUMPLCETS My be conelated.

~Furthermom, i prosenting the abowe sensitivily snafysis, the presant vislue of the projectsd benefit obhgation hud been caltulabed uking the projectsd Lt omde
mresthod o1 the end of the reportang period, which & the ame method as appled in caiculating the progecieg el pbigation &5 ecogaised in the baliace ts.

~There wark N0 Changee in tha meethods and JESUmptions user n preparning the sensitivty snalysis from pioe year.




Fote 42 - Ematowes Stock Ontion Puan (ES0P]
Doprarey 0 v, i Cltabub! el LY | Mesesng) ConTadty] Pl grivitent Wl ESDPS 10 e imigicntes of The Cormgueny
& charge of © 1954 Millons: & recognass i e sistsment of Profic & Loss durng the yesr endesd Maech 11 3970 [yesr endied March 11, 3007 ® 4,55 Millomi)
Mots 43 - Seqmest |sformation [IND-AS 1081
Sagisent

The Company operates masnly in e busness sepment of fand besed nancng actindty. Al oiher sctrvites revolve sroend e maen Suseess. Purdher, ol scTrilbies
Al et O wilhoh [aghl, A Salh, IRENE I 1 SBDAGESS edrLabEg WAQMENEE M6 [ir T fronace O InT AS 108 of O0erating SeQemests”
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Note 45 - Leases

The chanaes in the carrying value of ROU assets are as follows: (% in Millions)
As at March 31, | As at March 31,
Particulars 2023 2022

Gross carrying value

Balance as at the beginning of the Year 6B.63 32.70 |
Additions 141.91 52.84
Terminations/modifications {18.26) {16.91)

Balance as at the end of the Year 192.28 68.63

Accumulated depreciation

Balance as at the beginning of the Year 21.80 19.89
Deprediation 27.51 14.09
Terminations/modifications {11.80) {12.18)

Balance as at the end of the Year 37.51 21.80

Net Carrying Value at the end of the Year 154.77 46.83

The following is the movement in lease liabilities during the year: (% in Millions)

As at March 31, | As at March 31,
Particuiies 2023 2022

Lease liabilities

Balance as at beginning of the Year 51.99 14.19

| Additions 134.23 50.81
Terminations/modifications (7.81 {5.85)
Finance expense 13.26 6.29 |
Payment of lease liabilities {33.17) {13.400
Translation adjustments - -

Balance as at the End of the Year 158.50 51.99

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at March 31, 2023, on an undiscounted basis:

(¥ in Millions)

Tenure 31st March 2023 | 31st March 2022

Less than 1 year 41.29 18.48
1-3 years 73.83 25.18
3-5 years 54.12 13.83
More than 5 years 57.58 B.69
Total 226.82 66.18

The entity has adequate liquidity for payment of lease liabilities, The Company regularly maonitors and pays lease rentals in timely manner

as per the terms of respective leave and license agreement.

The Company has right to extend lease term as per mutually agreed terms laid down in respective leave and license agreement. The
Company takes into account effect of extended lease term while recording the lease assets and lease liabilities accordingly.




Hote 45 - In accordance with Ind AS - 33 Esmings per Share, the computation of earnings per share i set out below

Particulnrs ‘Year ended March 31, | Year ended March 11,
w033 2022
[ [ [ 047 43177
" EE_ = 71,209,790 B.714 350 |
e 71,303,790 50714, 040 |
LAJAB) ] B.7] FATH
(AWE) r 8.71 EATY
‘Year ended March 31, | Year snded Masch 31,
2023 2022
g 2120070 £0,714.380 |
P Il  sogiazeg]
Mote 47 « The Company bl Bak N0 smoaimeent of assets 2756 uring the wear s roined urder [ND) AS 36 "Imeaiement of Assets”
Mole 48 - Contingent Liability
[ronme Ty e uhder disoube T 121 Hlord (March 11, 2002 © 0091 Mllons)
Mote 4% - Canital and other commitment
) Extrnated amount of (oniracts remnng (5 b exacubed and mofl proseed for ' 51,30 Miliors (March 11, 2022 ¢ 1.0 Miliond)
b} Other Commitments
Pending daborsements. of sanctioned ioans § 3,115.90 Milions (Masch 31, 2027 ® 2,528, 04 Milone]
Mote 50 - Disclossres purssant to REI Motification - REL/DOR/ 2021-32/86 DOR.STR.AEC.51/21.04.048/ 2021-32 dated September 24, 2021
) Detadks of ransler through assGrement in respect of oans not 0 Gefaull dunng the guieter i yele ended March 11, 2021
|For the quarter endesd March 31, 2023 [For the year ended March 31, 2023
L LT A5 |
£0.00 2000 |
19,43 1513 |
dety Preroed [in Yas o FETE
qverace of wngiln secuty Coverpoe [in %) 1983 =  jsoow |
The atove tranaction i pursuaet o Co-Lending opton 1] (Dinect Assigrment ] purssant bo BB netificeten RRLUT020-71/61F100, 00 Plan. B0 Mo /T D5 01/ 2020-21 dated Septermber 04, 2020

b} The Compary has not transfermsd or acouired any ian not i default durna the wear ended HMarch 31, 2023
€] Thee Company has soduinsd stressad ioan during the vear endet Maech 31, 3003

i® in pasions)

F

Weighted average nescual tenor of loans aoquired
LN Yearsh

Mote 51 - In the opinon of the Management, the Curment Assets, Loans & Advances sen realirable in B ordinary pourss of business ot least acul 1o he amount L which they ane stated in the Balance Shest. The
prowison for ail known abities i adeguale and nol im exess of the amount reasonably Aecessary.

Note 52 - The company has reported frads aggregating o % M (March 31, 2022 ® NE) hased on management reporing o fisk commities and bo the R rough prscrited retumi.

Mate 53 - Details of all collateral i o8 security for labilithes

I¥ ins Milbor)

Particulars

L SCaryinpamouatof inancislametspledged |
AzatMarch 31,3033 [ 2 AsatMarch 31,2033 2 |

e B,
Lo hecematiar s coligteral (nder nding

75,867.34 [EFITT ]
| B iy rcas
Recefmbies from imvestment in secunbes as 1,063.74
|aotaeny
Loans recesvabie o3 coateral under FTC agresments. o p ] j--cNL]
mmmmmmﬂlmml 52056 2,504.23

Mote 54 - Disclosurs pursusnt to RED Motification -REL/2021-22/ 31 /DOLSTILAEC 11/ 70.04.048/ 2021- 12 dated Moy 05, 2021

e “!ﬂ!ﬂ"_\ﬂ‘
Y] 1] (] [E]
Exposure to
Exposure 1o accounts sccounts classified
classified as Standard as Standard
Type of & J consaquent to Of (A}, aggregate deblt OF A} armount Of (&) mmsowent paid consequent by
implamantation af that dipped into NPA written off during by the borrowers Imnplementation of
rotalution plan - Pedition during the half-year Ithe Ball-year during the hall-yesr resolution plan =
i a1 the end of the Position as at the
previows hall-year (A) * ‘endl of this hall-year
-
[Personsd Logen I
|Soponate Lopns = =
|G which MSHES
ﬁ; FFR - 1M 7.0 |
12035 A = FET] 117.04 |

* Tiotal POS of restractuned atcounts a4 on Sepbember 30, 2022
** Tean! POS of a8 bve testroctuned cades 85 o0 March 31, 2003

,d;l—-

—




Note 55 - Additional regulatony information under division I to schodule 111 as per notification dated March 24, 2021

{1} Tithe deeds of Immovable Property not held in the mame of the Company:
Ty Companry dos nok own amy immavaiile prooees

(1) Revalsation of Property, Flant and Eguipment:
Tt Company has nof revalued Prooerty. Plani and Eguinment dusing he vear,

(1) Revalsation of Intanaible Assets:
The Company has not realued [ntanaible assets dureg ife e

{iw) Loans or Advances:
During the ver, the Comoany Fus not omwided any loans or advances to promoters, dinecionrs and KHPs.

{w) Intanaibie assets under develooment soeing schedube:

2 (% in Mo
T RIS rter B Amount in Intangibhe Assets under development for a persod of I
LR Liess than 1 yoar 1-2 years | 2-3 yoars |__Morn than 3 years
| Prajects in progess [Software] [ERE] 10.60 | =] - 7433
{vi) Details of Banami Property held:

Ko procesdings have Deen indisted of pending sgainst the company for holding sy benami property under the Prohibstion of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended from
Time 0 D) and Ehe rules made thersunder.

{vii) Security of current assets against bormowings:
During the year, the Company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits,

{wii) Wilhal Defaulter;
The: Comousny b not been declared a5 wilful defaulter by any bank or financial instfubion or other lender.

fin} Relationship with Struck off Companies:

Nature of tansaction
Nama of struck off Compary with struck off | Balance autstanding | oo onship with
i struck off Company
| PAYAL FINAJCIAL SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED BA
Wﬂ;ﬁm NA |
| TALOPP HE COMSUNL TING PRIVATE LIMITED :
L NETCLICK INFOCOMM PRIVATE | IMITED Intemet senvce: - t

(=} Reaistration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies [ROC):
(Dsrinag IFse v, Eheeve wrk A Celay i registration of chame or satisfaction with ROC and no change o pending for reaistration.

(=i} Compliance with number of lavers of companbes:
The Compary has compled wih the regusrements of number of lavess a8 Der Saction 185 of Companiss Act. 2011

i) Anabytical Ratios:
Particulars Mustmesator Benamenatar Current Year Previous Year o Variance ""'""'I"“'“'"!"'!'“ o

{#] Capftal to rak-weighted | Tolal Capstal Furds Total risk weighted EENELH #6.97% (I9A5%) | There was 3 substantial

sty ratio [CRAR) pisets) evpirires increase in the kot rikk-
veisghtad avset snd a

Yo nCrRaGe in astets

that hawe a high risk

vetsght such s

[ Invesiments.

(i) Ther [ CRAR Mt ownad Funds Tietal risk weeighied 12.5T% 45, 95% (F9.13%) | Thers was & substanbal

| minstsl exposurns incroase in the total risk-

et and &

major increae n assets

that Fuve @ high risk

st guch s

. Invesstments.

() Tier [T CRAR Aggregate Tier 11 Captal | Total risk wekghted 0.56% 101% [T !ru.

A55EL5 GADCHUTE

(L) Ligsacity Coverage Ratio * IMA [ma,

* Liguudty Coverage Ratio if not applcatie o the Comgay - i HA

{xiii} Commliance with aporoved Schemels) of Arangements:
Riat anplcabie

{wiw) Utilisation of Borrowed funds and share premium:
Borrowmd furds have been utilised Sor the purnose they have been sanciioned and share Ceemium has been ulilised in working capisl

[ew) (a) Mo Punds have ben acvanced or oaned or mvested (sither from Bonmsed funds o Shans peemium o sy ot SOUrtes of lend of funds) Dy th: Compay 10 of i sy obher person(s)
or entity (), inciuding foreign entities " Intermedianes”) with the undentanding, wiether reconded in writing or olherwsse, that tha Intermediary shall lend or et in party identified by of on
bl of the: Company (Lltimate Bereficianes).

() The Cormpany has not neceswed any fund from any party(s) (Funding Party) wilh the understanding that the Company shall whether, dinecily of indieectly lend of irvest in other persont or
entities identfied by or on behaif of the Company Utimate Beneficanes ™) or provide any Quarames, secueity o the like on behadl of the LURimate Baneficiaies.




Mote 56 - Disclosures required by the Reserve Bank of India /National Housing Bank as per
MNotification no. DOR.FIN.HFC.CC.N0.120/03.10.136/2020-21 dated February 17, 2021 (updated as
on April 01, 2022)- Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company — Housing Finance Company

(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021

56.1 - Capital to Risk Asset Ratio (CRAR)

Particulars

As at March 31,
2023

As at March 31,
2022

(i) CRAR (%)

33.13

46.97

(i) CRAR — Tier I Capital (%)

32.57

45.96

(iif) CRAR — Tier II Capital {%)

0.56

1.01

(iv) Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier- II Capital (% in
Millions)

(v) Amount raised by issue of Perpetual Debt Instruments (% in Millions)

56.2 Reserve Fund u/s 29C of NHB Act, 1987

(% in Millions)

Particulars

As at March 31,
2023

As at March 31,
2022

Balance at the beginning of the year

a) Statutory Reserve ufs 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987

34.59

34.59

b) Amount of special reserve u/s 36(1)(viil) of Income Tax Act, 1961
taken into account for the purposes of Statutory Reserve under Section
29C of the NHBE Act, 1987

210.11

123.71

c) Total

244.70

158.30

Addition/ Appropriation/ Withdrawal during the year

Add:

a) Amount transferred ufs 29C of the NHB Act, 1987

b) Amount of special reserve ufs 36(1)(viii) of Income Tax Act, 1961
taken into account for the purposes of Statutory Reserve under Section
29C of the NHB Act, 1987

164.99

Less:

a) Amount appropriated from the Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of the NHB
Act, 1987

b) Amount withdrawn from the special reserve ufs 36(1)(viii) of Income
Tax Act, 1961 taken into account which has been taken into account for
the purpose of provision ufs 29C of the NHE Act, 1987

Balance at the end of the year

a) Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987

34.59

34.59

b) Amount of special reserve ufs 36{1)(viii) of Income Tax Act, 1961
taken into account for the purposes of Statutory Reserve under Section
29C of the NHB Act, 1987

375.10

210.11

c) Total

409.69

>




56.3 Investment

(% in Millions)

Particulars

As at March 31,
2023

As at March 31,
2022

56.3.1 Value of Investments

(i) Gross value of investments

{a) In India

1,800.96

583.14

(b) Outside India

-

(i) Provisions for Depreciation

(a) In India

(b) Outside India

(iii) Net value of investments

(a) In India

583.14

(b) Outside India

56.3.2 Movement of provisions held towards

depreciation on investments

(i) Opening balance

(i} Add: Provisions made during the year

(iii) Less: Write-off / Written-bank of excess provisions during
the year

(iv) Closing balance

56.4 Derivatives

56.4.1 Forward Rate Agreement (FRA)/ Interest Rate Swap

(% in Millions)

Particulars

As at March 31,
2023

As at March 31,
2022

(i) The notional principal of swap agreements

4,598.97

1,890.80

(i) Losses which would be incurred if counterparties failed to
fulfil their obligations under the agreements

(iii) Collateral required by the HFC upon entering into swaps

(iv) Concentration of credit risk arising from the swaps

(v) The fair value of the swap book

17.67

3.79

* Swap agreement are comprised of Forward Exchange

** Concentration of credit risk arising from swap is with banks and financial institutions.

56.4.2 Exchange Traded Interest Rate (IR) Derivative

(% in Millions)

Particulars

As at March 31,
2023

As at March 31,
2022

(i) Notional principal amount of exchange traded IR
derivatives undertaken during the year (instrument wisa)

(ii) Notional principal amount of exchange traded IR
derivatives outstanding as on 31st March 2022 (instrument
wise)

(i) Notional principal amount of exchange traded IR
derivatives outstanding and not “highly effective” (instrument

(i) Mark-to-market value of exchange traded IR derivatives
outstanding and not “highly effective” (instrument wise)

B

-_—




56.4.3 Disclosures on Risk Exposure in Derivatives

A. Qualitative Disclosure

The company has to manage various risks associated with the lending business. These risks include
liquidity risk, exchange risk, interest rate risk and counterparty risk. The Financial Risk Management and
Hedging Policy as approved by the Board sets limits for exposures on currency and other parameters, The
Corporation manages its interest rate and currency risk in accordance with the guidelines prescribed
therein. Liquidity risk and Interest rate risks arising out of maturity mismatch of assets and liabilities are
managed through regular monitoring of maturity profiles. The currency risk on the borrowings is actively
managed mainly through forward contracts,

All derivative contracts are recognised on the balance sheet and measured at fair value. Hedge accounting
is applied to all the derivative instruments as per IND AS 109. Gain / loss arising on account of fair value
changes are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss to the extent of ineffective portion of hedge
instruments and hedged items. The gains / losses of effective portion of hedge instrument are offset
against gain / losses of hedged items in Other Comprehensive Income.

Foreign exchange forward contracts outstanding at the Balance Sheet date, are recorded at fair value. The
premium or discount arising at the inception of such forward exchange contract is amortised as expense
or income over the life of the contract. The Compnany has entered into cashflow hedges to hedge
currency risk on certain foreign currency loans and to cover future interest on foreign currency
borrowinas.

B. Quantitative Disclosure (% in Millions)
. Currency Interest Rate
Particulars Derivatives Derivatives
(i) Derivatives (Notional Principal Amount) 4,598.97 -
(i) Marked to Market Positions (17.67) -
(a) Assets (+) - =
(b} Liability (<) 17.67 -
(iii) Credit Exposure - -
{iv) Unhedged Exposures - '
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56.6 Exposure

56.6.1 Exposure to Real Estate Sector (% in Millions)
As at March 31, | Asat March 31,
Categany 2023 2022
a) |Direct Exposure
(I} |Residential Mortgages -
Lending fully secured by mortgages on residential property that is or 25,458.85 16,990.11
will be occupied by the bormower or that is rented
(i} |Commercial Real Estate -
Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real estates (office - -
buildings, retail space, multi-purpose commercial premises, multi-
family residential buildings, multi-tenanted commerdial premises,
industrial or warehouse space, hotels, land acquisition, development
and construction, etc.), Exposure shall also indude non-fund based
limits.
(i} |Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS) and other
securitised exposures -
a. |Residential - E
b. [Commercial Real Estate : -
b) |Indirect Exposure
Fund based and non-fund based exposure on NHB and HFCs - -
Total Exposure to Real Estate Sector 25,458.85 16,990.11
56.6.2 Exposure to Capital Market {% in Millions)
As at March 31, | As at March 31,
vartictary 2023 2022
(i} |Direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible] - -

debentures and units of equity-oriented mutual funds the carpus of which is
not exclusively invested in corporate debt

(i)

Advances against shares / bonds [ debentures or other securities or on
clean basis to individuals for investment in shares {including IPOs / ESOPs),
convertible bonds, convertible debentures, and units of equity-oriented
mutual funds

(iii)

Advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible
bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity orented mutual funds
are taken as primary security

(iv)

Advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the collateral
security of shares or convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units of]
equity oriented mutual funds i.e, where the primary security other than
shares [ convertible bonds / convertible debentures [ units of equity
oriented mutual funds ‘'does not fully cover the advances

v

Secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and guarantees
issued on behalf of stockbrokers and market makers

{vi)

Loans sanctioned to corporates against the security of shares / bonds [
debentures or other securities or on clean basis for meeting promoter's
contribution to the equity of new companies in anticipation of raising
reSOUNces.

{vli}

Bridge lpans to companies against expected equity flows [ issues

(v}

All exposures to Venture Capital Funds/Alternate Investment Funds (both
registerad and unregistered)

Total Exposure to Capital Market

56.6.3 Details of financing of parent Company products - The details are not applicable to Company as the Company
is not financing any parent company products

56.6.4 Details of Single Borrower Limit (SGL)/ Group Borrower Limit (GBL) exceeded by the HFC - These details

are not applicable to Company as the Company has not exceeded the SGL and GBL as prescribed by NHE during the

financial year.




56.6.5 Unsecured Advances - The exposure to unsecured advances is ¥ 0.39 Millions (March 31, 2022 ¥ 0.19 Millions)

56.6.6 Exposure to group companies engaged in real estate business

Sr. i Amount (T in

No. Description Millions) % of owned fund
(i) |Exposure to any single entity in a group engaged In real estate business = -
(ii) |Exposure to all entities in a group engaged in real estate business - -




56.7 Miscellaneous

56.7.1 Registration obtained from other financial sector regulators - No registration has been obtained from other financial
sector requlators,

56.7.2 Disclosure of Penaities imposed by NHB or RBI and any other regulators [/ supervisor / enforcement authority -
Mo penalty has been impaosed on the Company by NHB or RBI or any other regulators [ supervisor / enforcement authority.

56.7.3 Related Party Transactions - Details of all material transactions with related parties are disclosed in Note 44

56.7.4 Group Structure

Capri Global Capital Limited
(Holding Company)

l Capn Globad Housing Finance Limited

56.7.5 Rating assigned by Credit Rating Agencies and migration of rating during the year

Sr. No. Instrument Rating assigned Agency Date of Rating ! “IHHI:T:I::}“
1 Long Term Bank Facilities [CARE A+ Care Ratings July D6, 2022 15,000.00
|(Dutiook: Stable)
2 |Long Term Bank Facilites |CARE A+ Care Ratings December 01, 2022 25,000.00
4 1
3 Long Term Bank Facilies |BWR AA- Brickwork Ratings July 25, 2022 25,000.00
{Outlook: Stable)

56.7.6 Remuneration of Directors - Details of all material transactions with directors are disclosed in Note 44
56.7.7 Management - Refer to Management Discussion and Analysis report for the relevant disclosure,

56.7.8 Net Profit or Loss for the period, prior period items and changes in accounting policies - Profit for current year is €
6520.47 Millions. There are no prior period items that have an impact on the current year's profit.

56.7.9 Revenue Recognition - There have been no instances in which revenue recognition has been postponed pending resolution
of significant uncertainties,

56.7.10 Consolidated Financial Statements (CFS) - The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture
accordingly CFS is not applicable.




56.8 Additional Disclosures

56.8.1 Provisions and Contingencies (% in Millions)
Break up of 'Provisions and Contingencies' shown under the head As at March 31, | As at March 31,
Expenditure in Profit and Loss Account 2023 2022
Provisions for depreciation on Investment = .
Provision towards NPA 51.15 25.85
Provision made towards Income tax 178.09 154.84
Provision for Standard Assets (with details like teaser loan, CRE, CRE-RH etc.) 4.10 134.98
Other Provision and Contingencies includes:
Provision for depreciation on fixed assets 49,46 25.63
Provision for gratuity 5.91 0.88
Provision for leave encashment 12.08 0.94
(% in Millions)
Housing Non-Housing
Bremlt m‘m"m & [AsatMarch31, | AsatMarch 31, | Asat March 31, | As at March 31,
2023 2022 2023 2022
Standard Assets
a} Total Outstanding Amount 21,258.64 14,453.13 4,608.70 2,758.51
b} Pravisions made 199.48 1686.45 39.20 35.13
Sub- Standard Assets
a} Total Outstanding Amount 211.85 12349 33.38 20.14
b) Provisions made 82.39 35.42 12.95 5.78
Doubtful Assets — Category I
a) Total Qutstanding Amount 37.58 52.73 3.57 5.69
b) Provisions made 14.80 15.12 1.40 1.64
Doubtful Assets — Category IT
a) Total Outstanding Amount 32.32 49.10 5.17 7.02
b) Provisions made 12.72 14.08 2.04 2.02
Doubtful Assets — Category I11
a) Total Cutstanding Amaunt 0,57 - 0.02 -
b} Provisions made 0,22 - 0.01 -
Loss Assets
a) Total Outstanding Amount - 353 - 0.29
b} Provisions made - 3.53 - 0.29
Total
a) Total Outstanding Amount * 21,540.96 14,681.98 4,650.84 2,791.60
b) Provisions made 309.61 254.60 55.60 44.81

* Amount as per Note 6 is net off provision on ECL, Unamortised processing fees and other accounting adjustments as compared

to above disclosure

56.8.2 Draw Down from Reserves

There has been no draw down from reserves during the yvear ended March 31, 2023 (March 31, 2022 - % Nil)

o
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56.8.3 Concentration of Public Deposits, Advances, Exposures and NPAs

56.8.3.1 Concentration of Public Deposits (for Public Deposit taking/ holding HFCs)
The disclosure of the concentration of deposits taken is not applicable as the Company carries on the business of a
housing finance institution without accepting public deposits.

56.8.3.2 Concentration of Loans & Advances
As at March 31, | As at March 31,
Particulars 2023 2022

Total loans & advances to twenty largest borrowers (% in Millions) 257.17 193.85

Percentage of loans & advances to twenty largest borrowers to total 0.99% 1.11%
advances of the HFC (%)

56.8.3.3 Concentration of all Exposure (including off-balance sheet exposure)

As at March 31, | As at March 31,

Particulars 2023 2022
Total exposure to twenty largest borrowers/ customers (% in Millions) 271.00 22297
Percentage of exposures to twenty largest borrowers/ customers to 0.93% 1.10%

total exposure of the HFC on borrowers/ customers (%)

56.8.3.4 Concentration of NPAs

As at March 31, | As at March 31,

Particulars 2023 2022
Total exposure to top ten NPA accounts (Gross) (% in Millions) 38.63 30.18
56.8.3.5 Sector-wise NPAs
Percentage of NPAs to Total
Sector ldvangas in that sector
Housing Loans
Individuals 1.31%
Builders/Project loans Nil
Corporates Nil
Others il
Non-Housing Loans
Individuals 0.91%
Builders/Project loans Nil
Corporates il
Others Nil




56.9 Movement of NPAs

{% in Millions)
As at March 31, | As at March 31
Farficuis 2023 2022
(i) |Net NPAs to Net Advances (%) (Net of Overall Provision) Ve -ve
Net NPAs to Net Advances (%) (Net of Provision on NPA) 0.76% 1.06%
(ii) [Movement of NPAs (Gross)
{a) |Opening balance 261.94 202.53
(b) |Additions during the year 251.83 131.08
{c) |Reductions during the year 189.31 71.67
(d) |Closing balance 324.46 261.94
(iii) |Movement of Net NPAs
(a) |Opening balance 182,42 150.46
(b) |Additions during the year 149.97 86.03
(c) |Reductions during the year 134.47 54.07
(d) |Clasing balance 197.92 182.42
(iv) [Movement of provisions for NPAs (excluding provisions on standard
assets)
{a) |Opening balance 79.52 52.07
(b) |Provisions made during the year 86.19 45.05
(c) [Write-off / write-back of excess provisions 39.17 17.60
(d) |Closing balance 126.54 79.52

56.10 Overseas Assets
The Company does not have any overseas assets

56.11 Percentage of outstanding loans against collateral of gold jewellery to their outstanding total

assets -Nil




56.12 Off-balance Sheet 5PVs sponsoned
Tha Comoany as not soonsored any 5PV AcconBinaly, the dacioture & nat aoplcabie

56.13 Disclosure of Comalaints

56131 Custamer Complaints
Sr. Mo Parisculars As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2023

2
{3} Mo, of compiaints perding t the beginning of the yesr 7 022 _
{B}_|Mo. of complaits received cunrg the yesr 182 139
e |ho. of complants redressed during the year 1y 139
(d]  [No. of compl pencing at tha end of the year 5 -

56.14 Details of dividend declared during the fnancial vear - Dunng the voear, the Comoany has rot declared dividendl

56.15 RAI vide s circufar rumber RET020-260/DORNBFC (HFC) COND 1IS/0E 10,136/ 0000-21 dated October XX, 2020
defined the principsl Business cribesia for HFCs. Further, & 250 states that (hose HFC wiach does not Rullil the defined crderta a5 on
October 12, 2120 has an option to submit & board approved plan including 3 roadmap i (el the defirsd critena and timeline for
transition to RE[ with in three months from the date of drouls

% of total aseets
% of total assats
towards housing
towands houwsing
Finance finance for

W 7h.40%, 76
31, 2032 71.55% T

56,18 Liguidity Risk Managemant and Liguidity Coweraoe Ratio

56.18.1 Liguidity Risk Managemaent disclosure as st March 31, 2023: Not Aopicaties

56.16,1.1 Funding Concontration based on sianificant counberparty (both deposits and borrowings)

Amount [T n %u of Total %5 of Total
Sr. No. Numbaer of Significant Counterparties Million)
1 ] 085680 HA

56.16.1.2 Top 20 lerpe deposits - Hot appicable. The Compary & mogistersd with Nabonad Housing Bank (o carry on the
iusdness of housing fnanon INGHIUON without SCoegting public deposts.

56.16.1.3 Too 10 bormrowings

A st Amount (¥ in %% of Tatal
Million}
[March 31, 2073
56.16.1.4 Funding concentration based on slanificant instrument/ product
; Maerss of Amount (€ in % of Total
5S¢, Mo, imstrument product
1__Term Lowr from Bank L5 555.20 919 |
2 |Refinance from National Housing Bank 5,354 10 .0% |
56.16.1.5 Stock ratios
Pacticulars Asa%ooltotal | Ass e oltotal | Asa % of total
Nabifties. assats
.} M
A NA |
.99 oA |

= Publec funds” Includes funds, rared eiler Geecily of InGireclly thvough pullc Gepasils, INter-Comornatn depots, ank fnance and
&l fungs receved from outside sources sach as funds rised by ssue of Commercial Pagers, deberfures sic. bul excludes funds
raised by Esue of instruments compulsonly tomvertible into equity shares within 2 pencod not exceederg 5 years Irom the date of
e,

& Oeher short beem Rabdbies, are mxchading Commerncial paper & shor berm non-comvertibie debentuncs

56.16.1.6 Institutional sot-up for Bouidity risk manasgement

The Basrd of Dsrectors are respormible for the overall risk management approach and for approving the ik management Sratogies
ard principies. The Board has consttubed the Risk Management Commthes [RMC) wihich s responsiis lor monitoning the aversll
risk process within the Compasy.

The mestings of RMC wwe held ot quarterty interval. The Risk osrmers ane responsibie for monitonng complisncs with fisk prncgies,
poticies and lmits across the Company, MO srsunis that the credt snd investment exposuns o any party | Company | grmug of
parties or tcompanies does not excoed the internally set BmEs 35 well s Statutony fmits as prescribed by Beseree Bank of India from
time to beme. RMC Develops risk polcies and procedunss and varify adherence i virious ek paramelers ind pradential lmis;
feview the ik manitoning yviem and anuene sfectie risk management.

The Company's Treasury & nesponaibie for managing its assets and lablities and the overall financel stiacture. Y 4 380 primarily
responsgbie for the funding and liquidity risks of the Company.

Tre Boad of Directors has constiubion of Asset Labdfy Commites [ALCO), The Compaens ALCD montors avset Eabiley
misTabches to ensune that thens ane no imbalances of extesise concentrations on either side of the balance sheet. ALDD conducts.
quartery neviews relating b0 the Riquicity posibon and Stredd 1860 adsuming viriows ‘what IF ioenarics. The ALCD is o decision-
makang unil responsitie for balance: sheet, planning from Hsi-retrm perspeciive including strategic management of morest rate and
[quackly ritks. The ALDD s evaiustes the Bormowing Man of subsequent quarters based on privious bommovengs of the Comgany,

In mssesaing the Comfoany's quidy podbon, considenation i ghen [o: (1) present and anticipated asset quasty () present and
future earnings capacity (1) historcal fundieg redquemements (4) curment liquiddy position (53 anticipated luture fundisg neads, and
{6} sourtes of funds. The Compary maintaing o portiolo of marketable ausets that are assumed 1o be easily bgquidated and undramm
cash credit mts which can be used in the event of an unforeseen interrugtion in cash Mow. In Bccondance wilh the Company™s
oy, the lguadiny position S aisesded under  visrety of soenancs, giving due conucderabon to stress Tactons. rdatng 1o boih the
market in gereral and specifically to the Company. Net Bquid assets comsist of cash, short-torm bank deposits and investments in
rmuitusl fund avaslable for mmediate sile, Borovwangs from banks and financial institutions and sse of debentunss e comidernd
a5 importand scures of funds Lo finance lending io customers

The minutes of ALCD meetings am placed befior the RMC and the Boand of Dicectors. mesting for noting

Motn - Total Rabifties refer to the aooneastn of financal Rabiltes and non-Ninanceal labiltes

a’:___,""




56.17 - Disclosures as required under Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company — Housing
Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 dated February 17, 2021 issued by the Reserve
Bank of India.

(% in Millions)

Particulars

R Amount Amount
Liabilities side outstanding i
(1)|Loans and advances availed by the HFC inclusive of
linterest accrued thereon but not paid:
(a) | Debentures : Secured - &
: Unsecured - B
{other than falling within the meaning of public deposits)
(b) | Deferred Credits - -
(c) | Term Loans 21,228.91 -
(d) | Inter-corporate loans and borrowing - =
(e) | Commercial Paper - -
(f) Public Deposits - -
(g) | Other Loans - -

(2)|Break-up of (1)(f) above (Outstanding public deposits
inclusive of interest accrued thereon but not paid):

(a) | In the form of Unsecured debentures - -
() In the form of partly secured debentures i.e. debentures - -
where there is a shortfall in the value of security
(c) | Other public deposits = g

Assets side Amount outstanding

(3)|Break-up of Loans and Advances including bills
receivables [other than those included in (4) below]:
(a) Secured 25,815.41

(b} | Unsecured 0.39

(4)|Break up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and other
assets counting towards asset financing activities

(i) [Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors
(a) Financial lease

(b) | Operating lease

if) |Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors
(a) | Assetson hire

(b} Repossessed Assets

(iil) (Other loans counting towards asset financing activities
(a) Loans where assets have been repossessed =
(b} Loans other than (a) above -
(5){Break-up of Investments

Current Investments
1. |Quoted
(i) | _Shares
() Equity
(b) Preference
(ii} Debentures and Bonds =
(i} | Units of mutual funds 1,063.74
(iv) Government Securities -
(v} Others (Investment in Pass through Certificates) 81.74
2. |Unguoted
(i) Shares
(a) Equity ;
(b} Preference -

(i} Debentures and Bonds
iii) Units of mutual funds
(iv) | Government Securities

{v) Others




Long Term investments

1. |Quoted
(i) Share
(a) Equity -
{b) Preference -

(i} Debentures and Bonds
(iii) Units of mutual funds

(iv) Government Securities =
(v} Others (Investment in Pass through Certificates) 655.48

2. [Unguoted
(i) Shares
(a) Equity
{b) Preference

{ii} Debentures and Bonds
(i) | Units of mutual funds
(iv) | Government Securities
{v) | Others (please specify)
(6)| Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in (3) and (4) above:
Category Amount net of provisions
Secured Unsecured Total

1. |Related Parties **
(a) | Subsidiaries s - -
(b) Companies in the same group = z -

{c) Other related parties = N -
2. |Other than related parties 25,450.21 0.39 25,450.60
Total

(7} Investor group-wise classification of all investments (current and long term) in shares and
securities (both quoted and unguoted) :
Category Market Value| Book Value

1. |Related Parties **

(a) | Subsidiaries

(b) Companies in the same group

(c) | Other related parties

2. |Cther than related parties 1,800.96 1,787.17
Total

** As per applicable Accounting Standard (Please see MNote 3)

(8)|Other information [ [
Particulars Amount

(i} |Gross Non-Performing Assets
{a) Related parties -
(b) Other than related parties 324.46
(i} |Net Non-Performing Assets
(a) | Related parties -
(b} Other than related parties 197.92
(iii) JAssets acquired in satisfaction of debt =
otes:

As defined in Paragraph 4.1.30 of these Directions.

Provisioning norms shall be applicable as prescribed in these Directions.
As per applicable Accounting Standards including for valuation of investments and other assets as also
assets acquired in satisfaction of debt. However, market value in respect of quoted investments and break up /
fair value / NAV in respect of unquoted investments shall be disclosed irrespective of whether they are classified
as long term or current in (5) above,

Ll el Lo

T




Note 56.18 - Provisioning detalis as at March 31, 2023 [ in Milions]
Loss Allowancas Differance
Assat Classification as per REI ncm S m::"'"’ (Provisions) as | Met Carrying Provisions | otween Ind AS
Norms per required under Amount w S 109 provisions
P Indikr 1 g AR Ind AS 109 PROMMS | 2nd IRACP norms
1 2 3 4 {5)=(3}-{4) 3 (7} = (4)-(8)
L. Performing Assets
Standand® |t 1 24,855 76 82.97 24.813.79 71,30 1077
Stage 2 971.58 15571 B15.87 13.24 142.47
Subitotal of Performing Assets 25,867.34 238.68 25.618.66 Bd.44 154.24
2. Mon-Performing Assets (NPA)
3. Sibrtanci Stage 3 24523 55,34 149.90 36.79
b, Doubaful
- up to 1 year Stage 3 4115 16.20 2495 10,25 5.1
- 1 to 3 years Stage 3 37.50 14.76 3.7 1500 {0.24)
- More than 3 yearg Shaqe 3 0.58 0.23 0.35 0.58 (0.35)
|Subtotal for doubtful 79.23 31,19 48.04 Z5.87 5.32
_C. Lo%s Assets Stage 3 - ¥ x - *
Subtatal of NEA 324.46 126.53 197.94 62.66 63.87
Other items such as guarantees, loan|Stage 1 3,000.57 m 3,069.55 202
commitments, etc. whach are in the
scope of Ind AS 109 but not mvmd'iugg F] 13,74 0.67 13.07 0.67
under Current  Income  Recogmition,
Asset Classification and Provisioning|Staga 3 1059 4.14 6,45 4,14
(IRALP) norms:
Subtotal 3,115.90 5.83 3,109.07 - 6,83 |
Total [Stage | 24,895.76 84.59 2481077 7120 11.79
[Stage 2 571.58 156.38 815.21 1324 [ 14
|Stag 3 32446 130,67 193,79 B2.66 REOL |
Total 26,191.80 37204 25,819.77 147,10 224.94

* Standand assets mclude purchased or onginated credit impaired fnancial assets (POCT) of T 43,55 Millipns

Pursuant to the REI circular dated Novembes 12, 2021 -
Clanfications™ (RBI Circular - RB1/2021-2023/1 5/DOR.STRREC.68/21.04.048/2021-27) the Company had aligned its definibon of default from number of instaiments
outstanchng approach o Days Past Due approach. Subsequently on February 15, 2022 wde crcular RBL/2021-2022/158/DOR.STR.REC BS/21.04, (48/2071-22 (RS
Qanfication), RBI has defermed e mplementation of Para 10 of cecular tll September 30, 2022, Accondingly, the Company, in accordance with the said RB] clarfication,
has decided to implement the change in Income Recognition, Asset Classification and Provisioning norms by September 30, 2022, The empact of the RE] crcular, which
wis recognitted in the results of nine months’ period ended December 31, 2021 has been reversed by derecognizing such assets as credt impaired,

“Prudential norms on Income Recognition, Asset Cussificaton and Prowisonng pertaning to Advances -

Provisioning details as at March 31, 2022 {1 in Millions)
Loss Allowances Difference
Asset Classification as per RBI Aspe Gross Carrying | o icionsias | NetCarrying Provisions | e Ind AS
classification as | Amount as per requirad under required as par 109 s
Mormee per Ind AS 109 Ind AS Tt A 108 Amotm IRACP norms | m"“"w'
1 z 3 a (51=(2)(4] & (71 = (41-(6] |
1. Performing Assets
Standard Stage 1 16,114, 74 80,30 16,034.44 43,14 37.16 |
Stage 2 1,055,590 141,38 Foab 16,06 125,22
Subtotal for Performing Assets 17,211.64 121.58 1699006 |  59.20 16238
2. Non-Performing Assets (NPA)
|2 Subrstandard Stage 3 14363 4170 102 43 21.55 15,65 |
| b, Douheful
= up to 1 year Stage 3 5842 16.76 4166 14.60 L16
- 1t03 years Stage 3 5613 16.10 40.02 2245 {5.35)
= Stage 3 - - B - -
Subbgtal for doubtful 114.54 3286 8168 3705 {4.15)
|G, Loss Assets Stage 3 377 377 = 377 =
Subtotal for NPA 26194 7783 154.11 6237 15.46
Ditheer items such as guarantess, loan  |[Stage 1 280307 1143 2783 54 1343
commitments, etc, which are in the
soope of Ind AS 109 but not covered | St3ge 2 19.07 1 16,81 2.26
Aszet Clm'lr.:lh:-n and Provisioning Stage 3 59 169 22 163
[IRACF) norms: o
| Subtotal 2,828.05 17.38 2,810.67 - 17.38 |
Total |Stage 1 16,114.74 5173 16,021.01 43.14 50,58 |
|Stage 2 1,096,950 143.54 953.36 16.06 127.48 |
|Stage 3 261.94 79.52 182,43 62,37 17.15
Total 17,473.58 316.79 17,156.79 121.57 195.22 |
Mote 56.18(a)

Desclosune in note no G & as per the books of acoounts and after considering the mpact on accownt oo Ind AS. However, disciosure i note no, 33 B without consadering
ﬂtlrdﬁicﬁmmﬁanmmnﬁmmfeﬁmlnmmMseﬁhmmderma:ﬂmmnrtﬁ.sstrs{umm'

cost of T33.43 Millians), In note no, 56,18 under the column "gross carmying amownt as per IND AS”, amount disclosed is at Exposee at Default (EAD) ag

Expected Credit Loss (ECL) provesion has besn computed. In this case also, POCT s stated at its gross vakie and shown as standard asset.




Hote 57; Disclosures in Financial Statements- Notes to Accounts of NBFCs refer to clroular RBT/ 2022-23/ 26 DORACC REC. No. 20/ 21.04.018/2022-23
Scale Based Regulation (SBR) dated 19th April 2022

7.1 Expoiures
57.1.1 Exposure to Real Estate Sector
{8 In Mifliong)
Category lunm 31, [ As st March 31,
f§ . | —
Lendng fully setured by mortgages on mesidential property that is or will be occupéed by it borower or that is rented; Exposure| I5,458.85 15,560, 11

wonid also inchude non-fund based (MFB) Bmits
i

Lending secured by Morgages on commertial real exates,office Suldngs, el Space, MUMPUITGSE COMMErtal premises, mulr : E
family residential  budings, multi-tenanted commercial premiges, ndustrial or warehouse space, hotels, land  acguisition,
wmmmwmmmmwm

i Msons)
As at March 31, As at March 31,
203y | 2 2023 @ |

|MMHMMMMMWHMHMMWMNW
of which s not iwshed in
i) athvances against shares | bonds | debentures or other secunities o on Clean basis o ndiiduals  Sor investment in
shanes (inchiding IPDs [ ESOPs), converbible bonds, convertible debentunes, and unsts of squity-onented mutual funds;
) actvances Sor ey other pumposes whene shaeed of convertible bonds or convertible debentunes o units of eguity oriented Mt T
Tunds ane taken a5 riMany security;
i) acvances for any other purposes io the extent secured by the olasieral sscunty of shams o comertible bonds of -
mmwmummmwumnmmmwm;w

ibonds [ comvertible detentures | unils of agquity oriented mutual funds 'doss not fully cover the advances;

¥} secured and unsecuned Acvances iD Stockbrokers and quarantees saued on Behalf of siockbmiers and market makers;

i) leans sancbioned o corporales doainst e security of shaces [ Donds | debenlures or other securities or on cloan basis for]
miexeing pemoter’s condritnbon to the equity of new COMOSNiss i AnGCIpaNon of i resountes;

i) bridge loaves 1o « e against expeciod equily Mows / issues;

will) mmmwmmm;hmﬂwmﬁmrmwum
debentures or units of eqguity criented mutual funds

[Total Exposure to Capital Market ] = 1 -

E

Current Year ~ Previous Year

{includes on Percentage of {includes on
Sectors balance sheet Gross HPAs Gross NPAs to | balance shest Groas NPAS
and off-balance | (¥ Millions) | total exposure in| and off-balance | (¥ Millions)
sheet exposure) that sector | sheet exposure)

3

é EEEEEE 4

E
E FzE

3
Berk | 3555 | shrsl | pboven o 111

Hﬁﬂ-ﬂ m:n.
4,550.54 1539

29,264.14 137.11

& e

I

i1 Tt amount of irtra-oroud Exposures - HIL
il Total amount of top 20 intra-oroun exposures - NIL
i} Pencenage of wira-0roud exposures b ot expodure of the MEFC on borrowers/ costomens - NL

57.1.5 Unhedaed foreson curmency exposure- Mot aookcatie

D e

—







57.3 Disclosure of complaints

57.3.1 Summary information on complaints received by the NBFCs from customers and from the

Offices of Ombudsman

Particulars

As at March 31,
2023

As at March 31,
2022

Complaints received by the NBFC from its customers

(1) Number of complaints pending at beginning of the year

il

il

{2) Number of complaints received during the year

182

(3) Number of complaints disposed during the year

177

139
139}

Of which, number of complaints rejected by the NBFC

&5

55|

(4) Number of complaints pending at the end of the year

5

0

Maintainable complaints received by the NBFC from Office of Ombudsman

(5} Number of maintainable complaints received by the NBFC from
Office of Ombudsman

Mot Applicable

Not Applicable

Of 5, number of complaints resolved in favour of the NBFC by Office
af Ombudsman

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Of 5, number of complaints resolved through
conciliation/mediation/advisories issued by Office of Ombudsman

Mot Applicable

Not Applicable

Of 5, number of complaints resolved after passing of Awards by Office
of Ombudsman against the NBFC

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

{6) Number of Awards unimplemented within the stipulated time

Mot Applicable

(other than those appealed)

Mot Applicable

Nofe: Maintainable complainis refer to complaints on the grounds specifically mentioned in Integrated
Ombudsman Scheme, 2021 (Previously The Ombudsman Scheme for Non-Banking Financial Companies, 2018)
anA rrsarad wsthin Hha ambit AF bha Cebhames
'ﬁMm&MWmMMaEMWMRMM*IM@MW
Scheme, 2021

Number of decrease in the
Grounds of complaints, compiaints Number of e o Number of Of 5, number of
i complaints complaints complaints
(i.2. complaints relating | pending at the complaints
received during pending at the | pending beyond
to) beginning of the the year received over end of the year 30 days
year the previous
Year
1 2 3 4 5 &

Current Year (FY 22-23)
FC Letter / LOD lssuance i 33 32.00% 0| a
PMAY Subsidy Claim related 0 30 -40.00% )| 0
Disbursement Related 1] 19 58.33% 2 0
Document Related 0 15 114.29% 1 0
Loan Cancellation / Loan 0 14 75.00% 0 0
Downsize
|Others 4] 71 121.88% 2 1Y)
Total EI_ 182 30§4%T 5 [

Previous Year (FY 21-22)
PMAY Subsidy Claim related o] 50 117.39% 0 0
FC Letter / LOD Issuance 0 25 =13.79% 0 0
Disbursement Related 0 12 9.09% 0 0
Rate of Interest [ Tenure 0 12 50.00% 0 0
Related
Loan Cancellation / Loan 0 8| 33.33% 0 0
Downsize
Others a 32 -8.57% 0 ]
Total [ 139 24.11% [1] 1]}

T

—




Note 58
Previous year's figures have been regrouped and reclassified wherever necessary to confirm to current year's presantation,
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